
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING AGENDA

MARCH 18, 2021
12:00 - 1:30 PM

OTO CONFERENCE ROOM, SUITE 101 

2208 W. CHESTERFIELD BLVD., SPRINGFIELD



 
 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
March 18, 2021 

12:00 – 1:30 p.m. 
The Board of Directors will convene with a web meeting via Zoom (details to be emailed separately). 

The online public viewing of the meeting will be available on Facebook: 
https://www.facebook.com/ozarkstransportationorganization 

and the full agenda will be made available on the OTO website: ozarkstransportation.org 
 
Call to Order .............................................................................................................................. NOON 

 
I. Administration 
 

A. Introductions 
 

B. Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
(2 minutes/Lear) 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 

C. Approval of December 17, 2020 Minutes and January 21, 2021 E-Meeting Minutes  ... Tab 1 
(2 minutes/Lear) 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE MEETING MINUTES 
 

D. Public Comment Period for All Agenda Items  ............................................................ Tab 2 
(5 minutes/Lear) 
Individuals who would like to comment must submit comments in writing by 5:00 p.m. on 
March 17th to comment@ozarkstransportation.org or at www.giveusyourinput.com. These 
comments will be provided to the Board prior to the meeting.  Any public comment received 
since the last meeting has been included in the agenda packet. 
 

E. Executive Director’s Report 
(10 minutes/Fields) 
A review of staff activities since the last Board of Directors meeting will be given. 
 

F. MoDOT Update 
(10 minutes/MoDOT) 
A MoDOT Staff member will give an update of MoDOT activities.  
 

G. Legislative Reports 
(10 minutes/Lear) 
Representatives from the OTO area congressional delegation will have an opportunity to 
give updates on current items of interest.  
 

https://www.facebook.com/ozarkstransportationorganization
https://www.facebook.com/ozarkstransportationorganization
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/
mailto:comment@ozarkstransportation.org
mailto:comment@ozarkstransportation.org
http://www.giveusyourinput.com/
http://www.giveusyourinput.com/


 
 

II. New Business 
 

A. Financial Statements for 2nd Quarter 2020-2021 Budget Year ..................................... Tab 3 
(10 minutes/Fields) 
Staff will present the second quarter financial statements. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO ACCEPT THE SECOND QUARTER 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
B. UPWP Administrative Modification One .................................................................... Tab 4 

(5 minutes/Fields) 
An administrative modification has been approved for the UPWP. This modification moves 
funds from In-Kind Meeting expense to MoDOT Direct Costs to reflect the projected year-
end billed expenses. 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 

 
C. OTO Growth Trends .................................................................................................. Tab 5 

(10 minutes/Faucett) 
Staff will present highlights of the OTO Growth Trends Report. 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
 

D. FY 2020-2023 TIP Administrative Modification Number Eight ..................................... Tab 6 
(5 minutes/Longpine) 
Included for member review are changes made to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation 
Improvement Program as part of Administrative Modification Number Eight. 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
 

E. Amendment Number Nine to the FY 2020-2023 TIP ................................................... Tab 7 
(5 minutes/Longpine) 
MoDOT is requesting to amend the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE 
TO THE FY 2020-2023 TIP 
 

F. Destination 2045 Update........................................................................................... Tab 8 
(10 minutes/Longpine) 
OTO staff will provide an update on Destination 2045 progress. 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
 

III. Other Business 
 

A. Board of Directors Member Announcements 
(5 minutes/Board of Directors Members)  
Members are encouraged to announce transportation events being scheduled that may be 
of interest to OTO Board of Directors members. 

 



 
B. Transportation Issues for Board of Directors Member Review  

(5 minutes/Board of Directors Members)  
Members are encouraged to raise transportation issues or concerns that they have for 
future agenda items or later in-depth discussion by the OTO Board of Directors. 
 

C. Articles for Board of Directors Member Information .................................................. Tab 9 
(Articles attached) 
 

IV. Adjourn meeting.  A motion is requested to adjourn the meeting.  Targeted for 1:30 P.M. 
 
The next Board of Directors regular meeting is scheduled for Thursday, May 20, 2021 at  
12:00 P.M. as a web meeting via Zoom. 

 
Attachments 
 
Pc: Ken McClure, Mayor, City of Springfield  

Matt Morrow, President, Springfield Area Chamber of Commerce 
 Joelle Cannon, Senator Blunt’s Office 
 Dan Wadlington, Senator Blunt’s Office 
 David Stokely, Senator McCaskill’s Office 

Jeremy Pruett, Congressman Long’s Office 
 Area News Media 

 
Si usted necesita la ayuda de un traductor, por favor comuníquese con Andy Thomason al (417) 865-3042, al 
menos 48 horas antes de la reuníon. 
 
Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who 
require interpreter services (free of charge) should contact Andy Thomason at (417) 865-3042 at least 24 
hours ahead of the meeting. 
 
If you need relay services, please call the following numbers:  711 - Nationwide relay service; 1-800-735-2966 - 
Missouri TTY service; 1-800-735-0135 - Missouri voice carry-over service. 
 
OTO fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes and regulations in all 
programs and activities.  For more information or to obtain a Title VI Complaint Form, see 
www.ozarkstransportation.org or call (417) 865-3042. 
 

http://www.ozarkstransportation.org/
http://www.ozarkstransportation.org/


 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM I.C. 
 

December 17, 2020 and January 21, 2021 E-Meeting Minutes 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
Attached for Board member review are the minutes from the Board of Directors December 17, 2020 
meeting and January 21, 2021 E-meeting.  Please review these minutes prior to the meeting and note any 
changes that need to be made.  The Chair will ask during the meeting if any member has any amendments 
to the attached minutes. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 

 
“Move to approve the Board of Directors December 17, 2020 meeting and January 21, 2021 E-meeting 
minutes.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve the Board of Directors December 17, 2020 meeting and January 21, 2021 E-meeting 
minutes with the following corrections…” 



 
1 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

December 17, 2020 
 

The Board of Directors of the Ozarks Transportation Organization met at its scheduled time of 12:00 p.m. using the 
Zoom video conferencing platform. The meeting was also livestreamed on Facebook for public participation. 

 
The following members were present: 

Mr. Chuck Branch, Citizen-at-Large 
Mr. David Cameron, City of Republic (a) 
Mr. Steve Childers, City of Ozark (a) 
Mr. Jerry Compton, Citizen-at-Large 
Mr. Travis Cossey, City of Nixa (a) 
Mr. Bob Dixon, Greene County 

Ms. Jan Fisk, City of Springfield 
Mr. Brad Gray, City of Willard (a) 
Mr. Skip Jansen, City Utilities Transit 
Mr. James O’Neal, Citizen-at-Large 
Mr. Dan Smith, City of Springfield (a) 
Mr. Brian Weiler, Airport Board (a) 

  
(a) Denotes alternate given voting privileges as a substitute for voting member not present 

 
Others Present:  Mr. Steve Campbell, Mr. Frank Miller, and Eva Steinman, MoDOT; Mr. Dan Wadlington, Senator Roy 
Blunt’s Office; Mr. Steve Bodenhamer, City of Battlefield; Mr. Dave Faucett, Ms. Sara Fields, Ms. Natasha Longpine, Ms. 
Nicole Stokes, and Mr. Andy Thomason, Ozarks Transportation Organization. 
 
Chairman Cossey called the meeting to order at approximately 12:01 p.m. 
 
I. Administration 
 

A. Welcome and Roll Call 
Self-introductions were not made due to the challenges associated with video conferencing.  
 

Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Present 
Mr. Chuck Branch Present Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Present Mr. James O’Neal Present 
Mr. Steve Childers Present Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Present Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Present Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Present Mr. Dan Smith Present 
Ms. Jan Fisk Present Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Present Mr. Brian Weiler Present 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
         A quorum was present. 
 

B. Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Mr. Weiler moved to approve the December 17, 2020 agenda.  Mr. Dixon seconded the motion. A roll call 
vote was taken. 
 
Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 



 
2 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

      
The motion passed. 
 

C. Approval of October 15, 2020 Meeting Minutes 
Mr. Dixon moved to approve the minutes from the October 15, 2020 meeting.  Mr. Childers seconded the 
motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

         
The motion passed.   

 
D. Public Comment Period for All Agenda Items 

Chairman Cossey advised there were public comments included in the packet and one additional comment 
emailed to the Board of Directors the morning of the meeting.  Chairman Cossey asked for comments or 
questions.  There were none. 
 

E. Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Fields stated the OTO staff is still COVID free and offices remain open by appointment only.  MoDOT 
will be putting out funding projections for next year.  Early reports are showing fuel taxes are down while 
sales taxes are up.  Traffic volumes are down 10% both locally and statewide which impacts the fuel tax 
revenue.  OTO staff is planning for MoDOT projections in January.  Meetings have been scheduled with the 
Technical Planning Committee in January and February to continue working on projects for programming 
into the STIP.  Last spring, in collaboration with MoDOT, project priorities and what projects could be added 
to the STIP were discussed and agreed upon.  Due to the pandemic, things changed, and no projects were 
added to the STIP.  These previously agreed priorities and projects will hopefully be added and discussions 
held regarding funding projections.  Ms. Fields informed the Board of Directors if they would like to be 
included in these meetings to please let her know.   
 



 
3 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Ms. Fields reported OTO staff has been working on the Long Range Plan Update, the 5-year update to the 
25-year plan.  Surveys were sent out seeking public input with 864 responses being received.  This plan 
should be completed next fall.  Meetings with the Technical Planning Committee are held approximately 
every 3 weeks focusing on different aspects of the Long Range Plan Update.   
 
Ms. Fields stated all committee meetings continue to be held by Zoom.  Ms. Fields also stated the Federal 
COVID relief would not include roadway funding although there is talk for funding relief for Transit 
Agencies and Airports/Airlines.  (Note:  Roadway funding was later included in the bill) 
 
Ms. Fields advised the months of the Board of Directors meetings will be changing.  The next Board of 
Directors meeting will be held in January which will include some TIP Amendments with an E-Meeting being 
held with the Technical Planning Committee to consider those Amendments. 
 

F. MoDOT Update 
Mr. Campbell reported MoDOT is getting a lot of jobs to award and the estimate process MoDOT is using is 
good, in his opinion.  MoDOT is currently in the middle of estimate updates, which is an annual exercise 
MoDOT does on all of their projects.  Through this process it has been found the cost MoDOT has seen in 
the last 12 months for mechanically stabilized earth walls has gone up around 30% per square foot which 
can impact some bridge projects.  This is a key focus locally due to bridge issues in the southwest part of 
the state.   
 
Mr. Campbell stated, internally, MoDOT has been finishing up the summer work plans while working 
through a few minor winter events.  They have completed 91% of their marking that was planned this year.  
They got through 100% of their regionally significant and major routes on re-striping.  Many projects are 
opening up to traffic.  Project Bridge Rebuild on I-44, which includes 19 bridges, was just accepted for 
maintenance and will be in a warranty period going forward.   
 
Mr. Campbell also stated, permits have been very active with large developers working with MoDOT staff 
on various improvements across the 21 counties.  MoDOT has hired approximately 60 full time employees 
to have enough CDL drivers for winter operations.  They also hired emergency snow operators.   
 
Mr. Campbell reported MoDOT is looking at another large bridge bundle within the Southwest District to 
put out to bid.  MoDOT is looking to onboard 4 more people to their regional bridge crews which will 
impact bridge maintenance within the area.   
 
Mr. Cossey asked if Mr. Campbell had any insight into the new fuel tax or funding formula discussions that 
were happening in Jefferson City.  Mr. Campbell stated there is a proposal, which is one of MoDOT’s 
legislative priorities, but it is still too early to comment.   
 

G. Legislative Reports 
Mr. Wadlington with Senator Blunt’s Office reported, regarding transportation, they are in a wait and see 
mode.  The President-Elect has stated he wants a vigorous transportation Federal program but details of 
that are not known at this time.   
 
Mr. Wadlington reported Ms. Joelle Cannon will be leaving and will be replaced by Ms. Sonya Anderson, 
former State Representative, in January.   
 

 



 
4 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

II. New Business 
 

A. FY 2020 Independent Financial Statement Audit Report 
Ms. Fields stated OTO requests an independent financial statement audit each year.  The OTO has had an 
audit each of the twelve years of operation as an independent organization.  All twelve audits have had no 
significant findings.  This year’s audit was a financial statement audit instead of a single or A-133 due to 
OTO only receiving $654,000.00 in federal funds.  $750,000.00 in federal funds would have required the 
single audit.   
 
Ms. Fields reported the Auditor presented the audit to the Executive Committee in October.  The audit for 
FY 2020, which ran from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 was included in the agenda packet for review and 
acceptance by the Board of Directors.  This audit is an unqualified opinion which means the financial 
statements are presented fairly in all material aspects.  This is the best rating that can be received on an 
audit.  There were no findings included or adjustments made as part of this audit. 
 
Ms. Fields also reported the ending fund balance for June 2020 was $493,429.00.  This was an increase 
from the prior year balance of $406,045.00 by $87,384.00. 
 
Mr. Cameron made a motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2020 Independent Financial Statement Audit 
report.  Mr. Dixon seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 
 

B. Financial Statements for 1st Quarter 2020-2021 Budget Year 
Ms. Fields advised that included for consideration were the first quarter financial statements for the 2020-
2021 Budget Year.  The first quarter expenses were 20.8 percent of budget.  The revenue was 19.5 percent 
of budget.  The statements included were the OTO Operational Financial Statements and the OTO UPWP 
Financial Statements.  
 
Ms. Fields stated there were some notable items included in the report to MoDOT as work accomplished.  
An accounting firm was hired and as of July 1, Bohl, House and Samek have been preparing the financial 
reports.  An online payroll system was implemented.  An HR consultant was hired to advise OTO on HR 
matters and compliance.  Staff has participated in numerous web trainings.   
 
Mr. Cameron made a motion to accept the OTO Operational First Quarter Financial Statements for the 
2020-2021 Budget Year.  Mr. Compton seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 



 
5 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

 
Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
 The motion passed.  
 

C. 2021 Legislative Priorities 
Ms. Fields stated annually, the OTO establishes a list of Legislative Priorities for use when communicating 
with area Legislators.  This has proven to be both very valuable and is well received.  Ms. Fields highlighted 
the list of priorities.  
 
Mr. Jansen made a motion to adopt the 2021 Legislative Priorities.  Mr. Weiler seconded the motion.  A roll 
call vote was taken. 
 
Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 
 

D. Annual Listing of Obligated Projects   
Ms. Longpine reported OTO is required by federal law to publish an Annual Listing of Obligated Projects.  
The OTO Federal Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects was made available in the Agenda 
Packet for member review.  Ms. Longpine noted the Federal Fiscal Year 2020 included the time period from 
October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020 and this listing is required to be published by December 30, 2020. 
 
Mr. Compton made a motion to accept the Annual Listing of Obligated Projects.  Mr. Childers seconded the 
motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 
 
 



 
6 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 

 
E. FY 2020-2023 TIP Administrative Modification Numbers Six and Seven 

Ms. Longpine stated there were 14 items included as part of Administrative Modification 6 to the FY 2020-
2023 Transportation Improvement Program.  The basis for the Administrative Modifications were moving 
project’s funds to another Fiscal Year provided they are not being moved into or out of the first four FY’s of 
a TIP. 
 
There were 2 items included as part of Administrative Modification 7 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation 
Improvement Program.   
 
TIP administrative modifications are minor revisions which can simply be made by OTO staff after 
verification that the change(s) falls into this category.  Notification of administrative modifications are 
provided to the Technical Planning Committee, Board of Directors, MoDOT, and ONEDOT.  TIP 
administrative modifications require no public comment period.  OTO staff ensures fiscal constraint is 
maintained. 
 
Ms. Longpine stated this was informational only. 
 

F. Amendment Number Seven to the FY 2020-2023 TIP 
Ms. Longpine stated there were 12 items requested by MoDOT and OTO members included as part of 
Amendment Number Seven to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program.  Ms. Longpine 
highlighted the items. 

   
Mr. Cameron made a motion to approve Amendment 7 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement 
Plan.  Mr. Dixon seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 



 
7 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 

 
 G.    September 30, 2020 Federal Funds Balance Report 

Ms. Longpine reported OTO has allocated Urban Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG-Urban) funds, 
formally known as STP-Urban funds, each year through MoDOT from the Federal Highway Administration.  
MoDOT enacted a policy of allowing no more than three years of this STBG-Urban allocation to accrue.  If a 
balance greater than 3 years accrues, funds will lapse (be forfeited). 
 
OTO has elected to sub allocate the STBG-Urban among the jurisdictions within the MPO area.  Each of 
these jurisdiction’s allocations are based upon the population within the MPO area.  OTO’s balance is 
monitored, as a whole by MoDOT, while OTO staff monitors each jurisdiction’s programmed funds, so a 
project is only subtracted from the balance upon obligation from FHWA.  OTO receives reports showing the 
projects that have been obligated.  MoDOT’s policy allows for any cost share projects with MoDOT that are 
programmed in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, although not necessarily obligated, to 
be subtracted from the balance.  The next deadline to meet the MoDOT funds lapse policy is September 30, 
2021. 
 
Staff has developed a report which documents the balance allowed, the balance obligated, and the balance 
that needs to be obligated by the end of the Federal Fiscal Year in order to not be rescinded by MoDOT.  
The report also outlines projects programmed to use STBG-Urban funding, so jurisdictions can have a clear 
picture of what is remaining. 
 
Congress continues to propose recissions as part of the annual budgeting process.  The only action that 
prevents a recission of federal funding is obligation.  It is recommended that this funding be obligated as 
quickly as possible to protect against further recissions.  The OTO intersection cost share program has 
helped to commit these funds, however, without obligation, the total OTO balance is subject to recission.  
OTO commends those who have taken action to plan for the use of available funds. 
 
Ms. Longpine reported no action is required; however, OTO is requesting each jurisdiction review the report 
for any inaccuracies or changes in project status and advise staff.   

 
 H.    Safety, System Condition, System Performance, and Transit Safety Targets 

Ms. Longpine stated MAP-21 established and the FAST Act maintained a performance-based approach to 
transportation investments, creating National Performance Goals.  In keeping with these goals, State 
Departments of Transportation and Metropolitan Planning Organizations are required to establish targets.  
Each target has its own requirements and timelines.  This year, four types of performance targets will be 
reviewed:  safety, system condition, system performance, and transit safety. 
 
Ms. Longpine reviewed each performance measure and their individual targets. 
 
Mr. Dixon made a motion to support statewide and City Utility-set targets.  Mr. Jansen seconded the 
motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 
 
 



 
8 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal - 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 

 
 I.     Appointment of 2021 OTO Officers 

Pursuant to OTO By-Laws, the OTO Board of Directors is required to appoint the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, 
Secretary, and Treasurer for the 2021 OTO Board of Directors and to appoint the remaining members of the 
Executive Committee. 
 
Mr. Weiler reported the Nominating Committee met on December 7, 2020.  The 2021 Nominating 
Committee was made up of the following three Board Members of OTO:  Brad Gray, City of Willard City 
Administrator; Brian Weiler, Springfield-Branson National Airport; and Travis Cossey, City of Nixa Director of 
Utilities and Public Works. 
 
The Nominating Committee presented the following slate of officers.  The City of Springfield is next in the 
rotation schedule for Chairman of the OTO Board of Directors as set out in the OTO By-Laws and Greene 
County is next in the rotation for Vice-Chairman.  Nominations from the floor may also be made prior to 
electing each officer. 
 
2021 Slate of Officers/Executive Committee as presented from the Nominating Committee: 
Chairman:  Andrew Lear, City of Springfield Council Member 
Vice-Chairman:  John Russell, Greene County Commissioner 
Secretary:  Steve Childers, City of Ozark City Administrator 
Treasurer:  David Cameron, City of Republic City Administrator 
Past Chairman:  Travis Cossey, City of Nixa Assistant Director of Utilities & Public Works 
Executive Committee:  Brian Weiler, Springfield-Branson National Airport 
Executive Committee:  Brad Gray, City of Willard City Administrator 
 
Mr. Dixon made a motion to appoint the 2021 OTO Officers and Executive Committee as presented.  Mr. 
Jansen seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken. 
 

Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal Aye 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 



 
9 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 
Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 

 
 J.    Welcome to New Chairman and Vice-Chairman 

Chairman Cossey thanked everyone for their support during his term as Chair.  Neither Mr. Lear nor Mr. 
Russell were in attendance.  Chairman Cossey thanked Mr. Dixon for his support and hard work during his 
role with the OTO.  Mr. Dixon has asked Mr. Russell to take his spot in representing the Greene County 
Commission.  Ms. Fields presented a plaque for Mr. Dixon in recognition of his 2 years of service to the Board 
of Directors including being the Chair in 2019. 
 
Ms. Fields also recognized Mr. Bengsch, who is retiring, with a plaque of recognition for his service.  Mr. 
Bengsch was the longest running Board Member who joined the Board in 2004.   

 
 K.   Board of Directors 2021 Meeting Schedule 

Ms. Fields stated the staff has modified the meeting schedule for 2021 to have the Board of Directors meet 
in odd numbered months.  This is being proposed to align the TIP to the State of Missouri’s fiscal year. 
 
This item was for discussion only.  No motion was requested. 

 
III. Other Business 
 

A.    Board of Directors Member Announcements 
 There were no member announcements. 

 
B.    Transportation Issues for Board of Directors Member Review 

There were no transportations issues to review. 
 

C.     Articles for Board of Directors Member Information 
 Chairman Cossey noted there were articles of interest included in the packet for the members 
 to review as time allows. 

 
IV. Adjourn meeting 

Mr. Weiler made a motion the meeting be adjourned at 1:00 P.M.  Mr. Schilling seconded the motion.  A roll call 
vote was taken. 
 

Member Vote Member Vote 
Mr. Harold Bengsch Absent Mr. Skip Jansen Aye 
Mr. Chuck Branch Aye Mr. Andrew Lear Absent 
Mr. David Cameron Aye Mr. James O’Neal - 
Mr. Steve Childers Aye Mr. Ralph Phillips Absent 
Mr. Jerry Compton Aye Mr. Mike Schilling Absent 
Mr. Travis Cossey Aye Ms. Martha Smartt Absent 
Mr. Bob Dixon Aye Mr. Dan Smith Aye 



 
10 Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020 

 
 

Ms. Jan Fisk Aye Mr. Richard Walker Absent 
Mr. Brad Gray Aye Mr. Brian Weiler Aye 
Ms. Debra Hickey Absent   

 
The motion passed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Steve Childers 
OTO Secretary 

 



OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS E-MEETING MINUTES 

January 21, 2021 
 

The Board of Directors of the Ozarks Transportation Organization held an electronic meeting on 
Thursday, January 21, 2021, to consider approving FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program 
Amendment 8. 
 
Chair Andrew Lear called the electronic meeting to order at approximately 12:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Richard Walker moved the Board of Directors approve FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement 
Program Amendment 8.  Mr. Chuck Branch seconded the motion.  Following an allotted time for 
discussion, the motion was approved by the following vote: 
 

AYE:  Steve Bodenhamer, Jerry Compton, Travis Cossey, Jan Fisk, Skip Jansen, Andrew Lear, 
James O’Neal, Mike Schilling, Martha Smartt, Richard Walker, Brian Weiler 
NAY:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
With no additional business to come before the Board, Chair Andrew Lear adjourned the electronic 
meeting at approximately 1:12 p.m. 
 
 
__________________________________ 

Steve Childers 
OTO Secretary 
 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 2 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM I.D. 
 

Public Comment 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 
 
Attached for Board member review are Public Comments for the time frame between January 21, 2021 
and March 10, 2021. Any additional public comment received by March 17, 2021 will be shared 
before the meeting. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
This item is informational only, no action is required. 



Facebook comment received 03/08/2021 

Concerning:  Springfield’s transit system 

 

 



Email received 03/05/2021 concerning public transportation from Springfield to Republic 

 

 



EMAIL received 03/04/2021 concerning picking up passengers/parking for Uber & Lyft drivers at Airport 
 
From: Curtis Vaughn <curtisvaughn@outlook.com>  
Sent: Thursday, March 4, 2021 10:45 AM 
To: Natasha Longpine <nlongpine@ozarkstransportation.org> 
Subject: Re: Private Transportation Planning Discussion 
 
Hi Natasha, 
 
Thankyou for trying to work with me! 
 
I have been an Uber driver since January 2017 and seen things that work and things do not. I want to try to promote an 
excellent quality of service for everyone involved in private transportation, whether it be Uber, Lyft, taxis, or other 
service. 
 
There needs to be good transportation planning as currently different companies are treated differently, the quality of 
care for drivers and passengers is different based the type of service, and there is no real avenue for public dialogue to 
make conditions better. 
 
I also would love help to fix current maladies. 
 
Here is my firsthand account of what does not work for Uber and Lyft at least for the airport: 
 
The setup for the airport is not the best- 
In general the relationship between Uber and Lyft drivers and the airport administration is cold, the administration does 
not work with the drivers, only the companies, thus allowing things to deteriorate and not be fixed.  
There always needs to be public input and dialogue for places like the airport for preventing and fixing conditions as they 
arise. 
 
Here are some examples of need for improvement: 
 
I’m general, the Uber and Lyft queue parking lot is too far. Passengers have a high wait time for drivers, 10-12 minutes, 
as the staging lot is based at the old terminal at the end of Kearney street.  
There is interest among Uber and Lyft drivers to move closer to the main terminal for the staging queue.  
 
There are no restrooms or garbage bins at the staging queue lot. There is great interest in having a queue parking lot 
that has well maintained and clean restrooms and garbage bins. 
 
There needs to be adequate night time lighting in in the queue that is well taken care of. The lights were turned off for 
about a year in 2019. Again, after multiple calls to the administration from many drivers, the issue took about a year to 
fix. There needs to be good maintenance on the Uber and Lyft queue and public dialogue to fix issues. 
 
The queue staging lot is also never ice treated or snow plowed. This last snow storm left about a foot of accumulated 
snow untreated in the lot. This limited only certain vehicles in the queue. Meanwhile the taxi stand was treated and 
cleared. There had been multiple attempts to contact to city council and the airport about the issue. As in general the 
queue needs to be well maintained. 
 
In the way of passenger pickup for Uber and Lyft, the signage is terrible and confusing, and the pickup location is not 
where passengers naturally end up. I would say, 60% of my passengers are lost when I try to meet them for pickup at the 
airport.  
Then there is the lack of a covered canopy. This would be helpful for inclement weather. 
In short, the passenger pickup area needs to be located in a logical area of the terminal, with adequate signage, and a 
covered weather protected canopy with benches for passengers to sit comfortably. 

mailto:curtisvaughn@outlook.com
mailto:curtisvaughn@outlook.com
mailto:nlongpine@ozarkstransportation.org
mailto:nlongpine@ozarkstransportation.org


 
So in summary, 
 
There needs to be an avenue for public dialogue and fixing condition as they arise. There needs to be a staging queue/ 
parking lot that is closer to the main terminal for Uber and Lyft drivers, (this benefits passengers and drivers). One that is 
maintained during inclement weather and has access to swift maintenance. Passengers need better signage and a logical 
pickup location. There needs to be a weather proofed covered canopy and attractive waiting area with seating. 
 
I have other input as well, but I will leave it at that for today 
 
Thankyou for your time and I would love to continue giving feedback, 
 
Curtis Vaughn  
417-718-0156 
 
 
 
 
 



Email received 01/13/2021 

 

 



Concerning:  Farm Road 178 & Hwy ZZ – Republic 

Name: Lisa Woods 
 
Date:  01/12/2021 
 
Type: suggestions 
 
Coordinates: [-93.42072308063506,37.125025378665214] 
Category:  
 
Comment: Traffic control is desperately needed to allow primarily for protected east-to-north left turns 
at this intersection.  A signal or roundabout. 
 

 



Concerning:  Highway ZZ & Rep MO Drive (HS) – Republic 

Name: Lisa Woods 
 
Date:  01/12/2021 
 
Type: suggestions 
 
Coordinates: [-93.42017590999603,37.136478746037135] 
 
Category: motor-point 
 
Comment: Some form of traffic control is desperately needed at this very busy and dangerous 
intersection.  Reduced speed limit is also needed.  A roundabout would increase safety for those 
traveling south to east as well as those traveling west to south. 
 

 



Additional public comment made to previous submitted comment (highlighted in yellow below map) 

Concerning:  Hines and Lynn in Republic  

Name: Hines & Lynn (Republic) 
 
Date:  01/06/2021 
 
Type: Point 
 
Coordinates: [-93.46199691295622,37.12560707017048] 
 
Category: motor-point 
 
Comment: Please put a 4 way stop or red blinking light here. This is another dangerous intersection with cars turning L/R 
off Lynn or going straight. Same with cars coming from Walmart... too much traffic here and it's even worse when kids 
are walking to/from school. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name: Anonymous 
 
Date:  01/14/2021 
 
Type: suggestions 
 
Coordinates:  
 
Category:  
 
Comment: This intersection is very dangerous. 



 



 

• Name: Emily Million 
• Email: emilyjmillion@gmail.com 

To Whom it May Concern: 

Greene County Planning and Zoning is scheduled to discuss Planning Board Case P-21-002336, Vintage Pointe at 
Highland Springs on February 16th. 

The Samuel Springs neighborhood objects to a development of this many homes on a small parcel of land, which will be 
overbearing and out of scale for the area for the following reasons: 

Traffic 

The additional traffic load onto FR189, and then to the intersection of 189/Hwy60 or 193/Hwy60 is of major concern. 
The new senior living facility on Mary Road will result in a significant increase in drivers (many of them older) attempting 
to navigate these two intersections. Additional traffic from Vintage Pointe will just exacerbate a dangerous situation. – 
The intersection of FR 189 and Hwy 60 is already an extremely unsafe exchange to cross over east bound lanes and pull 
out to go west with the current amount of traffic. The only reason we can still cross over and enter on Hwy 60 west is 
the break we get from the stoplight at Hwy 125 & 60. The future improvement on the interchange will only make things 
worse as traffic will be constant and at a higher rate of speed. There are fender benders and cars pulled out of the ditch 
at FR 189 and Hwy 60 almost weekly because of speed and high volume of traffic. Any additional traffic is a HUGE safety 
concern. 

There are many children, walkers, runners, bikers, and pets in our neighborhood – and no sidewalks. Any increased 
traffic is a danger, especially as there is already a dangerous “blind” hill that drivers can’t see over on 189. We are also a 
small, enclosed neighborhood with the only entry/exit being 189 – there is no through traffic, so any extra traffic is 
doubly burdensome. 

The preliminary plat for Vintage Pointe called for a 30 foot (two lane) access easement to connect the development to 
Bridgend Drive in Highland Springs. This would present a much safer option than FR189, and would be more consistent 
with other Highland Springs additions such as Dunrobin Phase 2 and Dunrobin Phase 3 (Greene County Planning Board 
Case Number 18189, 17 June 2008). 

Stormwater Runoff 

The following quote is taken from the plans: "The area shown is not located in a storm sewer district as of the date of 
recording and may be subject to future assessment if it is deemed necessary due to problems created by surface water 
run-off." So the developer would prefer to create issues for our neighborhood then solve them later? That’s not a very 
sound plan for the development or the neighborhood. Give us a sound plan beforehand. 

All of the homes in Samuel Springs are already experiencing a lot of runoff during heavy rains. In order to ensure that 
stormwater runoff would not be increased by the development of Vintage Pointe, discussions were held in 2008 by then 
resident, Bob Friesen; Greene County Stormwater Engineer Kevin Barnes; and the developer's engineer, David Bodeen; 
to consider the construction of a diversion berm, to run along the south side of the new development, to direct all of the 
stormwater drainage to the west and into the detention basin.  

mailto:emilyjmillion@gmail.com
mailto:emilyjmillion@gmail.com


The residents of Samuel Springs are hopeful that the current Greene County Stormwater Engineer and the current 
developer's engineer are considering the diversion berm, or a similar solution to keep additional runoff from Vintage 
Pointe from flowing into Samuel Springs. 

Water and Sewer 

We are assuming that, like the rest of Highland Springs, Vintage Pointe will be connected to the City Utilities water 
supply. We are curious to know if the plan for sanitary sewer service is similar to what was planned in 2008. Due to the 
karst topography in this area, these items are of major concern to us. 

Wildlife  

One of the things that makes our neighborhood special – aside from the community, potlucks, and everyone walking the 
neighborhood and talking to each other every evening – is the access to wildlife. Many species of wildlife live in the 
proposed development and will be impacted. Our neighborhood is an oasis for wildlife in the Springfield and Rogersville 
area. We would be happy to share that with a few more homeowners but 55 is extreme. The ecosystem will be 
upended. 

Aesthetic and Sound Barrier 

As my property directly borders the proposed development, what considerations will be made for an aesthetic and 
sound barrier on our side? The homes in Samuel Springs are situated on quiet beautiful yards and acreage. The Golf 
Course is surrounded by beautiful large homes. The proposed development of 55 homes on 11.9 acres is extreme and 
incompatible with both the Samuel Springs neighborhood and the Highland Springs area.  

This developer shows little concern for the existing homeowners and neighborhood where this proposed development is 
to be placed. At the very least, the Vintage Pointe development should be tabled until all of these concerns are 
addressed and real solutions presented by the developer. 

Thank you for your time and consideration! 

Sincerely, 

Emily Million 

5210 S Janet Lane 

Rogersville, MO 65742 

 



 



 

•  
• Name: Michael Shoults 
• Email: michael.shoults@yahoo.com 

To: Greene Country Missouri Planning and Zoning Commission  

940 N Boonville 

Springfield, MO 65802 

Re: Preliminary Plat P-21-002336, Vintage Point at Highland Springs, Atrium Holding Company 

Dear Committee,  

I am writing to express my strong opposition to Planning Board Case P-21-002336, the proposed 
development of Vintage Point at Highland Springs. While our neighborhood committee maybe unable to 
prevent development, a development that will be detrimental to the area, the residents in the Samuel 
Springs Neighborhood are opposed to this development as currently planned. This development would 
have a devastating impact on our residential community in several ways.  

Traffic and Safety, it is concerning, if in fact, MODOT and Greene County traffic engineers have 
determined Highway 60E and South Farm Road 189 to be a safe primary travel route for this 
development and the surrounding communities. This is the same primary travel corridor for a new 24 
hour, 7day a week, assisted living community housing hundreds of residents along with the Samuel 
Springs Neighborhood residents and now a 55-home development. It is inconceivable for anyone in their 
right mind to think this amount of traffic at the intersection of Hwy 60E and S Farm Road 189 is in the 
best interest of the community. This issue alone should table this development until further 
improvements along Hwy 60E are in place, not merely “planned”.  

Storm Water, the storm water in this area is already stressed with the runoff water from Hwy 60, 
Highland Springs Golf Course, the new assisted living community and now a 55-home development. I 
know the county requires the developer to have an “engineered” storm water plan however, this plan 
may or may not take into consideration the development of all the surrounding areas including the 
assisted living community and any future improvements to Hwy 60. The storm water basin for this entire 
area lies at the bottom of this proposed 55-home development meaning it must be adequate to handle 
any and all future development. I am not convinced this is the case, further considerations need to be 
made.  

Eco-System, one of the most appealing aspects of living in this area is the privilege of enjoying the 
beauty mother nature has to offer. Historically Highland Springs has embraced this ideology with their 
lot sizes, placement of homes, “green space” requirements, etc. This new 55-home development on less 
than 12 acres appears to have complete and total disregard for the same guiding principles. These 

mailto:michael.shoults@yahoo.com
mailto:michael.shoults@yahoo.com


requirements and natural beauty of Highland Springs is what made it a sought-after destination from its 
inception and that still holds true today. I ask the committee to reconsider how many homes allowed 
per acres to be more in line with the precedent Highland Springs has long enforced in their current 
developments.  

Noise and Light Pollution, the residents of the Samuel Springs Neighborhood are very concerned about 
the impact this development will have on noise and light pollution. In our community there are no 
streetlights, for a reason, and the wooded lot this development seeks to decimate provides a noise 
buffer to the surrounding traffic. I understand this wooded lot is not owned by the Samuel Springs 
Neighborhood however, placing 55 homes on less than 12 acres will undoubtably drastically increase the 
amount of both noise and light pollution interfering with our right to enjoyment. If a new development 
is permitted, hopefully with far fewer homes, I encourage the committee to require a 12’ tall sound wall 
along all adjacent Samuel Springs properties, similar to what is along some portions of our highways.  

In closing, I urge the committee NOT to approve this development as currently presented. Further 
considerations for the residents of the surrounding community need to be taken into consideration. 
Thank you for your continued service and support of our community.  

Regards,  

Michael & Crystal Shoults  

 



Facebook comment received 02/17/2021 

v 



Facebook comment received 03/01/2021 – concerning traffic signal timing & pedestrians 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 3 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM II.A. 
 

Financial Statements for the Second Quarter 2020-2021 Budget Year 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   

Included for consideration are the second quarter financial statements for the 2020-2021 Budget Year.  
This period includes October 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.  The second quarter expenses total 
40.5 percent of budget.  The revenue was 36.1 percent of budget.  The agenda packet is divided into two 
sections:  the OTO Operational Financial Statements and the OTO UPWP Financial Statements.  
 
Section One – OTO Operational Financial Statements 
 

• Balance Sheet 
The current outstanding liabilities include $5,597.02 which represents the OTO purchasing card 
for the month of December which is paid in full monthly and Dependent and Health FSA 
accounts for employees held a $96.71 liability at the end of the year. 
 

• Operating Fund Balance Report shows the OTO has a fund balance of $463,989.09 at the end of 
December. This balance is still well within the 3-6 month range set for expenses. 

 
• Profit and Loss Statement 

The OTO completed the following budgeted projects for the second quarter: 
 Audit – $3,845.00 
 Aerial Photos – $25,000.00  

During this period, expenses exceeded revenue in the amount of $29,114.03.   
 

• Budget vs. Actual  
The OTO budgeted expenses in the amount of $894,746.00 for the budget year.  Actual 
expenses at the end of the second quarter are $361,929.00.  This is 40.5 percent of budgeted 
expenses.  Year-to-date expenses exceeded revenue in the amount of $30,786.46. 
 

 
Section Two – OTO UPWP Financial Statements  
 

• UPWP Profit and Loss Statement, Budget vs. Actual, Balance Sheet  
The UPWP Financial statements include the amount in-Kind and MoDOT direct cost the OTO is 
utilizing as budgeted in the UPWP Budget.  The in-kind and MoDOT direct-cost revenue and 
expense are shown in the UPWP financial statements. The OTO UPWP budgeted expenses are 
$942,940.00 once the in-kind expense is included.   
 
The OTO utilized $26,414.20 of in-Kind match income during the second quarter.  Staff would 
like to thank all member jurisdictions and MoDOT for helping to achieve the in-kind match.   
 



• Unified Planning Work Program Progress Report – 2nd Quarter 
This is the report that outlines the tasks and budget percentage completed in comparison to the 
OTO’s Unified Planning Work Program (the OTO’s grant budget). 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions:  
 
“Move to accept the Second Quarter Financial Statements for the 2020-2021 Budget Year.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to return to staff the Second Quarter Financial Statements for the 2020-2021 Budget Year in 
order to…” 



OTO Operational Financial 
Reports 

 
Excludes the In-Kind Income/Expense 



Dec 31, 20

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
ICS Depositor Control Account 338,628.26
Southern Bank--Money Market 95,643.57
Southern Bank-Sm Bus Checking 29,717.26

Total Checking/Savings 463,989.09

Total Current Assets 463,989.09

TOTAL ASSETS 463,989.09

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Credit Cards

Central Bank--Purchasing Card 5,597.02

Total Credit Cards 5,597.02

Other Current Liabilities
Health FSA - Employee 015 -0.02
Health FSA - Employee 019 -96.69

Total Other Current Liabilities -96.71

Total Current Liabilities 5,500.31

Total Liabilities 5,500.31

Equity
Unrestricted Net Assets 489,275.24
Net Income -30,786.46

Total Equity 458,488.78

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 463,989.09

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2020

Page 1



Date ICS Balance Money Market 
Balance Checking Balance Total Balance

7/31/2020 $337,236.95 $180,490.55 $65,183.83 $582,911.33
8/31/2020 $337,738.50 $150,536.79 $78,977.52 $567,252.81
9/30/2020 $338,224.60 $150,567.72 $6,849.66 $495,641.98
10/31/2020 $338,402.07 $90,587.36 $66,931.36 $495,920.79
11/30/2020 $338,513.29 $75,605.08 $127,660.12 $541,778.49
12/31/2020 $338,628.26 $95,643.57 $36,309.01 $470,580.84
1/31/2021 $0.00
2/28/2021 $0.00
3/31/2021 $0.00
4/30/2021 $0.00
5/31/2021 $0.00
6/30/2021 $0.00

Balance After Liabilities
Southern Bank & ICS 
Balances 12/31/2020 $470,580.84
Outstanding Checking 
Withdrawals -$6,591.75
Other Outstanding 
Liabilities -$5,500.31

Total Equity 12/31/2020 $458,488.78

Proposed Amendment
  FY 2020 UPWP Budget $942,940.00
  3 months of expenses $235,735.00
  6 months of expenses $471,470.00

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operating Fund Balance Report

FY 2021

Monthly Ending Balance



Oct - Dec 20

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
Interest Income 506.63
Miscellaneous Revenue 47.34

Total Other Types of Income 553.97

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 150,721.09

Total OTO Revenue 150,721.09

Total Income 151,275.06

Gross Profit 151,275.06

Expense
Building

Building Lease 12,870.00
Common Area Main Exp 4,035.00
Office Cleaning 987.00
Utilities 502.08

Total Building 18,394.08

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 285.09
OTO Promotional Items 919.06
Publications 298.00

Total Commodities 1,502.15

Information Technology
Data Storage/Backup 1,017.00
IT Maintenance Contract 2,262.00
Software 690.64
Webhosting 114.85

Total Information Technology 4,084.49

Operating
Copy Machine Lease

Lease Principal Expense 48.00
Maintenance for Copier 156.00
Toner & Overages 84.00
Copy Machine Lease - Other 405.75

Total Copy Machine Lease 693.75

Dues/Memberships 819.00
Education/Training/Travel 410.00

Food/Meeting Expense 126.54
Legal/Bid Notices 350.00
Postage/Postal Services 99.00
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 40.83
Telephone/Internet 1,144.98

Total Operating 3,684.10

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 450.00
Payroll Services 528.04
Salaries 109,721.77

Total Personnel 110,699.81

4:24 PM Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operational Profit & Loss

October through December 2020

Page 1



Oct - Dec 20

Services
Aerial Photos 25,000.00
Audit 3,845.00
Long Range Plan Update 3,818.21
Professional Services (Legal & 9,361.25

Total Services 42,024.46

Total Expense 180,389.09

Net Ordinary Income -29,114.03

Net Income -29,114.03

4:24 PM Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operational Profit & Loss

October through December 2020

Page 2



Jul - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
Interest Income 2,288.48 6,000.00 -3,711.52 38.1%
Miscellaneous Revenue 123.41

Total Other Types of Income 2,411.89 6,000.00 -3,588.11 40.2%

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 240,224.95 654,352.00 -414,127.05 36.7%
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 88,505.70 156,191.00 -67,685.30 56.7%
Surface Trans Block Grant 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

Total OTO Revenue 328,730.65 910,543.00 -581,812.35 36.1%

Total Income 331,142.54 916,543.00 -585,400.46 36.1%

Gross Profit 331,142.54 916,543.00 -585,400.46 36.1%

Expense
Bank Fees 0.00 30.00 -30.00 0.0%
Building

Building Lease 25,740.00 52,125.00 -26,385.00 49.4%
Common Area Main Exp 8,070.00 19,950.00 -11,880.00 40.5%
Infill Costs 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Maintenance 628.10 4,000.00 -3,371.90 15.7%
Office Cleaning 1,974.00 5,550.00 -3,576.00 35.6%
Utilities 1,016.25 3,500.00 -2,483.75 29.0%

Total Building 37,428.35 87,125.00 -49,696.65 43.0%

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 934.35 7,000.00 -6,065.65 13.3%
OTO Media/Advertising 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
OTO Promotional Items 1,669.06 2,000.00 -330.94 83.5%
Public Input Promotional Items 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
Publications 367.00 1,000.00 -633.00 36.7%

Total Commodities 2,970.41 15,000.00 -12,029.59 19.8%

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 0.00 8,000.00 -8,000.00 0.0%
Data Storage/Backup 2,269.00 4,400.00 -2,131.00 51.6%
GIS Licenses 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.0%
IT Maintenance Contract 4,524.00 12,000.00 -7,476.00 37.7%
Software 1,453.23 4,900.00 -3,446.77 29.7%
Webhosting 1,523.53 2,300.00 -776.47 66.2%

Total Information Technology 9,769.76 37,100.00 -27,330.24 26.3%

Insurance
Directors & Officers 2,338.00 3,000.00 -662.00 77.9%
Errors & Omissions 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
Professional Liability 2,720.00 2,700.00 20.00 100.7%
Workers Compensation 1,232.00 1,700.00 -468.00 72.5%

Total Insurance 6,290.00 10,400.00 -4,110.00 60.5%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operational Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through December 2020

Page 1



Jul - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Operating
Copy Machine Lease

Lease Interest Expense 48.00 1,650.00 -1,602.00 2.9%
Lease Principal Expense 183.25 200.00 -16.75 91.6%
Maintenance for Copier 312.00 650.00 -338.00 48.0%
Toner & Overages 168.00 3,200.00 -3,032.00 5.3%
Copy Machine Lease - Other 676.25

Total Copy Machine Lease 1,387.50 5,700.00 -4,312.50 24.3%

Dues/Memberships 1,402.00 8,000.00 -6,598.00 17.5%
Education/Training/Travel

Training 125.00
Education/Training/Travel - Other 1,050.00 23,000.00 -21,950.00 4.6%

Total Education/Training/Travel 1,175.00 23,000.00 -21,825.00 5.1%

Food/Meeting Expense 569.49 4,300.00 -3,730.51 13.2%
Legal/Bid Notices 544.97 2,000.00 -1,455.03 27.2%
Postage/Postal Services 63.54 1,800.00 -1,736.46 3.5%
Printing/Mapping Services 26.00 14,000.00 -13,974.00 0.2%
Public Input Event Registration 50.00 1,500.00 -1,450.00 3.3%
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 97.18 3,500.00 -3,402.82 2.8%
Telephone/Internet 2,288.04 5,000.00 -2,711.96 45.8%

Total Operating 7,603.72 68,800.00 -61,196.28 11.1%

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 1,080.00 3,240.00 -2,160.00 33.3%
Payroll Services 1,253.03 4,000.00 -2,746.97 31.3%
Salaries 232,675.10 529,811.00 -297,135.90 43.9%

Total Personnel 235,008.13 537,051.00 -302,042.87 43.8%

Services
Aerial Photos 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 100.0%
Audit 3,845.00 4,640.00 -795.00 82.9%
Legislative Education 0.00 7,000.00 -7,000.00 0.0%
Long Range Plan Update 3,818.21 5,000.00 -1,181.79 76.4%
Professional Services (Legal & 20,595.42 50,000.00 -29,404.58 41.2%
TIP Tool Maintenance 9,600.00 9,600.00 0.00 100.0%
Trans Consult/Model Services 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%
Travel Demand Model Update 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%
Travel Sensing & Time Serv Proj 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Total Services 62,858.63 139,240.00 -76,381.37 45.1%

Total Expense 361,929.00 894,746.00 -532,817.00 40.5%

Net Ordinary Income -30,786.46 21,797.00 -52,583.46 -141.2%

Net Income -30,786.46 21,797.00 -52,583.46 -141.2%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
Operational Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through December 2020

Page 2



OTO UPWP Financial  
Reports 

 
Same as OTO Operational Financial Reports but includes In-Kind Income/Expense to 
match Unified Planning Work Program (OTO Consolidated Planning Grant) Budget. 



Oct - Dec 20

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 11,153.40
Interest Income 506.63
Miscellaneous Revenue 47.34

Total Other Types of Income 11,707.37

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 150,721.09

Total OTO Revenue 150,721.09

Total Income 162,428.46

Gross Profit 162,428.46

Expense
Building

Building Lease 12,870.00
Common Area Main Exp 4,035.00
Office Cleaning 987.00
Utilities 502.08

Total Building 18,394.08

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 285.09
Publications 298.00

Total Commodities 583.09

In-Kind Match Expense
Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries 8,041.92
Member Attendance at Meetings 3,111.48

Total In-Kind Match Expense 11,153.40

Information Technology
Data Storage/Backup 1,017.00
IT Maintenance Contract 2,262.00
Software 690.64
Webhosting 114.85

Total Information Technology 4,084.49

Operating
Copy Machine Lease

Lease Principal Expense 48.00
Maintenance for Copier 156.00
Toner & Overages 84.00
Copy Machine Lease - Other 405.75

Total Copy Machine Lease 693.75

Dues/Memberships 819.00
Education/Training/Travel 410.00

Food/Meeting Expense 126.54
Legal/Bid Notices 350.00
Postage/Postal Services 99.00
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 40.83
Telephone/Internet 1,144.98

Total Operating 3,684.10

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss

October through December 2020

Page 1



Oct - Dec 20

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 450.00
Payroll Services 528.04
Salaries 109,721.77

Total Personnel 110,699.81

Services
Aerial Photos 25,000.00
Audit 3,845.00
Long Range Plan Update 3,818.21
Professional Services (Legal & 9,361.25

Total Services 42,024.46

Total Expense 190,623.43

Net Ordinary Income -28,194.97

Net Income -28,194.97

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss

October through December 2020

Page 2



Jul - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Other Types of Income
In-Kind Match, Donated Direct C 26,414.20 59,724.00 -33,309.80 44.2%
Interest Income 2,288.48 6,000.00 -3,711.52 38.1%
Miscellaneous Revenue 123.41

Total Other Types of Income 28,826.09 65,724.00 -36,897.91 43.9%

OTO Revenue
Consolidated Planning Grant CPG 240,224.95 654,352.00 -414,127.05 36.7%
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds 88,505.70 156,191.00 -67,685.30 56.7%
Surface Trans Block Grant 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

Total OTO Revenue 328,730.65 910,543.00 -581,812.35 36.1%

Total Income 357,556.74 976,267.00 -618,710.26 36.6%

Gross Profit 357,556.74 976,267.00 -618,710.26 36.6%

Expense
Building

Building Lease 25,740.00 52,125.00 -26,385.00 49.4%
Common Area Main Exp 8,070.00 19,950.00 -11,880.00 40.5%
Infill Costs 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
Maintenance 628.10 4,000.00 -3,371.90 15.7%
Office Cleaning 1,974.00 5,550.00 -3,576.00 35.6%
Utilities 1,016.25 3,500.00 -2,483.75 29.0%

Total Building 37,428.35 87,125.00 -49,696.65 43.0%

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture 934.35 7,000.00 -6,065.65 13.3%
Public Input Promotional Items 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
Publications 367.00 1,000.00 -633.00 36.7%

Total Commodities 1,301.35 10,500.00 -9,198.65 12.4%

In-Kind Match Expense
Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries 20,062.98 23,724.00 -3,661.02 84.6%
Member Attendance at Meetings 6,351.22 36,000.00 -29,648.78 17.6%

Total In-Kind Match Expense 26,414.20 59,724.00 -33,309.80 44.2%

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equip Replace 0.00 8,000.00 -8,000.00 0.0%
Data Storage/Backup 2,269.00 4,400.00 -2,131.00 51.6%
GIS Licenses 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.0%
IT Maintenance Contract 4,524.00 12,000.00 -7,476.00 37.7%
Software 1,453.23 4,900.00 -3,446.77 29.7%
Webhosting 1,523.53 2,300.00 -776.47 66.2%

Total Information Technology 9,769.76 37,100.00 -27,330.24 26.3%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through December 2020

Page 1



Jul - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Insurance
Directors & Officers 2,338.00 3,000.00 -662.00 77.9%
Errors & Omissions 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
Professional Liability 2,720.00 2,700.00 20.00 100.7%
Workers Compensation 1,232.00 1,700.00 -468.00 72.5%

Total Insurance 6,290.00 10,400.00 -4,110.00 60.5%

Operating
Copy Machine Lease

Lease Interest Expense 48.00 1,650.00 -1,602.00 2.9%
Lease Principal Expense 183.25 200.00 -16.75 91.6%
Maintenance for Copier 312.00 650.00 -338.00 48.0%
Toner & Overages 168.00 3,200.00 -3,032.00 5.3%
Copy Machine Lease - Other 676.25

Total Copy Machine Lease 1,387.50 5,700.00 -4,312.50 24.3%

Dues/Memberships 1,402.00 8,000.00 -6,598.00 17.5%
Education/Training/Travel

Training 125.00
Education/Training/Travel - Other 1,050.00 23,000.00 -21,950.00 4.6%

Total Education/Training/Travel 1,175.00 23,000.00 -21,825.00 5.1%

Food/Meeting Expense 569.49 4,300.00 -3,730.51 13.2%
Legal/Bid Notices 544.97 2,000.00 -1,455.03 27.2%
Postage/Postal Services 63.54 1,800.00 -1,736.46 3.5%
Printing/Mapping Services 26.00 14,000.00 -13,974.00 0.2%
Public Input Event Registration 50.00 1,500.00 -1,450.00 3.3%
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 97.18 3,500.00 -3,402.82 2.8%
Telephone/Internet 2,288.04 5,000.00 -2,711.96 45.8%

Total Operating 7,603.72 68,800.00 -61,196.28 11.1%

Personnel
Mobile Data Plans 1,080.00 3,240.00 -2,160.00 33.3%
Payroll Services 1,253.03 4,000.00 -2,746.97 31.3%
Salaries 232,675.10 529,811.00 -297,135.90 43.9%

Total Personnel 235,008.13 537,051.00 -302,042.87 43.8%

Services
Aerial Photos 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 100.0%
Audit 3,845.00 4,640.00 -795.00 82.9%
Long Range Plan Update 3,818.21 5,000.00 -1,181.79 76.4%
Professional Services (Legal & 20,595.42 50,000.00 -29,404.58 41.2%
TIP Tool Maintenance 9,600.00 9,600.00 0.00 100.0%
Trans Consult/Model Services 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through December 2020

Page 2



Jul - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Travel Demand Model Update 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%
Travel Sensing & Time Serv Proj 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Total Services 62,858.63 132,240.00 -69,381.37 47.5%

Total Expense 386,674.14 942,940.00 -556,265.86 41.0%

Net Ordinary Income -29,117.40 33,327.00 -62,444.40 -87.4%

Net Income -29,117.40 33,327.00 -62,444.40 -87.4%

Ozarks Transportation Organization
UPWP Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through December 2020

Page 3



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 1 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
Unified Planning Work Program 2nd Quarter Progress Report 
Period October 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 
 
Task 1 OTO General Administration 55% Complete 
 
1.1 Financial Management 
OTO prepared and presented the FY 2021 First Quarter Report, including monthly reimbursement 
requests for September, October, and November.  Biweekly payrolls were prepared and processed.   The 
OTO accountant maintained the monthly budget and accounting functions.   
 
1.2 Financial Audit 
The OTO worked with the Independent Auditor, Cinda Rodgers, CPA, to conduct a Financial Statement 
Audit of the FY 2020 Financial Statements.  The Audit was presented to the Executive Committee and 
accepted in December by the Board of Directors.   
 
1.3 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
Presentation and approval of UPWP Amendment One to/by the Board of Directors and submittal and 
processing with MoDOT, as well as accompanying changes to the OTO Operational Budget. 
 
1.4 Travel and Training  
Staff attended the following training during the 2nd Quarter: 
 

Transportation and General Planning 
Missouri Highway Safety Conference – 9/29-10/1  
Missouri APA Annual Conference 10/8 
Webinar – Funding Opportunity: Pilot Program for TOD 10/14 
Missouri Chamber Transportation Summit 10/21-10/22 
AMPO Annual Meeting 10/27-10/29 
MoDOT State Freight & Rail Plan - Steering Committee Meeting 11/17 
AMPO Active Transportation Working Group Webinar 12/10 
Freight in the Southeast Conference 12/14-12/16 
OCITE Chapter Meetings 
APA Board Meetings  
MPTA Meetings 
GIS 
MO Transportation Safety Workshop Demonstration - 10/19 
Esri Training MOOC: Spatial Data Science – 10/28 - 12/06  
NPMRDS Quarterly Webinar - 11/5 
Esri: Framework for Racial Equity and Community Outreach Webinar - 11/12 
FHWA Webinar: Using GIS Data for Dashboards – 11/18 
Esri Webinar: The Six Elements Required for Effective Civic Engagement - 11/18 
GOTUG Quarterly Webinar: Handling Data for GIS – 12/2 
AMPO GIS Group Quarterly Webinar – 12/8 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 2 
 

Other 
Streetlight Data Introduction and Demonstration 10/20 
 

1.4 General Administration and Contract Management 
Continued to track and monitor contracts and payments.  
 
1.5 Electronic Support for OTO Operations 
Staff continued to maintain the www.ozarkstransportation.org, www.giveusyourinput.org, 
www.ototrailstudy.com websites and maintained the Twitter and Facebook accounts with online 
updates.  Staff coordinated with IT company to address security concerns and other IT support. 
 
Task 2 OTO Committee Support 50% Complete 
 
2.1 OTO Committee Support 
One Board of Directors and two Technical Planning Committee meetings were conducted.  Agendas, 
minutes, and press releases were prepared for all meetings.  Staff members attend these meetings to 
assist in the function of the meetings and present relevant items. 
 
The following items were approved: 

• Chesterfield Lofts, LLC Lease Renewal 
• FY 2021 UPWP/Operational Budget Amendment One 
• Amendment 6 to the FY 2020-2023 TIP 
• Federal Functional Classification Change Request – City of Strafford – N. Orchard Drive, Stan 

Harriman Blvd. & E. Evergreen Street 
• FY 2020 Independent Financial Statement Audit Report 
• Financial Statements for 1st Quarter 2020-2021 Budget Year 
• 2021 Legislative Priorities 
• Annual Listing of Obligated Projects 
• TPC Chair Rotation 
• Appointment of 2021 OTO Officers 
• Amendment 7 to the FY 2020-2023 TIP 
• Safety, System Condition, System Performance, and Transit Safety Targets 

The following items were reviewed: 
• STIP Prioritization Update 
• September 30, 2020 Federal Funds Balance Report 
• Administrative Modifications Six and Seven to the FY 2020-2023 TIP 
• 2019 State of Transportation Report 
• 2021 Board of Directors and Technical Planning Committee Meeting Schedules 

 
One meeting of the Executive Committee was held in November and discussion included the FY 2020 
financial audit, 2021 legislative priorities, and 2021 meeting schedule. 
 
One Bicycle and Pedestrian meeting was held.  The November meeting included a discussion of a draft 
trail plan for the long-range transportation plan. 

http://www.ozarkstransportation.org/
http://www.giveusyourinput.org/
http://www.ototrailstudy.com/


   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 3 
 

The Local Coordinating Board for Transit held a meeting in November and reviewed the status of 5310 
vehicle orders, COVID-19 impacts, and discussed upcoming plan updates and possible agenda items. 
 
MoDOT Coordination Meetings continued to be held between OTO staff and MoDOT Southwest District 
staff to discuss projects and issues in the region.  OTO staff also participated on statewide Planning 
Partner calls with MoDOT leadership. 
 
2.2 Community Committee Participation    

• Southwest Regional Missouri Coalition for Roadway Safety 
• Southwest Missouri Council of Governments Board 
• SMCOG Transportation Advisory Committee 
• Springfield Traffic Advisory Board Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee 
• Republic Comprehensive Planning Committee 
• Ozarks Clean Air Alliance 
• Let’s Go Smart Transportation Collaborative 
• Community Partnership Council of Collaboratives 
• Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission 
• Springfield Walkability Team 
• Springfield Chamber Good Morning Springfield 
• Springfield Chamber Transportation Committee 
• Nixa Chamber 
• Republic Chamber 

 
2.3 OTO Policy and Administrative Documents 
OTO worked with the HR consultant to conduct an HR audit.  OTO worked with dues paying members to 
modify the Articles of Incorporation to modify the distribution of assets in the event of dissolution.  
 
2.4 Public Involvement 
Monitored and updated OTO social media and media outlets.  Continued to post incoming public 
comments to the Public Comment Database.  Implemented the Public Participation Plan by sending out 
meeting notices and press releases:   

• 2020-2023 TIP Amendment 6 
• Federal Functional Class Change – City of Strafford – N. Orchard Drive, Stan Harriman Blvd. & E. 

Evergreen Street 
• FY 2021 UPWP/Operational Budget Amendment One 
• Annual Listing of Obligated Projects 
• Performance Targets 
• 2020-2023 TIP Amendment 7 
• 2022-2025 TIP Public Input 

 
Provided all public comments to the OTO Board of Directors and Technical Committee for informational 
purposes.  Responded to public comment as appropriate. 
 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 4 
 

2.5 Member Attendance at OTO Meetings 
Meeting attendance was documented for In-Kind Match reporting.  A total of 61.93 committee member 
hours were reported. 
 
Task 3 General Planning and Plan Implementation 50% Complete  
 
3.1 OTO Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP), Transportation Plan 2040 
Continued to implement the recommendations within Transportation Plan 2040.  Attended Core 
Team/Study Meetings for 160/AA/CC, 60/125, and 60 West Corridor Study. 
 
3.2 Performance Measures 
OTO continued to participate on the MoDOT FAST Act Performance Measures Coordination calls.  The 
State of Transportation report, which outlines locally determined performance targets from 
Transportation Plan 2040, was shared with the Board of Directors in October.  OTO reviewed and the 
Board of Directors approved planning and support of MoDOT targets for Safety, System Condition, 
System Performance, and Transit Safety.  These were reported to MoDOT in December. 
 
3.3 Congestion Management Process Implementation 
Continued monitoring congestion related data.  
 
3.4 Federal Functional Classification Maintenance and Updates 
Processed a Federal Functional Classification Change for the City of Strafford.  The annual call for Federal 
Functional Classification changes was sent out in November.  No additional requests were received. 
 
3.5 Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan Implementation 
Monitored and processed reasonable progress extension requests for 2018 grant projects.  One BPAC 
meeting was held, which discussed the draft trail plan for inclusion in Destination 2045. 
 
3.6 Freight Planning 
Participated in one Heartland Freight Technology Plan meeting and provided feedback on consultant 
deliverables. Participated in the Freight in the Southeast conference. 

 
3.7 Traffic Incident Management Planning 
Held two TIM committee meetings. The annual TIM Self-Assessment was completed and draft TIM 
performance measures were reviewed.  
 
3.8 Air Quality Planning 
Requested fleet and fuel information from Missouri Department of Revenue.  Discussed EV vehicles and 
charging opportunities with City Utilities.  Monitored grant opportunities through DNR and the VW Trust 
Settlement.  Monitored air quality readings as reported weekly by MDNR.  Attended monthly OCAA 
meetings. 
 
 
 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 5 
 

3.9 Hazard Environmental Assessment 
 Updated GIS files associated with the Hazard Environmental Assessment Database. Collected ACS 2015 
– 2019 census data demographics for environmental justice populations. 

 
3.10 Demographics and Future Projections 
Continued to collect residential permit data from OTO jurisdictions and add to the GIS database for use 
in the annual growth trends report in the spring. Reviewed the 2019 census population estimates for 
dues calculation.  

 
3.11 Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
Updated the TIP database.  Retrieved files updated with revised 2019 AADT traffic volumes.  Updated 
residential building footprint data to include newly constructed housing developments in the OTO area. 
Completed conflation project integrating MoDOT SS Segments, Model links, Acyclica and RITIS travel 
time shapefiles, and county centerline feature attributes into one table for future projects and analysis. 
Added a gallery of Online GIS resources to the OTO website. Collected MoDOT 2019 TMS Planning data 
package from the MoDOT Box account. Coordinated with the City of Springfield for delivery of 2020 
aerial photography products. 
 
3.12 Mapping and Graphics Support for OTO Operations 
Updated the OTO Study Area graphic. Created a map of the Chadwick Flyer trail alignment showing 
mileage by jurisdiction. Converted future road classifications to a .kmz file for viewing in google earth. 
 
3.13 Support for Jurisdictions’ Plans 
Shared OTO permit data with SW MO Council of Governments for their work on area comprehensive 
plans. Provided updated service area square miles and population to CU Transit for their NTD FY20 
report. 
 
3.14 Studies of Parking, Land Use, and Traffic Circulation 
Discussion continued on needed improvements for a large development in Republic.  A review of 
potential traffic impacts was made for a development project in the northeast area of OTO’s region. 
 
3.15 Transportation Consultant/Modeling Services 
Worked with the City of Springfield and model consultant to begin project to analyze the impacts of the 
Grant Avenue Parkway improvements on the overall network.  
 
3.16 Civil Rights Compliance 
Began updating the Limited English Proficient and Title VI/ADA plans.  
 
3.17 Travel Demand Model Update 
Final model scenarios will be developed once a list of projects is developed for the Destination 2045 
LRTP. 
 
 
 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 6 
 

3.18 Transportation Plan 2045 (now known as Destination 2045) 
Continued to seek public involvement, including the use of Facebook Ads to encourage survey 
completion.  Ten thousand postcards were sent throughout the OTO region to garner additional survey 
responses.  Area communities and agencies were contacted for further outreach.  Discussed regional 
trail component at BPAC meetings in November.  Three Destination 2045 committee meetings were 
held.  Discussion included the major thoroughfare plan and street typologies, as well as financial 
projections, and project prioritization. 
 
3.19 Aerial Photography 
Aerial photography was received and payment was processed.  
 
Task 4 Project Selection and Programming 30% Complete  
 
4.1 FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 
4.2 FY 2022-2025 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Collected public input from interested parties and stakeholders. 
 
4.3 Project Programming 
FY 2020-2023 Amendments Six and Seven were approved by the Board of Directors.  Staff processed 
approved Amendment Six on the website.  Administrative Modification Seven was prepared and 
presented.   
 
4.4 Federal Funds Tracking 
Continued to monitor obligations and reasonable progress.  Developed Federal Funds Balance Report 
and Annual Listing of Obligated Projects, publishing the ALOP to the OTO website before the December 
deadline. 
 
4.5 Online TIP Tool Maintenance 
The online Transportation Improvement Program tool continues to be used for the Transportation 
Improvement Program.  Staff met with the provider to discuss upcoming changes. 
 
4.6 STIP Project Prioritization and Scenarios 
Scheduled three MoDOT Refining STIP Priority meetings to discuss projects that could be programmed in 
the STIP. Meetings are scheduled for January and February.  
 
Task 5 OTO Transit Planning 45% Complete  
 
5.1 Operational Planning 
Maintained a list of transit operators. 
 
5.2 Transit Coordination Plan Implementation 
Held LCBT meeting on November, discussing status of 5310 vehicle purchases, , COVID-19 impacts, and 
possible agenda items for 2021. 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 7 
 

5.3 Program Management Plan Implementation 
Reported on current award status at LCBT meeting in November.  
 
5.4 Data Collection and Analysis 
No data collected during the quarter.  
 
5.5 Community Support 
Provided support to public when contacted regarding access to transit services. Forwarded public 
comments received to the Technical Planning Committee and Board of Directors. Attended CU Transit 
Advisory meetings, Community Partnership Lets Go Smart Committee, and Community Focus Report 
Steering Committee meeting. 

 
5.6 ADA/Title VI Appeal Process 
OTO remains available as the appeal board for City Utilities paratransit ADA complaints.  No appeals 
were received.  
 
Task 6 City Utilities Transit Planning (FTA 5307 Funding for City Utilities) 50% Complete  
 
6.1 Operational Planning 

CU’s Open FTA Grants: 

CU’s FY 2019 Section 5307 grant, MO-2019-006; As of September 30, 2020, CU’s short-range transit 
planning, operating assistance grant request and preventive maintenance expenses were 100% 
complete.  CU has completed first 1% security project – bullet resistant glass at the Transit Center 
customer service window. However, the final cost on this project was lower than anticipated, so a 
second 1% security project will be started in the spring of 2021.   

CU’s FY 2020 Section 5307 grant, MO-2020-011; As of September 30, 2020, CU’s short-range transit 
planning and preventive maintenance is 100% complete.  Currently have $1.4 million remaining in 
operating assistance, due to some operating expenditures being paid at 100% through the CARES grant 
MO-2020-011.  Have not requested reimbursement for 1% security requirement due to the purchasing 
department’s focus being on pandemic response.  Hope to start the bid process for the security project 
in spring 2021 – this project will involve security lighting at highly used bus stops without shelters. 

CU’s FY2020 Section 5307 CARES grant, MO-2020-012; As of September 30, 2020, City Utilities has 
utilized $2,000,000 of CARES Act Funding.  This is consistent with budgeted plan of requesting 
$2,000,000 reimbursement annually until the grant is complete.  City Utilities is following FTA guidance 
and utilizing this funding for operating expenses such as fuel, admin labor and operations labor, 
however, any expense normally eligible under the Section 5307 programs is eligible. 

CU’s FY 2019 Section 5339 grant – CU executed grant application to FTA for the purchase of two, 35-foot 
fixed route buses.  This grant was be combined with MODOT’s Section 5339 funding transferred to CU. 
However, this grant was deleted in September 2019 due to a 5339 Low or No Emissions grant award in 
July 2019.  The FY 2019 Section 5339 grant is anticipated to be utilized for bus training simulators and 
small fleet vehicles, however, the funds have not yet been re-obligated.  The TIP was voted to be 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 8 
 

amended September 18th, 2019 to revise the document for the changes to planned expenditures for 
the FY 2018 Section 5339 grant. 

CU’s FY2019 Section 5339 (c) Low or No Emissions Grant, MO-2020-001 – This competitive grant was 
awarded to CU on July 26th, 2019.  This grant will allow CU to purchase two, 35-foot electric Gillig fixed 
route buses and two chargers.  This grant will be combined with a VW Trust award from the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources.  The electric buses are anticipated to be delivered towards the end of 
May 2021. 

CU’s FY 2018/2019/2020 Section 5310 grants, MO-2019-010 - CU executed FY 2019 FTA Section 5310 
grant on June 3, 2019. This grant combined Section 5310 funds from 2018, 2019 and 2020 for the W. 
Division ADA Sidewalk Project, in coordination with the City of Springfield’s storm water improvement 
project in that area.  The City of Springfield will provide the local match for the sidewalk project from 
their ¼ Cent Capital Improvement Sales Tax.  The Division Street sidewalk will be on the south side of 
Division Street between Kansas Expressway and West Avenue.  NEPA approval was received 4/1/2019, 
the design work is complete, and the RFP will be issued by the end of the year.  We anticipate 
construction will start in February 2021. 

CU’s FY 2017 Section 5310 grant, MO-2017-012; The application for the purchase of 19 bus shelters and 
new bus route signage was completed by September 30, 2017.  However, there was an unexpected cost 
savings that allowed the purchase of additional shelters.  Since the original requisition didn’t include any 
options to purchase additional shelters, a new RFP was completed to replace remaining (4) Phase I 
shelters and to order spare shelters.   The shelters were received April 20, 2020 but were unable to be 
installed due to the concrete contract with FTA language expiring around that time.  This was also at the 
onset on the COVID pandemic, so CU’s purchasing department was working on pandemic response 
rather than “unessential” projects.  As of September 30, 2020, it has been decided to use a concrete 
contract that does not include FTA language as CU will not be requesting FTA reimbursement for the 
concrete work.  It is anticipated for the Phase 1 replacement shelters to be installed by the end of the 
year. 

Appropriations for FY2021 have not yet been made. 

6.2 ADA Accessibility 

FTA Grant MO-2017-012 for replacement of Phase 1 shelters is still in progress.  All shelters have been 
received from the vendor but need to be installed.  Due to COVID-19, it has taken longer than 
anticipated for installation due to a temporary hold being put on “non-essential” projects. 

CU’s FY 2018/2019/2020 Section 5310 grant, MO-2019-010, has been awarded by FTA. This grant is for 
the W. Division ADA Sidewalk Project, in coordination with the City of Springfield’s storm water 
improvement project in that area.  The City of Springfield will provide the local match for the sidewalk 
project from their ¼ Cent Capital Improvement Sales Tax.  The Division Street sidewalk will be on the 
south side of Division Street between Kansas Expressway and West Avenue.  NEPA approval was 
received 4/1/2019, the design work is complete, and the RFP will be issued by the end of the year.  CU 
anticipates construction will start in February 2021. 

 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 9 
 

6.3 Transit Fixed Route and Regional Service Analysis Implementation 

No permanent route modifications have been made in this quarter.  All fixed routes are consistently 
evaluated to make improvements as needed. 

6.4 Service Planning 

Data collection for on-time performance by bus route is posted each week for all the bus operators to 
monitor how each route and bus operator are performing.   

CU is active in OTO and community committees involving discussions on Transit. 

6.5 Financial Planning 

CU Transit staff prepares and monitors the Transit Budget, Financial and Capital Project Plans monthly, 
quarterly, and annually.   

CU is active in OTO and community committees involving discussions on Transit. 

6.6 Competitive Contract Planning 

City Utilities Purchasing department ensures that CU Transit awards bids to the most competitive 
contracts and that all FTA guidelines and requirements are followed.  In the future, CU is considering 
studying opportunities for transit cost reductions using third-party and private sector providers for a 
portion of the paratransit bus service. 

6.7 Safety, Security and Drug and Alcohol Control Planning 

CU continues to monitor safety, security and DOT Drug and Alcohol control regulations monthly. 

The City Utilities Board of Public Utilities approved Transit’s PTASP plan on June 25th, 2020 and 
anticipate updating Certifications and Assurances prior to December 31st to meet the extended 
deadline established by FTA. 

6.8 Transit Coordination Plan Implementation 

CU has implemented the Transit Coordination Plan due to receiving Section 5310 grant funding.  The 
OTO provides annual training for applicants, including CU each fiscal year and provides the media 
outreach. 

6.9 Program Management Plan 

CU does not have to do a Program Management Plan for Section 5339 grant funding.  The OTO does do 
a Program Management Plan for the Section 5310 grant program. 

6.10 Data Collection and Analysis 

• CU collects and analyzes ridership data monthly for transit planning purposes.  
• CU is preparing for the annual Single Audit of the federal grants to be completed by external 

auditors in October and November 2020. 
• CU is gathering data for the annual National Transit Database report that is due January 31, 2020. 
 



   
 

OTO FY 2021 2nd Quarter Progress Report Page 10 
 

Task 7 Special Studies and Projects 10% Complete 
 
7.1 Continued Coordination with entities that are implementing Intelligent Transportation Systems 
Received information relating to volumes in terms of comparing to pre-Covid-19 levels.   
 
7.2 Grant Applications  

 
7.3 Other Special Studies in accordance with the Adopted Long-Range Transportation Plan 
Discussed exploring special studies in relation to Chadwick Flyer Trail and Highway FF in Battlefield.  
 
7.4 Travel Sensing & Travel Time Service Project  
COVID-19 delayed the collection of travel time data for 2020. 
 
Task 8 Transportation Demand Management 0% Complete  
 
8.1 Coordinate Employer Outreach Activities 
Member and Employer Outreach paused during COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
8.2 Collect and Analyze Data to Determine Potential Demand 

 
Task 9 MoDOT Transportation Studies & Data Collection 50% Complete  
MoDOT staff continued to work on transportation planning work in the OTO region that was eligible for 
MoDOT Direct Cost.  A total of 260 staff hours were completed. 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 4 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM II.B. 
 

FY 2021 UPWP Administrative Modification One 
Ozarks Transportation Organization 

(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 
 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 
An administrative modification to the 2021 Unified Planning Work Program, with accompanying changes 
to the Operational Budget, has been made to modify expenses and revenue to more accurately reflect 
billing this fiscal year. The change is to move $20,000 from In-Kind Meeting Expense to MoDOT Direct 
Services. In-Kind meeting attendance billing has been lower than expected. MODOT Direct Service Billing 
has been more than expected.  
 
The Executive Director approved the administrative modification on February 17, 2021 to approve this 
change. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATION ONLY 
 



 

 

 
 

 

February 17, 2021 

 
Ms. Britni O’Connor 
Transportation Planning Specialist 
Missouri Department of Transportation 
P. O. Box 270 
Jefferson City, MO  65102 

 

Dear Ms. O’Connor: 

Please find attached one (1) copy of the Fiscal Year 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
Administrative Modification One for the Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO). The FY2021 UPWP 
Administrative Modification One was approved by Executive Authority on February 17, 2021. The amended 
document does not change the overall federal amount of federal Consolidated Planning Grant (CPG) and 
Surface Transportation Block Grant funding from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA).  

The only changes included reflect the shifting of $20,000 from In-Kind Meeting Attendance to MoDOT Direct 
Services.  

We respectfully request that you forward this document to FHWA and FTA for approval. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Sara Fields 
Executive Director 
 

 



     
 

 
 

APPROVED BY OTO BOARD OF DIRECTORS:  June 18, 2020 
Amendment One Approved October 15, 2020 

Administrative Modification One Approved February 17, 2021 
 

Amendment One 

Unified Planning Work Program 

Fiscal Year 2021 
(July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021) 

 
 

 

   



 
 

 

 

 

The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and related statutes and regulations in all programs and activities. The MPO does not discriminate based 
on race, color, national origin, English proficiency, religious creed, disability, age, sex. Any person who 
believes he/she or any specific class of persons has been subjected to discrimination prohibited by Title VI 
or related statutes or regulations may, herself/himself or via a representative, file a written complaint 
with the MPO. A complaint must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after the date on which the 
person believes the discrimination occurred. A complaint form and additional information can be 
obtained by contacting the Ozarks Transportation Organization (see below) or at 
www.ozarkstransportation.org. 

 

 

For additional copies of this document or to request it in an accessible format, contact: 

                 By mail:  Ozarks Transportation Organization 
                                          2208 W Chesterfield Blvd., Suite 101 
                                           Springfield, MO  65807 
 
                 By Telephone:  417‐865‐3042, Ext. 100 

                 By Fax:  417‐862‐6013 

                 By Email  staff@ozarkstransportation.org 

 

 Or download it by going to www.ozarkstransportation.org. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The preparation of this report was financed in part by Metropolitan Planning Funds from the Federal 
Transit Administration and Federal Highway Administration, administered by the Missouri Department 
of Transportation.  Its contents do not necessarily reflect the official views or policies of the U.S. DOT.



UPWP 

2021 

Table of Contents                             

Page | i 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Table of Contents ...................................................................................................................................... i 

Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

Task 1 – OTO General Administration ...................................................................................................... 4 

Task 2 – OTO Committee Support ............................................................................................................ 7 

Task 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation ............................................................................10 

Task 4 – Project Selection and Programming .........................................................................................14 

Task 5 – OTO Transit Planning ................................................................................................................16 

Task 6 – City Utilities Transit Planning (FTA 5307 funding for City Utilities) ..........................................18 

Task 7 – Special Studies and Projects .....................................................................................................21  

Task 8 – Transportation Demand Management ....................................................................................23 

Task 9 – MoDOT Transportation Studies and Data Collection ...............................................................24 

Financial Summary .................................................................................................................................26 

OTO Boundary Map ................................................................................................................................28 

OTO Organization Chart .........................................................................................................................29 

Appendix A .............................................................................................................................................30 

Appendix B .............................................................................................................................................32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Introduction                                         UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 1 

 

Introduction 

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is a description of the proposed activities of the Ozarks 
Transportation Organization during Fiscal Year 2020 (July 2020 ‐ June 2021). The program is prepared 
annually and serves as a basis for requesting federal planning funds from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation through the Missouri Department of Transportation. All tasks are to be completed by 
OTO staff unless otherwise identified.  

It also serves as a management tool for scheduling, budgeting, and monitoring the planning activities of 
the participating agencies. This document was prepared by staff from the Ozarks Transportation 
Organization (OTO), the Springfield Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), with assistance 
from various agencies, including the Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT), the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), City Utilities (CU) Transit, and 
members of the OTO Technical Planning Committee consisting of representatives from each of the nine 
OTO jurisdictions. Federal funding is received through a Federal Transportation Grant from the Federal 
Highway Administration and the Federal Transit Administration, known as a Consolidated Planning Grant 
(CPG).  

The implementation of this document is a cooperative process of the OTO, Missouri Department of 
Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, the Federal Transit Administration, City Utilities 
Transit, and members of the OTO Technical Planning Committee and OTO Board of Directors. 

The OTO is interested in public input on this document and all planning products and transportation 
projects. The Ozarks Transportation Organization’s Public Participation Plan may be found on the OTO 
website at:  

https://media.ozarkstransportation.org/documents/2017_Public_Participation_Plan.pdf 

The planning factors used as a basis for the creation of the UPWP are: 

 Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global 
competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency; 

 Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non‐motorized users; 

 Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non‐motorized users; 

 Increase the accessibility and mobility of people and freight; 

 Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality of 
life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and state and local 
planned growth and economic development patterns; 

 Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between 
modes, for people and freight; 

 Promote efficient system management and operation; 

 Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system; 

 Improve the resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate 
stormwater impacts of surface transportation; and 

 Enhance travel and tourism. 



Important Metropolitan Planning Issues                                       UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 2 

 

Important Metropolitan Planning Issues 

 

The mission of the Ozarks Transportation Organization is: 

 

“To Provide a Forum for Cooperative Decision‐Making in Support of 
an Excellent Transportation System.” 

 

In fulfilling that mission, much staff time and effort are spent bringing together decision‐makers who 
make funding and planning decisions that better the transportation network, including all modes. 
Transportation Plan 2040 is continuing to guide the decisions of the region. 

Destination 2045, the Metropolitan Transportation Plan update, is underway. The public input process 
started in early 2020, and the initial draft should be ready for public comment in early 2021. While the 
plan has yet to be developed, the community seems to have a renewed interest in multimodal 
transportation. In addition, the lack of adequate revenue will be an obvious issue.  

Staff will continue to prioritize projects for placement in the Transportation Improvement Program and 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program. The work done during the last fiscal year in 
determining the best way to prioritize projects will be implemented during the next year. With the lack 
of needed funding, this will be a difficult task.  

Committee work will continue to look at Traffic Incident Management and Coordination, Transit 
Coordination and Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning. 

Most of the work undertaken by OTO recurs annually.  This work includes preparation of the 
Transportation Improvement Program, work with committees, soliciting public involvement, and 
implementing the various plans adopted by the OTO.  

 
 
 
 



Anticipated Consultant Contracts                                       UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 3 

 

Anticipated Consultant Contracts 
 
The table below lists the anticipated consultant contracts for the 2021 Fiscal Year.  Most of the contracts 
listed below are carryover multi‐year contracts.   
 

Cost Category     Budgeted Amount FY 2021 

Travel Sensing & Travel Time Services Project  $3,000 

Audit       $4,640 

Professional Services Fees     $50,000 

Data Storage/Backup     $4,400 

IT Maintenance Contract     $12,000 

Online TIP Tool Maintenance     $9,600 

Travel Demand Model Update     $15,000 

Transportation Consultant/Modeling Services  $20,000 

Webhosting      $900 

Payroll       $4,000 

Total Consultant Usage     $133,540 

 
 

Items to be purchased that exceed $5,000 

IT Maintenance Contract      $12,000 

Online TIP Tool Maintenance     $9,600 

Professional Services Fees     $50,000 

Transportation Consultant/Modeling Services  $30,000 

Travel Demand Model Update     $15,000 

Tablet Upgrade      $11,500 

Aerial Photos             $25,000 

         
 
 
 



TASK 1 – OTO General Administration                                       UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 4 

 

Task 1 ‐ OTO General Administration 

Conduct daily administrative activities including accounting, payroll, maintenance of equipment, 
software, and personnel needed for federally required regional transportation planning activities.  

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

1.1 Financial Management ......................................................................................................... $35,901 
July to June  Consultant Contract  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Preparation of quarterly financial reports, payment requests, payroll, and year‐end reports to 
MoDOT. 

 Maintenance of OTO accounts and budget, with reporting to Board of Directors.  

 Dues calculated, and statements mailed. 
 

1.2 Financial Audit ....................................................................................................................... $7,000 
August to December 
Consultant Contract  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Conduct an annual and likely single audit of FY 2020 and report to Board of Directors.  

 Implement measures as suggested by audit. 
 

1.3 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) .............................................................................. $11,250  
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Amendments to the FY 2021 UPWP as necessary. 

 Development of the FY 2022 UPWP, including subcommittee meetings, presentation at 
Technical Planning Committee and Board of Directors Meetings, and public participation in 
accordance with the OTO Public Participation Plan. 

 UPWP Quarterly Progress Reports. 

 Invoicing and Year‐end Report 

 Obtain Board of Directors, MoDOT and ONE DOT approval of FY2022 UPWP 
 
1.4 Travel and Training ............................................................................................................... $47,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO  

 Travel to meetings regionally nationally and statewide. Training and development of OTO staff 
and OTO members through educational programs that are related to OTO work committees. 
Possible training includes:   

o Association of MPOs Annual Conference 
o Mid‐American Geographic Information Consortium (MAGIC) Conference 
o Institute for Transportation Engineers Conferences including meetings of the Missouri 

Valley Section and Ozarks Chapter  
o ITE Web Seminars 
o Missouri Chapter and National, American Planning Association Conference and Activities 
o Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Advanced Training (ESRI’s Arc Products) 
o Missouri Public Transit Association Annual Conference 



TASK 1 – OTO General Administration                                       UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 5 

 

o MoDOT, Local and OTO Planning Partners Meetings 
o MoDOT Statewide Planning Partner Meeting (Jefferson City) 
o Government Finance Officers Association 
o Employee Educational Assistance 
o Provide Other OTO Member Training Sessions, as needed and appropriate 
o Transportation Research Board Training and Conference 
o Performance Based Planning Training 

 
1.5 General Administration and Contract Management ............................................................. $25,000 
July to June  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Coordinate contract negotiations 

 Update the governing Memorandum of Understanding.  

 Prepare contract Addendums. 

 Legal Services. 

 Bylaw amendments as needed. 
 
1.6 Electronic Support for OTO Operations ................................................................................ $36,000 
July to June  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Maintain and update website www.ozarkstransportation.org.  

 Maintain and update website www.Let’sGoSmart.org. 

 Maintain and update OTO Facebook and Twitter pages. 

 Software updates. 

 Web hosting, backup services and maintenance contracts. Consultant Contract 

 Graphics and website updates.  
 

End Products for FY 2021 

 Complete quarterly progress reports, payment requests and the end‐of‐year report provided to 
MoDOT. 

 Financial reporting to the Board of Directors. 

 Calculate dues and send out statements. 

 FY 2020 Audit Report. 

 Adoption of FY 2022 UPWP. 

 Execute annual CPG Grant.  

 FY 2021 UPWP Amendments as needed. 

 Attendance of OTO staff and OTO members at the various training programs.  

 Legal Document revisions as needed. 

 Monthly content updates to websites. 

 Social media postings. 

 Graphics for documents. 

 Legal services. 

 Updated By‐laws 
 

 



TASK 1 – OTO General Administration                                       UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 6 

 

Tasks Completed in FY 2020 

 Quarterly progress reports, payment requests and year end reports for MoDOT (Completed June 
2020). 

 Quarterly Financial Reporting to the Board of Directors (Completed June 2020). 

 Dues calculated and mailed statements for FY 2020 (Completed April 2020). 

 FY 2019 Audit Report (December 2019). 

 FY 2021 UPWP developed and approved by OTO Board of Directors, MoDOT and ONE DOT 
(Completed June 2020). 

 Staff attended various conferences and training (Completed June 2020). 

 Monthly website maintenance (Completed June 2020). 

 Social Media Postings. 

 Graphics for documents. 

 Legal Services 

 UPWP Amendments and Administrative Modifications. 
 

Training Attended in FY 2020 

 Missouri GIS Conference  

 Ohio Freight Conference/MAFC Conference 

 Highway Safety & Traffic Blueprint Conference 

 APA Conferences 

 Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations Annual Conference 

 Grants Management Training‐ Grants Management USA 

 MoDOT AV/CV Workshop 

 OCITE Training 

 SHRM and SAHRA Training 

 AGA and GFOA Trainings 

 MoDOT Statewide Planning Partner Meeting (Jefferson City) 
 
 

Funding Sources 

Local Match Funds   $26,415  18.0851% 

Federal CPG Funds   $115,541  71.0359% 

Federal STBG Funds  $17,695  10.879% 

Total Funds   $162,651  100.00% 



TASK 2 – OTO Committee Support                               UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 
 

Page | 7 

 

Task 2 – OTO Committee Support 

Support various committees of the OTO and participate in various community committees directly 
relating to regional transportation planning activities. 

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

2.1 OTO Committee Support .................................................................................................... $145,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Conduct and staff all Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, Board of Directors, Executive 
Committee, Local Coordinating Board for Transit, Technical Planning Committee and Traffic 
Incident Management meetings.  

 Respond to individual committee requests.   

 Facilitate and administer any OTO subcommittees formed during the Fiscal Year. 
 

2.2 Community Committee Participation ................................................................................... $19,205 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Participate in and encourage collaboration among various community committees directly 
related to transportation.  Committees include: 

o City of Springfield Traffic Advisory Board 
o Community Partnership Transportation Collaborative 
o CU Fixed Route Advisory Committee 
o Missouri Public Transit Association 
o MoDOT Blueprint for Safety 
o Ozarks Clean Air Alliance and Clean Air Action Plan Committee 
o Ozark Greenways Technical Committee 
o Ozark Greenways Sustainable Transportation Advocacy Resource Team (STAR Team) 
o SeniorLink Transportation Committee 
o The Springfield Area Chamber of Commerce Transportation Committee 
o The Southwest Missouri Council of Governments Board and Transportation Advisory 

Committee 
o Area Chambers of Commerce 
o Worked with Springfield Transportation Collaborative (Completed June 2020). 
o Other committees as needed   

 
2.3 OTO Policy and Administrative Documents .......................................................................... $10,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Process amendments to bylaws, policy documents, and administrative staff support consistent 
with the OTO organizational growth.   

 
 
 
 



TASK 2 – OTO Committee Support                               UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 
 

Page | 8 

 

2.4 Public Involvement ............................................................................................................... $32,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Maintain OTO website with public comments posted by work product.  

 Publish public notices and press releases. 

 Comply with Missouri Sunshine Law requirements, including record retention. 

 Annual Public Participation Plan (PPP) Evaluation. 

 Continue to utilize social media for public education and input. 
 

2.5 Member Attendance at OTO Meetings ............................................................................... $316,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO and Member Jurisdictions 

 OTO member jurisdiction member’s time spent at OTO meetings. 
 
 
End Products for FY 2021 
 

 Conduct meetings, prepare agendas and meeting minutes for OTO Committees, Subcommittees, 
and Board of Directors. 

 Attendance of OTO staff and OTO members at various community committees. 

 Revisions to bylaws, inter‐local agreements, and the Public Participation Plan as needed. 

 Document meeting attendance for in‐kind reporting. 

 Public input tracked and published. 

 Continued work with the MoDOT Blueprint for Safety. 

 Implementation of PPP through website and press release. 

 Annual PPP Evaluation. 
 
Tasks Completed in FY 2020 
 

 Conduct meetings, prepare agendas and meeting minutes for OTO Committees, Subcommittees, 
and Board of Directors. 

 Documented meeting attendance for in‐kind reporting (Completed June 2020). 

 Staff participated in multiple community committees (Completed June 2020). 

 Update of Public Participation Plan (PPP) and implementation of PPP through website and press 
releases (Completed June 2020). 

 Public input tracked and published (Completed June 2020). 

 Staff attended meetings and worked with the MO Coalition of Roadway Safety SW District to 
evaluate projects (Completed June 2020). 

 One Bylaw Amendment. 

 Annual PPP Evaluation. 
 
 
 
 

 



TASK 2 – OTO Committee Support                               UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 
 

Page | 9 

 

Funding Sources           

Local Match Funds   $7,893  14.1687% 

In‐kind Services*  $316,000  3.9164% 

Federal CPG Funds  $172,408  71.0359% 

Federal STBG Funds  $26,404  10.879% 

Total Funds   $2422,705                              100.00%                                                  
*The maximum amount of in‐kind credit available to the OTO is 80% of the total value of in‐kind time.



TASK 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation                             UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

 

Page | 10 

 

Task 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation 

This task addresses general planning activities, including the OTO Long Range Transportation Plan 
(LRTP), approval of the functional classification map, the Congestion Management Process (CMP), and 
the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, as well as the implementation of related plans and policies.  FAST Act 
guidance will continue to be incorporated as it becomes available. 

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

3.1 OTO Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP), Transportation Plan 2040 ............................... $38,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Process amendments to the Long‐Range Transportation Plan, including the Major Thoroughfare 
Plan. 

 Continued Implementation of Action Items 

 One‐page summary report on status of implementation plan 
 

3.2 Performance Measures ........................................................................................................ $23,705 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Continue to set and monitor performance targets, in coordination with MoDOT and City 
Utilities, as outlined in MAP‐21 and continued by the FAST Act. 

 Production of an annual state of transportation report to monitor the performance measures as 
outlined in the Long‐Range Transportation Plan, incorporating connections to FAST Act 
performance measures.  
 

3.3 Congestion Management Process Implementation ............................................................... $12,000 
July to December  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Coordinate ongoing data collection efforts.  

 Review goals and implementation strategies to ensure effective measurements are being used 
for evaluation of the system. 

 Use travel time data for Annual Report. 

 Conduct before and after analysis for completed projects.  
 
3.4 Federal Functional Classification Maintenance and Updates .................................................. $5,300 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Annual call for updates. 

 Other periodic requests will be processed as received. 

 Seek approval of requests by OTO Board, MoDOT, and USDOT.   
 
3.5 Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan Implementation ........................................................................ $25,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 
 
 



TASK 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation                             UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

 

Page | 11 

 

 The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee will continue the coordination and monitoring 
of the implementation of the OTO Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan and Regional Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Trail Investment Study. 

 
3.6 Freight Planning ..................................................................................................................... $9,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Participate in the Southwest Missouri Freight Advisory Committee. The goal is to analyze local 
goods movement and identify essential freight corridors. 

 Participation in the Heartland Freight Technology Plan. 

 Coordinate local stakeholders for Heartland Freight Technology Plan. 
 
3.7 Traffic Incident Management Planning ................................................................................... $9,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO  

 Continued Implementation of the Traffic Incident Management Action Plan. 
 
3.8 Air Quality Planning ............................................................................................................... $7,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Staff serves on the Ozarks Clean Air Alliance along with the Springfield Department of 
Environmental Services, which is implementing the regional Clean Air Action Plan, in hopes to 
preempt designation as a non‐attainment area for ozone and PM2.5. 
 

3.9 Hazard Environmental Assessment ......................................................................................... $5,000 
July to December 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Use database to identify endangered species and flood vulnerable facilities with potential 
transportation improvements. 

 
3.10 Demographics and Future Projections ................................................................................ $17,400 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Continue to analyze growth and make growth projections for use in transportation decision‐
making by collecting and compiling development data into a demographic report that will be 
used in travel demand model runs, plan updates, and planning assumptions. 
 

3.11 Geographic Information Systems (GIS) ............................................................................... $39,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Continue developing the Geographic Information System (GIS) and work on inputting data into 
the system that will support Transportation Planning efforts.  Specific emphasis will be given to 
incorporating traffic data. 

 GIS licenses.  
 
 



TASK 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation                             UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

 

Page | 12 

 

3.12 Mapping and Graphics Support for OTO Operations ........................................................... $18,700 
December to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Development and maintenance of mapping and graphics for OTO activities, including, but not 
limited to, the OTO website, OTO publications, and other printed or digital materials. 

 
3.13 Support for Jurisdictions Plans ............................................................................................ $10,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Provide support for Long Range Transportation Planning for member jurisdictions. 

 Development a transportation planning one‐sheet handout and host short trainings as 
requested.  

 
3.14 Studies of Parking, Land Use, and Traffic Circulation ............................................................. $7,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Studies that are requested by member jurisdictions to look at traffic, parking, or land use.  
 
3.15 Transportation Consultant/Modeling Services .................................................................... $20,000 
July to June 
Consultant Contract  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Travel Demand Model Scenarios to assist with Long Range Transportation Plan implementation. 

 Data collection efforts to support the OTO planning products, signal timing, and transportation 
decision‐making. 
 

3.16 Civil Rights Compliance ........................................................................................................ $5,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Meet federal and state reporting requirements for Title VI and Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). 

 Semiannual DBE reporting. 

 Semiannual Title VI/ADA reporting. 

 Accept and process complaint forms and review all projects for Title VI/ADA compliance. 

 Continue to include Environmental Justice and Limited English Proficiency requirements in 
planning process. 

 
3.17 Travel Demand Model Update ............................................................................................ $15,000 
July to June 
Consultant Contract  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Develop model scenario for financially constrained 20‐year project list.  
 

 
 
 



TASK 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation                             UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

 

Page | 13 

 

3.18 Transportation Plan 2045 ................................................................................................... $39,700 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Continue to develop Draft Plan 

 Seek public input on Draft 

 Final Plan adoption 
 
3.19 Aerial Photography ............................................................................................................ $25,000 
July to August 
Responsible Agency – OTO  

 Cooperatively Purchase Aerial Photography with the City of Springfield, City Utilities, and other 
local jurisdictions.  OTO pays a flat fee of the overall expected cost of $273,195.50. 100% of the 
OTO portion will be used for regional transportation planning.  

 
End Products for FY 2021 

 Amendments to the LRTP as necessary. 

 Continued implementation of Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan with report documenting 
accomplishments. 

 Continued monitoring of attainment status. 

 Demographic Report. 

 Annual State of Transportation Report. 

 Studies in accordance with Long Range Transportation Plan as needed.  

 Federal Functional Classification Map maintenance and updates. 

 GIS maintenance and mapping. 

 Travel Demand Model update. 

 Transportation data in GIS. 

 Other projects as needed. 

 Semiannual DBE reporting submitted to MoDOT. 

 Title VI/ADA semiannual reporting and complaint tracking submitted to MoDOT. 

 Implementation of Traffic Incident Management Action Plan.  

 Adoption of ongoing performance targets as needed.  
 

Tasks Completed in FY 2020 

 Major Thoroughfare Plan Amendments 

 Maintenance of GIS System Layers (Completed June 2020). 

 Continued Monitoring of Attainment Status (Completed June 2020). 

 Performance Measure Report (Completed July 2019). 

 Assist jurisdictions compliance with Major Thoroughfare Plan. 

 Annual State of Transportation Report. 

 Bike/Ped Implementation Report (October 2019) 

 Called for Federal Function Class Updates. 

 TIM Implementation Report. 

 DBE Report submitted to MoDOT (Completed October 2019 and April 2020). 

 Title VI Questionnaire Report submitted to MoDOT (Completed October 2019 and February 2020). 



TASK 3 – General Planning and Plan Implementation                             UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

 

Page | 14 

 

 Title VI Annual Survey submitted to MoDOT (Completed February 2020). 

 Completed travel time analysis for prioritization purposes. 

 Aerial Photography files received 

 Congestion Management Process Update 
 
 
 
Funding Sources 
 
Local Match Funds     $60,280  18.0851% 

Federal CPG Funds   $236,766  71.0359% 

Federal STBG Funds  $36,259  10.879% 

Total Funds   $333,305  100.00% 



TASK 4 – Project Selection and Programming                              UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 15 

 

Task 4 – Project Selection and Programming 

Prepare a four‐year program for anticipated transportation improvements and amendments as needed.  

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

 
4.2 FY 2022‐2025 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) ................................................... $27,000 
October to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Begin development of the 2022‐2025 TIP. 

 Conduct the Public Involvement Process for the TIP (October‐August). 

 Work with the TIP subcommittees. 

 Complete Draft document. 

 Align document with MoDOT fiscal year. 
 
4.3 Project Programming ........................................................................................................... $21,705 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Process all modifications to the FY 2020‐2023 and the FY 2021‐2024 TIPs including the 
coordination, advertising, public comment, Board approval and submissions to MoDOT for 
incorporation in the STIP. 

 Solicit and advertise for projects.   

 Award funding and program projects. 
 

4.4 Federal Funds Tracking ......................................................................................................... $13,200 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Gather obligation information and develop the Annual Listing of Obligated Projects and publish 
to website.  

 Monitor STBG‐Urban and TAP balances. 

 Track area cost‐share projects. 

 Publish Funds Balance Report two times per year. 

 Track reasonable progress on project implementation following programming. 
 
4.5 Online TIP Tool Maintenance ................................................................................................. $9,600 
July to June 
Consultant Contract  
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Maintenance contract for web‐based tool to make an online searchable database for projects.   
 

4.6 STIP Project Prioritization and Scenarios .............................................................................. $17,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Revise Prioritization Criteria and score projects.   

 Subcommittee meetings to rank projects 



TASK 4 – Project Selection and Programming                              UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 16 

 

 Final recommendations provided to MoDOT 
 

End Product(s) for FY 2021 

 TIP amendments, as needed. 

 Draft of the FY 2022‐2025 Transportation Improvement Program. 

 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects. 

 Federal Funds Balance Reports. 

 Online searchable database of TIP projects. 

 Award funding and program projects.  

 STIP Prioritization and Scenarios 

 Revised Prioritization Criteria as warranted 

 Publish Funds Balance Report 
 

Tasks Completed in FY 2020 

 Amended the FY 2020‐2023 TIP numerous times (Completed June 2020). 

 Annual Listing of Obligated Projects for FY 2020 (Completed December 2019). 

 Maintained fund balance information (Completed June 2020). 

 Published funds balance report 

 Maintained online searchable database of TIP projects (Completed June 2020). 

 Draft 2021‐2024 TIP 

 Revised Prioritization Criteria 
 

 
 
Funding Sources 
 
Local Match Funds   $16,097  18.0851% 

Federal CPG Funds   $63,226  71.0359% 

Federal STBG Funds  $9,683  10.879% 

Total Funds   $89,005  100.00% 



TASK 5 – OTO Transit Planning                                                                                                                        UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 17 

 

Task 5 – OTO Transit Planning 

Prepare plans to provide efficient and cost‐effective transit service for transit users.  City Utilities (CU) is 
the primary fixed‐route transit operator in the OTO region.  Fixed route service is provided within the 
City of Springfield seven days a week.  City Utilities also offers paratransit service for those who cannot 
ride the fixed‐route bus due to a disability or health condition.   

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

5.1 Operational Planning ............................................................................................................. $8,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO 

 OTO staff shall support operational planning functions with available data. 

 Occasionally OTO staff, upon the request of City Utilities (CU), provides information toward the 
National Transit Database Report, such as the data from the National Transit Database bus 
survey. 

 Attend the CU Advisory Committee. 
  
5.2 Transit Coordination Plan Implementation ........................................................................... $10,800 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO, Human Service Transit Providers 

 Transit Coordination Plan Implementation with one‐page report on status of action items. 

https://media.ozarkstransportation.org/documents/Transit‐Coordination‐Plan‐2017.pdf 
 As part of the TIP process, a competitive selection process will be conducted for selection of 

projects utilizing relevant federal funds.  

 OTO staffing of the Local Coordinating Board for Transit. 

 OTO staff to maintain a list of operators developed in the transit coordination plan for use by 
City Utilities (CU) and other transit providers in the development of transit plans.  

 Research additional funding for senior centers and human service agencies. 
 

5.3 Program Management Plan Implementation .......................................................................... $5,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO  

 Continue to implement the Program Management Plan. 

https://media.ozarkstransportation.org/documents/Program‐Management‐Plan‐
2018.pdf 

 
5.4 Data Collection and Analysis ................................................................................................ $10,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO 

 OTO will assist CU in providing necessary demographic analysis for proposed route and/or fare 
changes. 

 OTO’s staff assistance in collecting ridership data for use in transit planning and other OTO 
planning efforts. 

 Explore barriers to transit use. 
 



TASK 5 – OTO Transit Planning                                                                                                                        UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 18 

 

5.5 Community Support ............................................................................................................... $6,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO  

 OTO will assist the City of Springfield in transit planning for the Impacting Poverty Commission 
support initiatives.   

 Assist City of Springfield in exploring high frequency transit. 

 Attend Missouri Public Transit Board meetings. 

5.6 ADA/Title VI Appeal Process ................................................................................................... $3,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO 

 OTO staff assistance on CU Transit ADA/Title VI Appeal Process.  
 

End Products for FY 2021 
 

 Transit agency coordination  

 Special Studies  

 LCBT agendas, minutes, and meetings. 

 CU Transit ADA/Title VI Appeals as requested. 

 Data collection 

 PMP review 

 Monitor 5310 vehicle delivery and OTO balance.  

 Continued Transit Coordination Plan Implementation 

 Regional paratransit coordination 

 Transit Signal Priority Committee 
 

Tasks Completed in FY 2020 
 

 Solicited for 5310 FTA funding, rank applications and program projects for TIP amendments 
(Completed December 2019). 

 LCBT agenda, minutes, and meetings (Completed June 2020) 

 Transit agency coordination 

 CU Transit Services Origin/Destination Accessibility Analysis 
 

Funding Sources  
 
Local Match Funds   $7,741  18.0851% 
 
Federal CPG Funds   $30,403  71.0359% 
 
Federal STBG Funds  $4,656  10.879% 

Total Funds   $42,800  100%



TASK 6 – City Utilities Transit Planning FTA 5307 Funding for City Utilities                                            UPWP                

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 19 

 

Task 6 – City Utilities Transit Planning (FTA 5307 Funding for City Utilities) 

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

6.1 Operational Planning ......................................................................................................... $123,312 

July to June 

Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 Route analysis. 

 City Utilities Transit grant submittal and tracking. 

 City Utilities Transit collection and analysis of data required for the National Transit Database 
Report.   

 City Utilities Transit participation in Ozarks Transportation Organization committees and related 
public hearings.    

 CU Transit collection of data required to implement the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and non‐discriminatory practices (FTA Line Item Code 44.24.00). 

6.2 ADA Accessibility .................................................................................................................. $22,000 

July to June 

Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 CU Transit ADA accessibility projects for the past New Freedom grants and future Section 5310 
grants. 
 

6.3 Transit Fixed Route and Regional Service Analysis Implementation ........................................ $8,100 

July to June 

Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 CU will implement recommendations of the Transit Fixed Route Regional Service Analysis. 
 

6.4 Service Planning ................................................................................................................... $54,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 Collection of data from paratransit operations as required.   

 CU Transit development of route and schedule alternatives to make services more efficient and 
cost‐effective within current hub and spoke system operating within the City of 
Springfield.  (FTA Line Item Code 44.23.01)   

 Title VI service planning. 
 

6.5 Financial Planning ................................................................................................................ $37,000 

July to June 

Responsible Agency – City Utilities 

 CU Transit preparation and monitoring of long and short‐range financial and capital plans and 
identification of potential revenue sources.   

 
 
 
 



TASK 6 – City Utilities Transit Planning FTA 5307 Funding for City Utilities                                            UPWP                

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 20 

 

6.6 Competitive Contract Planning ............................................................................................... $1,780 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 CU Transit will study opportunities for transit cost reductions using third‐party and private 
sector providers.    

 
6.7 Safety, Security and Drug and Alcohol Control Planning ......................................................... $5,900 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 Implementation of additional safety and security policies as required by FAST Act. 
                 

6.8 Transit Coordination Plan Implementation ............................................................................. $6,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – City Utilities and Ozarks Transportation 

 Updating and implementation of the Transit Coordination Plan, due to Section 5310 grants and 
MAP‐21 changes. To include annual training for applicants of 5310 funding and a focus on 
education, including media outreach. 
 

6.9 Program Management Plan .................................................................................................... $3,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 Review the existing program management plan to ensure compliance with FAST Act and future 
reauthorization.  Depending on final federal guidance Section 5339 grants may require a 
Program Management Plan. 

 
6.10 Data Collection and Analysis................................................................................................. $8,908 
 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – City Utilities 

 Update demographics for CU’s Title VI and LEP Plans. 

 CU will collect and analyze, ridership data for use in transit planning and other OTO planning 
efforts. 

 TAM Plan – CU will be conducting the data gathering, asset analysis and reporting activities to 
send asset data to MODOT to be included on the MODOT TAM Plan.  
 
 

End Products for FY 2021 

 Operational Planning 

 ADA Accessibility 

 Fixed Route Analysis 

 Service Planning 

 Financial Planning 

 Competitive Contract Planning 

 Safety Planning 



TASK 6 – City Utilities Transit Planning FTA 5307 Funding for City Utilities                                            UPWP                

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 21 

 

 Transit Coordination Plan 

 Program Management Plan 

 Data Collection & Analysis 
 

Tasks to be Completed in FY 2020 

 Operational Planning 

 ADA Accessibility 

 Fixed Route Analysis 

 Service Planning 

 Financial Planning 

 Competitive Contract Planning 

 Safety, Security and Drug and Alcohol Planning 

 Transit Coordination Plan 

 Data Collection & Analysis 
 
 
Funding Sources 

CU Match Funds                                               $54,000                                       20% 

FTA 5307 Funds                                              $216,000                                       80% 

Total Funds                                                      $270,000                                     100% 

 

 
 

 
 



TASK 7 – Special Studies and Projects                                                                   UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 22 

 

Task 7 – Special Studies and Projects 
 

Conduct special transportation studies as requested by the OTO Board of Directors, subject to funding 
availability.  Priority for these studies shall be given to those projects that address recommendations 
and implementation strategies from the Long‐Range Transportation Plan. 

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

7.1 Continued Coordination with entities that are implementing Intelligent Transportation Systems
 .................................................................................................................................................... $8,750 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Coordination with the Traffic Management Center in Springfield and with City Utilities Transit as 
needed.  
 

7.2 Grant Applications  ................................................................................................................. $6,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Working on partnerships with DOT, HUD, EPA, and USDA through developing applications for 
discretionary funding programs for livability and sustainability planning.  Project selection could 
result in OTO administering livability/sustainability‐type projects. 
  

7.3 Other Special Studies in accordance with the Adopted Long‐Range Transportation Plan ...... $11,500 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Studies relating to projects in the Long‐Range Transportation Plan. 

 Continued work with City of Springfield to update the Comprehensive Plan. 

 Continued work with City of Republic to update the Comprehensive Plan. 

 Continued work with City of Nixa to update the Comprehensive Plan. 

 Continued work with City of Strafford to update the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
7.4 Travel Sensing & Travel Time Service Project .......................................................................... $3,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Ongoing maintenance of WiFi travel time units. 
 
End Products for FY 2021 

 ITS Coordination. 

 Grant Applications. 

 Study for projects in the Long‐Range Transportation Plan. 
 
Tasks Completed in FY 2020 

 ITS Coordination (Completed June 2020). 

 Worked with City of Springfield Comprehensive Plan Update. 

 Worked with City of Republic Comprehensive Plan Update. 



TASK 7 – Special Studies and Projects                                                                   UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 23 

 

 Ongoing maintenance of Wifi travel time units. 

 Explored BUILD Grant/INFRA Grant Opportunities. 
Funding Sources    

Local Match Funds   $5,380  18.0851% 

Federal CPG Funds   $21,133  71.0359% 

Federal STBG Funds  $3,237  10.879% 

Total Funds   $29,750  100.00% 



TASK 8 – Transportation Demand Management                                                                     UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 24 

 

Task 8 – Transportation Demand Management 

Planning Activities to support the Regional Rideshare program, as well as efforts to manage demand on 
the transportation system. 
 
Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

8.1 Coordinate Employer Outreach Activities ............................................................................... $4,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agencies – OTO, City of Springfield 

 Work with the City of Springfield to identify and coordinate with major employers to develop 
employer‐based programs that promote ridesharing and other transportation demand 
management (TDM) techniques within employer groups.  

 Update the Rideshare Brochure design and publication. 
 
8.2 Collect and Analyze Data to Determine Potential Demand ................................................... $15,000 
July to June 
Responsible Agency – OTO 

 Gather and analyze data to determine the best location in terms of demand to target 
ridesharing activities.  

 

End Product(s) for FY 2021 

 Annual report of TDM activities, including number of users, employer promotional activities, 
results of location data analysis, and benefits to the region. 

 

Tasks Completed in FY 2020 

 Annual report of TDM activities, including number of users, employer promotional activities, 
results of location data analysis, and benefits to the region. 

 Updated Rideshare Brochure. 

 New Rideshare Informational signs to reflect transition to web‐based system  
 

Funding Sources 
       
Local Match Funds  $3,436  18.0851% 

Federal CPG Funds  $13,497  71.0359% 

Federal STBG Funds  $2,067  10.879% 

Total Funds  $19,000  100.00% 

 
 

 



TASK 9 – MoDOT Transportation Studies & Data Collection                                                                     UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 25 

 

Task 9 – MoDOT Transportation Studies & Data Collection 

Work Elements  Estimated Cost 

MoDOT Transportation Studies and Data Collection ................................................................ $243,724 
July to June ......................................................................................... MoDOT Southwest District ‐ $243,724 
Responsible Agency – MoDOT Southwest District 

 MoDOT, in coordination with OTO and using non‐federal funding, performs several activities to 
improve the overall efficiency of the metropolitan transportation system. 

o OTO and MoDOT work to conduct a Traffic Count Program to provide hourly and daily 
volumes for use in the Congestion Management Process, Long Range Transportation 
Plan, and Travel Demand Model.   

o Transportation studies would be conducted to provide accident data for use in the 
Congestion Management Process.  

o Speed studies would be conducted to analyze signal progression to meet requirements 
of the Congestion Management Process.  

o Miscellaneous studies to analyze congestion along essential corridors may also be 
conducted. 

o Maintenance of the travel time collection units. 
 

MoDOT Position 
Annual 
Salary 

Annual 
Fringe 

Annual 
Additive  Total 

% 
Time  Eligible 

        

Traffic Center Manager 
         
$73,956    $55,460    $8,335    $137,750   1%   $          1,378  

Senior Traffic Study 
Specialist 

    
$55,968    $43,532    $6,308    $105,808   7%   $          7,407  

Senior Traffic Study 
Specialist 

       
$60,276    $57,178    $6,793    $124,247   1%   $          1,242  

Senior Information Systems 
Technologist 

        
$49,056    $45,583  

         
$5,529    $100,167   5%   $          5,008  

Senior Traffic Technician  $41,088    $41,174    $4,631  
    
 $86,893   10%   $          8,689  

Total          $        23,724  
 

MoDOT Position 

Annual 

Salary 

Annual 

Fringe 

Annual 

Additive 
Total  % Time  Eligible 

             
Traffic Center 

Manager 
$73,956   $55,460   $8,335   $137,750   5.000%  $6,888  



TASK 9 – MoDOT Transportation Studies & Data Collection                                                                     UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
 

Page | 26 

 

Senior Traffic Study 

Specialist 
$55,968   $43,532   $6,308   $105,808   10.000%  $10,581  

Senior Traffic Study 

Specialist 
$60,276   $57,178   $6,793   $124,247   5.000%  $6,212  

Senior Information 

Systems Technologist 
$49,056   $45,583   $5,529   $100,167   6.997%  $7,009  

Senior Traffic 

Technician 
$41,088   $41,174   $4,631   $86,893   15.000%  $13,034  

Total  

         

$43,724  

             
 

End Products for FY 2021 

 Annual traffic counts within the OTO area for MoDOT roadways.  

 Annual crash data. 

 Speed Studies. 

 Maintenance of the travel time collection units. 
 

 

 

Tasks Completed in FY 2020 

 Annual traffic counts within the OTO area for MoDOT roadways (Completed June 2020). 
 Annual crash data (Completed June 2020).  

 Speed Studies (Completed June 2020). 

 Signal Timing (Completed June 2020). 
 

Funding Sources    

 Value of MoDOT Direct Costs                         $243,724 
                                                                                  X 80%  
Credit amount available for local match       $18,979.2034,979.2 
(Federal pro‐rata share of value of direct costs – no actual funds) 

 



Financial Summary                                                                                                                                            UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
                                                                                                                                                        

Page | 27 

 

Expenditure Summary by Work Task   
 

 
 

   Local Funding   Federal Funding    

Task 
Local 
Match 

(14.999%) 

City 
Utilities 

In‐Kind 
(3.8785%) 

CPG 
(71.0359%) 

STBG 
(10.879%) 

5307  Total 
Percent 
(%) 

1  $29,416         $115,541  $17,695     $162,651   13.68% 

2  $7,894      $316,000   $172,408  $26,403     $2422,705   20.41% 

3  $60,280         $236,766  $36,259     $333,305   28.03% 

4  $16,097         $63,226  $9,683     $89,005   7.48% 

5  $7,740         $30,403  $4,656     $42,800   3.60% 

6     $54,000            $216,000   $270,000   22.70% 

7  $5,380         $21,133  $3,237     $29,750   2.50% 

8  $3,436         $13,497  $2,067     $19,000   1.60% 

TOTAL  $130,243   $54,000   $316,000   $652,973   $100,000  $216,000   $1,1869,216   100.00% 

9  Value of MoDOT “Direct Cost”  $243,724     

Total of Transportation Planning Work  $1,212,940     

 
 
 
 
 
 

Federal Consolidated Planning Grant (CPG) & Surface Block Transportation Grant 

(STBG) Funding FY 2021 UPWP 
 

  Amount 

Budgeted 

Estimated Actual Costs of Tasks 1‐8  $1,1869,216  

Minus City Utilities Transit (FTA 5307 Funding)  ($270,000) 

Actual Total Ozarks Transportation Organization Expenditures  $919899,216 

PLUS, Value of Task 8 MoDOT Direct Costs Credit  $243,724  

Total Value of OTO/Springfield Metropolitan Transportation Planning Work  $942,940  

Federal Pro‐Rata share  80% 

Federal CPG and STBG Funding Eligible  $754,352 

 *Federal Funding as a percentage of total OTO actual transportation planning costs is 82.064783.89% ($754,352/$919899,216). The value of MoDOT Direct Costs 

allows the OTO to include an additional $18,979.2034,979.20 in Federal CPG funding.  

 
 
 



Financial Summary                                                                                                                                            UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                             2021 
                                                                                                                                                        

Page | 28 

 

Budgeted Revenue for Actual Costs FY 2021 UPWP 
Ozarks Transportation Organization Revenue     Total Amount Budgeted 

Federal CPG Funding Eligible    $654,352  

Surface Transportation Block Grant    $100,000  

Local Match to be Provided     $128,864  

Value of In‐Kind Match    $316,000  

Total OTO Revenue    $919899,216  

 

Total Available Federal Revenue for FY 2020 UPWP Work Activities 

(MO‐81‐0013) CPG Fund Balance as of 12/31/2019*    $663,552.12 
Less remaining CPG funds to be spent FY 2020  $400,145.52 
Estimated Remaining Balance of Previous FY Funds on 6/30/20  $263,406.60 
 
FY 2020 CPG Funds allocation (Received February 2020)  $637,262.00 
TOTAL Estimated CPG Funds Available for FY 2021 UPWP   $900,668.60 
TOTAL CPG Funds Programmed for FY 2021     ‐$654,352.00  
CPG Fund Balance estimated remaining at fiscal year‐end 2021  $246,316.60 
 
FY 2021 Estimated CPG Funds allocation**  $637,262.00 
 
Remaining Unprogrammed Balance****  $883,578.60 
 
*Previously allocated, but unspent CPG Funds through 12/31/2019. 
 
**The FY 2021 Estimated CPG Funds Available is an estimated figure based on the FAST ACT funding bill. The 
FY 2020 allocation is expected to be released by Spring 2020 making the funds unavailable for the majority of 
the FY 2020. Funding is essentially one fiscal year behind expenses. FY 2021 allocation will not likely be 
available in FY 2021 and therefore FY 2020 funds will be used in FY 2021. 
 
****Previously allocated but unprogrammed CPG funds available at the end of FY 2020 for use in FY 2021. 
 
 
Justification for Carryover Balance 
 
The projected carryover balance of $884,957.60 represents more than one year of federal planning 

funding allocations to OTO. OTO is funded by a combined Federal Highway and Federal Transit grant 

through the Missouri Department of Transportation.  OTO cannot spend full current year allocations due 

to congressional inaction to fully appropriate annual authorizations for transportation.



OTO Boundary Map                                                  UPWP 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                2021 
 

 

Page | 29 

 

 



OTO Organization Chart                                             UPWP 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               2021 
 

Page | 30 

 
Board and Committee membership composition may be found at: https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/  

Ozarks Transportation Organization 

Organizational Chart 

 

 

Ozarks Transportation Organization Planning Staff 
100% Dedicated to Transportation Planning 

Executive 
Director 

1 FTE 

GIS  
Analyst 

1 FTE 

Principal 
Planner 

1 FTE 

Operations  
Manager 

1 FTE 

Senior 
Planner 

1 FTE 

Communications 
Clerk 

 
.5 FTE 

Intern 

 
.5 FTE 



ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

Cost Category

Approved 
Budgeted 
Amount            

FY20

Total Amount 
Budgeted              

FY20

Proposed 
Budgeted 
Amount          

FY21
Total Budget                

FY21

Increase/      
Decrease

Building
Building Lease $75,400 $52,125 ↓ $23,275
Building Common Area Main Exp $0 $19,950 ↑ $19,950
Infill Costs $2,000 $2,000 SAME
Maintenance $4,000 $4,000 SAME
Utilities $3,500 $3,500 SAME
Office Cleaning $4,400 $5,550 ↑ $1,150
Total Building $89,300 $87,125

Commodities
Office Supplies/Furniture $7,000 $7,000 SAME
Publications $300 $1,000 $700
Public Input Promotional Items $2,500 $2,500 SAME
Total Commodities $9,800 $10,500

Information Technology
Computer Upgrades/Equipment Replacement/Repair $8,000 $8,000 SAME
Data Backup/Storage $4,400 $4,400 SAME
GIS Licenses $5,500 $5,500 SAME
IT Maintenance Contract $12,000 $12,000 SAME
Server Upgrade $6,000 $0 ↓$6,000
Software $4,900 $4,900 SAME
Webhosting $2,300 $2,300 SAME
Total Information Technology $43,100 $37,100

Organization Insurance
Directors and Officers $3,000 $3,000 SAME
Errors & Omissions $3,000 $3,000 SAME
Professional Liability $2,700 $2,700 SAME
Workers Comp $1,700 $1,700 SAME
Total Insurance $10,400 $10,400

Operating
Copy Machine Lease Principal $5,700 $1,650 ↓ $4,050
Copy Machine Lease Interest $0 $200 ↑ $200
Copy Machine Maintenance $0 $650 ↑ $650
Copy Machine Toner & Overages $0 $3,200 ↑ $3,200
Dues/Memberships $5,500 $8,000 ↑ $2,500
Education/Training/Travel $23,000 $23,000 SAME
Food/Meeting Expense $4,300 $4,300 SAME
Legal/Bid Notices $2,500 $2,000 ↓ $500
Postage/Postal Services $1,800 $1,800 SAME
Printing/Mapping Services $2,500 $14,000 ↑ $11,500
Public Input Event Registrations $1,500 $1,500 SAME
Staff Mileage Reimbursement $3,500 $3,500 SAME
Telephone/Internet $5,000 $5,000 SAME
Total Operating $55,300 $68,800

APPENDIX A
Fiscal Year 2021

 July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

OTO UPWP DETAIL
Utilizing Consolidated Planning Grant Funds



Cost Category

Budgeted 
Amount              

FY20

Total Amount 
Budgeted              

FY20

Budgeted 
Amount           

FY21

Total Amount 
Budgeted         

FY21

Increase/      
Decrease

Personnel
Salaries & Fringe  $528,152 $529,811 ↑$1,659
Mobile Data Plans $3,240 $3,240 SAME
Total Personnel $531,392 $533,051

Professional Services in Lieu of Staff
Professional Services $24,000 $50,000 ↑$26,000

$30,000 $20,000 ↓ $10,000
Payroll Services $2,700 $4,000 ↑$1,300
Total Professional Services in Lieu of Staff $56,700 $74,000

Other Services and Special Projects
Aerial Photos $25,000 $25,000 SAME
Audit $4,600 $4,640 ↑ $40
Long-Range Plan Update $10,000 $5,000 ↓ $5,000
TIP Tool Maintenance $9,600 $9,600 SAME
Travel Sensing & Travel Time Services Project $3,000 $3,000 SAME
Travel Demand Model Update $50,000 $15,000 ↓ $35,000
Total Other Services and Special Projects $102,200 $62,240

$898,192 $883,216
In-Kind Match, Donated

Member Attendance at Meetings $30,000 $16,000 ↓ $14,000
TOTAL OTO Expenditures $928,192 $899,216

In-Kind Match, Direct Cost, Donated
Direct Cost - MoDOT Salaries $20,000 $43,724 ↑ $23,724

TOTAL OTO Budget $948,192 $942,940

Direct Outside Grant
CU Transit Salaries* $270,000 $270,000 Same
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,218,192 $1,212,940 ↓ $5,252
Notes * Cost includes federal and required 20% matching funds.

ESTIMATED REVENUES

Ozarks Transportation Organization Revenue
Consolidated FHWA/FTA PL Funds $558,554 $654,352
Surface Transprtation Block Grant $200,000 $100,000
Local Jurisdiction Match Funds $139,638 $128,864
In-kind Match, Meeting Attendance** $30,000 $16,000
MoDOT Direct Service Match** $20,000 $43,724
Total Ozarks Transportation Organization Revenue $948,192 $942,940 ↓ $5,252

Direct Outside Grant
FTA 5307 $216,000 $216,000
City Utilities Local Match $54,000 $54,000
Total Direct Outside Grant $270,000 $270,000
TOTAL REVENUE $1,218,192 $1,212,940
Notes:  * Cost includes federal and required 20% matching funds.  Pass through funds, OTO does not administer or spend the City Utility funds.

** In the event that In-kind Match/Direct Cost/Donated is not available, local jurisdictions match funds will be utilized.

Transportation Consultant/Modeling Services 



Cost Category

Budgeted 
Amount           

FY20

Total Amount 
Budgeted              

FY20

Budgeted 
Amount           

FY21

Total Amount 
Budgeted         

FY21

Aerial Photos $25,000 $25,000
Audit $4,600 $4,640
Professional Services Fees $24,000 $50,000
Data Storage/Backup $4,400 $4,400
IT Maintenance Contract $12,000 $12,000
Online TIP Tool $9,600 $9,600
Travel Demand Model Update $50,000 $15,000
Travel Sensing & Travel Time Services Project $3,000 $3,000
Webhosting $0 $900
Payroll $2,750 $4,000

$30,000 $20,000
Total Consultant Usage $165,350.00 $148,540.00
Transportation Consultant/Modeling Services 

ANTICIPATED CONSULTANT USAGE

 July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
FY 2020

 APPENDIX B



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 5 

 

 
 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM II.C. 
 

OTO Growth Trends Report 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
The Growth Trends report is based on the most recent census data and building permit 
information collected from area jurisdictions.  
 
This report includes information for residential units permitted, growth trend maps, as well as 
demographic and employment data providing a view of growth for the OTO service area and the 
five county Metropolitan Statistical Area (Christian, Dallas, Greene, Polk and Webster counties). 
The report is published for information purposes and can be viewed in full on the OTO website 
https://media.ozarkstransportation.org/documents/2020-Growth-Trends-Report-Final.pdf.  
 
Conclusions from the report include: 
 

• Single-family residential unit permitting for the OTO area reached its highest total since 
2007 (1,558) at 1,143. 

 
• The areas with the largest growth in single-family residential units in 2018 were Greene 

County – OTO area only (476) and Nixa (200), Republic (159), and Ozark (115). 
 

• Multi-family residential unit permitting for the OTO increased during 2020 (732) 
compared to 2019 (259), Greene County-OTO area only had the 2nd highest total (219). 
The number of multi-family units in Springfield (499) was the 3rd total since 2010 (20). 
Most multi-family permitting was for 55-plus communities. 

 
• Median Household Income increased across all counties in the Springfield MSA even 

when adjusted for the rate of inflation. Conversely, there were fewer individuals & 
children living at or below the poverty. 

 
• Job growth slowed in terms of percent change from 2018 - 2019. Although jobs numbers 

rose in every county in the MSA, the percentage of MSA jobs within Greene County has 
remained at around 83%. 

 
If there is additional information that the Board of Directors is interested in seeing in the annual 
growth trends report, members are asked to let staff know. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
INFORMATIONAL ONLY.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 
 

https://media.ozarkstransportation.org/documents/2020-Growth-Trends-Report-Final.pdf
https://media.ozarkstransportation.org/documents/2020-Growth-Trends-Report-Final.pdf


Growth 
Trends Report

Through December 31, 2020

2208 W. Chesterfield Blvd, Suite 
101

Springfield, Missouri 65807



Disclaimer
Table of Contents

Introduction...........................................................................................................................1
Residential Units………………………………………………………………………………….…………..…...2

Single-Family Units Permitted - OTO Area…………………………………….…………………………3
Multi-Family Units Permitted – OTO Area……………………………………………..……….………..4
Total Residential Units Permitted – OTO Area……………………………………….…………..….….5

Growth Trend Maps………………………………………………………..…….……................................6
2020 Housing Unit Density Map………………………………………..…………..………..….………….7
2010 – 2020 Housing Unit Density Map……………………………………………………….…………..8

Demographics & Employment…………………………………………………………………...….……….9

Springfield MSA Population 2010 – 2019……………………………..……….……….……….…......10
Population Percent Change Springfield MSA 2010 – 2019……..………………………..…………11
Population Increase Springfield MSA Counites…………………………………………………..……12
OTO Area Cities Population 1990 – 2019………..………………….……………………….…....…….13
Net Migration 2008 – 2019…………………………………………………………………………..………14
In-Migration Age Characteristics……………………………………………………………………….....15
Median Household Income - Springfield MSA Counties 2019, 2014, 2009.…………..…….…16
Per Capita Income - MSA Counties 2019, 2014, 2009………………………………….........……..17
Per Capita Income - OTO Area Cities 2019, 2014, 2009 ………………………..………….…..…..18
Persons Living in Poverty - Springfield MSA Counties 2019, 2014, 2009………………....…..19
Children Living in Poverty - Springfield MSA Counties 2019, 2014, 2009 …………….......…20
Workforce Educational Attainment by MSA County………………………………………….…....21
Place of Residence vs. Place of Employment – Primary Jobs 2019………..….…………….….22
Mean Travel Time to Work in Minutes – MSA Counties…………………………………..…....…..23
Mean Travel Time to Work – OTO Cities…………………………………..…………………….………24
Workforce by Industry Springfield MSA……………………………………………………….........…25
Number of Jobs by MSA County 2009 – 2019…………………..………………..……………………26

Data Sources……………………………………………………………………………………………………....27
Appendix A: OTO Area Permit Activity 2001 – 2019……………………………………………..28
Appendix B: Year-over-Year Population Percent Change 2000 – 2018……….……..……...29
Appendix C: Year-over-Year Total Jobs Percent Change 2000 – 2018…………….…..……..30

The information compiled in this 
report was retrieved from a 
variety of sources. Permit data 
and employment information 
were derived from federal and 
local administrative records and 
should be considered fairly 
reliable. 

It is important to note that 
demographic information from 
the American Community Survey 
is derived from sampling methods 
used by the U.S. Census Bureau 
and is reported with a margin of 
error. For the sake of 
presentation, margins of error are 
not included in the tables and 
charts. 

To account for margins of error, 
five-year comparisons of ACS data 
and tests for statistical differences 
are addressed in the narrative 
sections where appropriate.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report i



Introduction
• Residential Units
Single-family and multi-family residential construction and demolition activity for 
each jurisdiction within the OTO study area is tabulated and discussed here.

• Growth Trend Maps
Maps displaying the distribution of permitted residential construction within the 
OTO Study area are presented in this section. 

• Demographics & Employment
Historical and current population, income, poverty, education, commuting, 
employment, and workforce statistics are presented in charts and graphs to 
identify trends.

Each year, the Ozarks 
Transportation Organization 
(OTO) analyzes residential 
construction activity and 
demographic information for the 
MPO study area and member 
jurisdictions. 

This report is comprised of three 
sections that include tables, 
charts, and maps along with 
narrative descriptions of 
noteworthy trends within the 
OTO. 

This year’s report includes 
information from the U.S. Census 
Local Employment and 
Household Dynamics (LEHD) data 
for the Springfield, MO MSA at 
the county level. 

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 1



Residential Units

Building Permit Activity

Building permit data for new single-family, duplex, and multi-family structures 
were collected for each county and municipality in the OTO area during 2020. 
For the purpose of this report, single-family structures represent one residential 
unit and any structures divided into more than one residence are counted as 
multi-family units including duplexes.

In addition, permits for demolitions of existing residential units were included 
and subtracted from the total of newly constructed residential structures or 
existing structures converted to residential use to produce a net total of 
housing units added in each city or county within the OTO area. Only permit 
activity within the OTO boundary is included for unincorporated portions of 
counties in this report.

The new housing units added in 2020 for each permitting jurisdiction are 
compared to the previous ten years of building permit activity by jurisdiction for 
single-family, multi-family, and total residential units in this section of the 
report. A table of permit activity in the OTO area from 2001 – 2020 is included 
as an appendix.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 2



Residential 
Units

Single-Family

The information on this 
page depicts permitted 
construction of single-
family housing in the OTO 
area from 2010 – 2020. 

In 2020, single-family 
housing permits reached 
the highest level since 
2007 (1,558). The increase 
is mostly attributable to 
development in Greene 
County and the city of 
Republic.

The permit total for new 
single-family structures in 
the OTO Area was offset 
by the demolition 113 
houses. Most demolitions 
occurred in Springfield 
(67) and Greene County 
(24).

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 3

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Battlefield 40 29 36 47 53 36 23 10 30

Nixa 89 49 72 128 119 101 124 209 247 246 200

Ozark 34 33 49 69 70 92 115 94 85 127 115

Republic - OTO 77 99 54 67 96 107 109 102 102 149 159

Springfield 80 68 -5 29 28 -1 -5 11 12 27 38

Strafford 0 3 2 2 19 24 8 15 20

Willard 13 7 11 6 14 8 25 17 28

Christian - OTO 51 40 7 56 70 106 76 83 79 56 77

Greene - OTO 375 198 270 320 266 266 299 249 320 267 476

Total 706 487 500 708 698 726 804 816 901 914 1,143

-20

180

380

580

780

980

1180

1380
Single Family Units Permitted –OTO Area

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Residential 
Units

Multi-Family

From 2010 to 2020, most 
multi-family housing 
construction permits 
were issued in the city of 
Springfield.

In 2020, the total number 
of multi-family units 
permitted climbed to the 
4th highest total in the 
last ten years. The largest 
number of the 732 multi-
family units added in the 
OTO area were in the city 
of Springfield. Greene 
County issued its highest 
number of multi-family 
units since 2009 (237). 

Most multi-family 
permits were issued for 
age 55-plus 
developments.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 4

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Battlefield 0 0 0 0 0 0 83 4 0

Nixa 0 50 0 0 0 2 2 6 42 52 12

Ozark 26 20 4 0 0 20 90 18 129 44 12

Republic 18 0 0 0 47 0 4 12 32 0 2

Springfield 20 132 486 216 476 855 141 559 719 95 499

Strafford 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0

Willard 0 0 48 20 0 72 0 0 0

Christian - OTO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Greene - OTO 38 12 0 0 0 0 2 -2 20 114 219

Total 102 214 490 216 571 897 247 665 1,025 259 732

-10

190

390

590

790

990

Multi-Family Units Permitted - OTO Area

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Residential 
Units

Totals
The information on this page 
depicts the net total of 
housing units permitted for 
the entire OTO area and 
each jurisdiction within it for 
2020 and the last ten years.

While residential unit 
construction peaked in the 
mid-2000s, it had dropped 
considerably by 2011 during 
the “great recession” (see 
Appendix A).

Growth in residential 
structure permits has 
recovered somewhat in the 
last few years driven by 
single-family developments 
in Nixa, Republic, Greene 
County & 55+ developments.

In 2020, the 2nd highest 
number of residential 
structures were permitted in 
the OTO area since 2007 
(3,019). 

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 5

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Battlefield 40 29 36 47 53 36 106 14 30

Nixa 89 99 72 128 119 103 126 215 289 298 212

Ozark 60 53 53 69 70 112 205 112 214 171 127

Republic 95 99 54 67 143 111 113 114 133 149 161

Springfield 100 200 481 245 504 854 136 570 731 122 537

Strafford 0 3 2 2 27 24 8 15 20

Willard 13 7 59 26 14 80 25 17 28

Christian - OTO 51 37 7 56 70 106 76 83 79 56 77

Greene - OTO 413 210 270 321 266 266 301 247 341 381 695

Total 808 698 990 925 1,269 1,627 1,051 1,481 1,926 1,223 1,887

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

Units
Permitted

OTO Area 2020 Total Residential Units Permitted

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



Growth Trend Maps

Changes in Housing Units

The maps on the following pages illustrate the net change
in housing units for 2020 as well as the period from 2010 to
2020.

Additionally, heat map symbology has been added to
demonstrate densities of new residential structure
development. An overlay of geocoded permit address
points aggregated into a grid of hexagons was overlaid to
provide more information about the location and
magnitude of residential development in 2020 as well as
2010 - 2020.

6
2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report



2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 7



2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 8



Demographics & Employment

Population Change

This section contains information about the population of the Springfield,
Missouri Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). The Springfield MSA is made up
Christian, Dallas, Greene, Polk, and Webster counties in southwest Missouri.
Metropolitan Statistical Areas are designated by the U.S. Census Bureau based
on the economic ties to a large population center. The number of workers from
the five counties in the MSA that are employed in the OTO area have a
tremendous impact on the transportation system and local economies.

The OTO prepares the Growth Trends report annually to keep stakeholders and
the public informed of changes and trends in population and employment aimed
at facilitating cooperative decision making in support of an excellent regional
transportation system.

Other transportation related demographics for municipalities and counties in
the OTO area as well as the MSA, such as population growth, income, poverty,
mean travel time, workforce by industry, and job growth by jurisdiction are
presented in this section.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 9



Springfield MSA

The Springfield, Missouri 
Metropolitan Statistical Area 
(MSA) includes Greene, Christian, 
Webster, Polk, and Dallas 
Counties.

The chart on this page shows the 
steady increase of the combined 
MSA county populations.

From 2010 to 2019, the MSA 
population has increased from 
436,712 to 470,300. This is an 
overall increase of 7.7%, equaling 
a 0.77% rate of annual growth.

Using the rule of 70, at an annual 
growth percent of 0.77, it will take 
the Springfield MSA over 90 years 
to double in population to 
940,600.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 10

410,000

420,000

430,000

440,000

450,000

460,000

470,000

480,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Population

Springfield MSA Population
(Greene, Christian, Webster, Polk and Dallas Counties)

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2019 Population Estimates



Springfield MSA

Continued

Information for the year-over-
year population percent change 
for the five-county Springfield 
MSA is presented here.

Although population growth 
within the MSA has been 
consistently positive, the percent 
of change varies from year-to-
year. The highest year-over-year 
percent change during the 10-year 
period from 2010 to 2019 was 
from 2009 to 2010. 

The lowest year-over-year 
percent change was from 2015 to 
2016 at 0.52%. The change in 
percent has not been over 1% 
since 2010.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 11

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

Year-over-Year Population Percent Change 
Springfield MSA

Source:  US Census Bureau, Annual Population Estimates



Individual 
Counties

The chart on this page 
shows population growth 
for individual counties in 
the Springfield MSA for 
each decennial census 
from 1990 to 2010 and the 
latest estimate.

Christian county was the 
fastest growing county in 
the MSA in terms of 
percent change during the 
29-year period adding 
55,951 people. Greene 
county grew the most in 
terms of raw numbers 
adding 85,137 people.

Since 2010, the proportion 
of the total MSA 
population has decreased 
for Greene, Dallas, and 
Polk counties and 
increased for Christian 
and Webster counties.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 12

1990 2000 2010 2019

Greene County 207,949 240,391 275,174 293,086

Christian County 32,644 54,285 77,422 88,595

Dallas County 12,646 15,661 16,777 16,878

Polk County 21,826 26,992 31,137 32,149

Webster County 23,753 31,045 36,202 39,592

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

Population Increase
Springfield MSA Counties  1990-2019

Source: Missouri Census Data Center 



Cities in the 
OTO Area

The information on this 
page shows population 
growth for cities within the 
OTO area from 1990 to 
2019.

The City of Springfield has 
experienced steady growth 
since 2010 and remains the 
employment and activity 
hub for the OTO area.

Although more people were 
added to the region in 
surrounding cities than 
Springfield from 2000 to 
2010, 27,179 and 7,918 
respectively, the opposite is 
true from 2010 to 2019. 
During this time Springfield 
added 8,384 people 
compared to 7,918 in all 
other surrounding cities 
combined.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 13

1990 2000 2010 2019

Battlefield 1,526 2,385 5,590 6,622

Nixa 4,707 12,124 19,022 22,515

Ozark 4,243 9,665 17,820 20,482

Republic 6,292 8,438 14,751 16,938

Springfield 140,494 151,580 159,498 167,882

Strafford 1,166 1,845 2,358 2,460

Willard 2,177 3,193 5,288 5,632

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

Population Growth for Cities in the OTO Area
From 1990 to 2019



Net Migration 

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 14

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Net Migration 2008 – 2019, 
Christian County

Source: Missouri Census Data Center

Population Change Net-Migration

-1,000

-500

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Net Migration 2008 – 2019, 
Greene County

Source: Missouri Census Data Center

Population Change Net Migration



In-Migration

Age

Characteristics

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

1 to 4
years

5 to 17
years

18 to 24
years

25 to 34
years

35 to 44
years

45 to 54
years

55 to 64
years

65 to 74
years

75 years
and over

Greene County
Source: ACS 2015 – 2019 Five Year Estimates

Different State Different County, Same State

The age characteristics for 
individuals migrating into 
Greene and Christian counties 
in 2019 are presented on this 
page.  

The overwhelming majority of 
individuals migrating into 
Greene county were 18 to 24 
years old coming from other 
counties in Missouri. The 
median age for all in-migrants 
from other counties in Missouri 
into Greene County was 
estimated to be 21.9.

The largest age group 
migrating into Christian county 
were individuals 25 to 34 years 
old from different counties 
within Missouri. The median 
ages for in-migrants into 
Christian County were 28.2 and 
29 for those from other 
counties in Missouri and from 
other states, respectively.

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600

1 to 4
years

5 to 17
years

18 to 24
years

25 to 34
years

35 to 44
years

45 to 54
years

55 to 64
years

65 to 74
years

75 years
and over

Christian County
Source: ACS 2015 – 2019 Five Year Estimates

Different State Different County, Same State

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 15



Median 
Household 

Income 

Median household income for 
Greene and Christian Counties, 
the Springfield MSA, Missouri, 
and the United States for each 
year from 2009, 2014, & 2019 
American Community Survey 5-
year estimates are presented 
here.

The ACS estimates are based 
on sampling and are reported 
within a margin of error. The 
ACS estimates should only be 
compared at 5-year intervals to 
ensure the population sampled 
is not included in any other 
survey.

A comparison of survey 
estimates between survey 
years indicates that the rise in 
median household incomes is 
statistically different in 2019. 
Based on the sample margins 
of error, the median income of 
households in all geographies is 
significantly higher than 2009 & 
2014 estimates and outpace 
the rate of inflation.

162020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

$30,000 $35,000 $40,000 $45,000 $50,000 $55,000 $60,000 $65,000

Christian County

Greene     County

Springfield MSA

Missouri

United States

Christian
County

Greene
County

Springfield
MSA

Missouri United States

2019 $60,645 $46,086 $48,549 $55,461 62843

2014 $52,693 $40,512 $42,880 $47,764 $53,482

2009 $50,830 $40,271 $46,005 $51,425

Median Household Income
Springfield MSA Counties

Source: American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates



Per Capita 
Income

The chart to the right shows 
per capita income for the 
United States, Missouri, 
Greene and Christian 
Counties, and the 
Springfield MO MSA.

The counties and MSA are 
below both the national 
($34,103) and state 
($30,810) per capita income 
levels for 2019.

As with the ACS data for 
median household income, 
comparing each surveys’ 
per capita income for 
statistical difference 
between samples indicates 
that all geographies have 
seen a statistically 
significant increase in per 
capita income through 
2019. 

$10,000 $15,000 $20,000 $25,000 $30,000 $35,000 $40,000

Christian County

Greene County

Springfield MSA

Missouri

United States

Christian
County

Greene County
Springfield

MSA
Missouri United States

2019 $28,216 $27,525 $26,806 $30,810 $34,103

2014 $25,428 $23,765 $23,233 $26,006 $28,555

2009 $23,095 $23,282 $24,423 $27,041

Per Capita Income
Springfield, MO MSA and Counties
Source: American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

172020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report



Per Capita 
Income

The chart to the right 
shows per capita income 
for the cities within the 
OTO planning area.

The ACS estimate for 2019 
is higher for all cities.  
However, there is no 
statistical difference in any 
of the estimates for 
Battlefield or Strafford. In 
the cases of Springfield, 
Nixa, & Willard there is no 
significant difference 
between 2009 & 2014, but 
the 2019 estimate is 
statistically different from 
the earlier five-year 
samples. 

The 2019 Ozark & Republic 
estimates are not 
statistically different from 
2014, but each of these are 
significantly higher than 
per capita income in the 
2009 five-year sample.

182020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

$15,000 $17,000 $19,000 $21,000 $23,000 $25,000 $27,000 $29,000

Battlefield

Nixa

Ozark

Republic

Springfield

Strafford

Willard

Battlefield Nixa Ozark Republic SpringfieldStrafford Willard

2019 $27,718 $26,825 $25,169 $24,505 $23,428 $21,678 $27,455

2014 $25,692 $23,004 $24,384 $22,482 $20,540 $18,928 $19,372

2009 $26,967 $22,509 $20,812 $20,917 $20,612 $19,545 $19,636

Per Capita Income OTO Area Cities
Source: American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates



Individuals 
Living Below 

Poverty 

In 2019, the percentage of people 
living at or below the poverty 
level had returned to 2009 levels 
for the US & Missouri. This 
represents a near complete 
recovery from the surge of 
people living at or below poverty 
resulting from the great 
recession.  

Although the estimates for 
Greene and Christian Counties 
have decreased between the 
2014 and 2019 surveys, they are 
still statistically different from 
and remain higher than the 2009 
estimate. 

For Christian County, there is no 
statistical change from 2014 to 
2019. All survey estimates are 
statistically different for Greene 
County. This indicates that 
poverty levels have not 
completely recovered from pre-
recession levels in Greene
County.

192020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0%

Christian County

Greene County

Springfield MSA

Missouri

United States

Christian County Greene County Springfield MSA Missouri United States

2019 10.0% 16.4% 15.2% 13.7% 13.4%

2014 10.7% 19.1% 17.6% 15.6% 15.6%

2009 8.5% 15.2% 14.8% 13.7% 13.5%

Persons Living Below Poverty Level
Springfield, MO MSA and Counties

American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates



Children Living 
in Poverty

Estimates for the number of 
Children ages 17 and younger 
living at or below the poverty 
level for the Springfield MSA, 
Greene, and Christian Counties 
are compared with Missouri 
and the United States in the 
chart.

The estimates for the 
percentage of children living at 
or below the poverty level in 
2009 & 2019 samples are not 
statistically different across all 
geographies. The five-year 
estimates for 2014 are 
significantly different from 
both the 2009 & 2019 samples 
in all geographies.

This indicates that children 
living at or below poverty level 
has returned to pre-recession 
levels or better across the 
board. 

5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Christian County

Greene County

Springfield MSA

Missouri

United States

Christian
County

Greene
County

Springfield
MSA

Missouri United States

2019 11.9% 17.6% 17.3% 18.7% 18.5%

2014 14.9% 24.6% 24.6% 21.5% 21.9%

2009 12.0% 19.1% 19.6% 18.8% 18.5%

Children Living in Poverty
Springfield MSA Counties

Source: American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

202020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report



Workforce 
Education Levels

Workforce education levels 
affect employment and earning 
levels within communities. 

Christian and Greene Counties 
have higher percentages of 
residents 25 years of age or 
older with a high school 
diploma than the MSA, State, 
or the U.S.  Greene County  has 
the higher percentage of 
residents 25 years of age or 
older with a four-year college 
degree at 30.5 percent 
compared to all other 
geographies except for the U.S.  

The Springfield MSA as a 
whole, has the lowest 
percentage of people over 25 
with a bachelor's degree or 
higher while all areas have a 
higher percentage of high 
school graduates than the U.S.

Christian
County

Greene
County

Springfield
MSA

Missouri United States

% High School 92.0% 91.8% 90.8% 89.9% 87.7%

% Bachelor's or Higher 28.6% 30.5% 27.6% 29.2% 31.5%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Workforce Education Levels
Percent with High School Diploma and College Degrees in 

Springfield MSA Counties
Source: 2019 ACS 5-Year Estimates

212020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report



Commuting 
Patterns

The chart to the right shows the 
percentage of workers who work in 
their county of residence compared 
to the percentage who work in a 
different county.

Of the people who work in Greene 

County, 93.4 percent also live in 

Greene County. Conversely, the 

majority  (61.2%) of Christian County 

residents commute to another 

county for work.  

The MSA percentage of workers 

living in the same county as they are 

employed is comparable to that of 

the United States but over ten 

percent more than Missouri.

38.1%

93.4%

76.5%

64.9%

72.2%

61.2%

6.6%

23.9%

34.8%

27.8%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Christian County Greene  County Springfield MSA Missouri United States

% Living/Employed in County % Living in County/Employed Outside

County of Residence vs. County of 
Employment

Source: 2019  ACS 5-Year Estimates

222020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report



Mean Travel 
Time to Work

The chart to the right shows the 
average commute time for 
individuals living in Greene and 
Christian Counties, Missouri, the 
United States, and the 
Springfield, MO MSA.

Residents of Greene County have 
the shortest commutes to work 
at 20 minutes.  Workers living in 
Christian County have the 
longest commutes with an 
estimated mean of 25.8 minutes.  
This is comparable to the United 
States as a whole.

The travel time estimates for the 
United States are statistically 
different and have increased 
across all five-year samples. The 
Missouri estimate for 2019 is 
significantly more than previous 
estimates. Greene and Christian 
Counties are not statistically 
different across all samples.

232020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

15 17 19 21 23 25 27

Christian County

Greene County

Springfield MSA

Missouri

United States

Christian
County

Greene County
Springfield

MSA
Missouri United States

2019 25.8 20 22.3 23.9 26.9

2014 25.5 19 21.8 23.1 25.7

2009 24.1 19.5 23.1 25.2

Mean Travel Time to Work in Minutes
Counties & MSA

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates



Mean Travel 
Time to Work

The chart to the right shows the 
average commute time for 
residents living in the seven 
cities within the OTO area.

The 2019 estimates for 
Springfield & Republic are 
statistically different from 2014 
showing an increase but the 
2019 estimate is not statistically 
different from 2009. 

The 2019 estimate is 
significantly higher than 2009 
but no different than 2014 for 
Nixa & Ozark indicating an 
increase in travel time from 
2009 to 2014 but not from 2014 
to 2019.

There is no statistical difference 
between any of the estimates 
for Battlefield, Strafford, or 
Willard.  

242020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

15 17 19 21 23 25 27

Battlefield

Nixa

Ozark

Republic

Springfield

Strafford

Willard

Battlefield Nixa Ozark Republic Springfield Strafford Willard

2019 22.5 25.1 25.4 24.3 18.2 22.7 24.1

2014 22.2 24.4 23.8 21.9 17.3 22 23.6

2009 22.7 21.9 22 23.4 17.6 23 23.8

Mean Travel Time to Work in Minutes
OTO Area Cities

Source: ACS 5-Year Estimates



Workforce By 
Industry

The chart to the right compares 

industry employment 

percentages for the workforce for 

the Springfield, MO MSA, 

Missouri, & the United States. 

The precent of industry 

employment in the Springfield 

MSA is greater than MO & the 

U.S. in Educational service, health 

care, and social assistance, Retail 

trade, Other services except 

public administration, & 

Wholesale trade. 

The MSA percentages lag MO & 

the U.S. in Professional, scientific, 

etc., Manufacturing, Public 

Administration, and Information 

industries.

252020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

0% 10% 20% 30%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting,
and mining

Information

Wholesale trade

Public administration

Construction

Finance and insurance, and real estate
and rental and leasing

Transportation and warehousing, and
utilities

Other services, except public
administration

Manufacturing

Professional, scientific, and management,
and administrative and waste…

Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and
accommodation and food services

Retail trade

Educational services, health care, and
social assistance

Springfield MSA Percentage of Workers by Industry 
Source: ACS 2019 5-Year Estimates

Springfield MSA

Missouri

United States



Workforce By 
Industry

Springfield MSA

The chart to the right shows 

the 5-year estimates for the 
percentage of workers by 

industry in the Springfield 

MSA for 2019, 2014, & 2009.

There is no statistical 

difference for most industries 
amongst the surveys. 

However, the estimates are 

significantly different for 
Education & Healthcare and 
Construction Industries in each 
five-year sample.

Employment percentages in 
the Wholesale Trade, Public 

Administration, & Information 

sectors declined from 2014 to 

2019 while employment in the 

Professional, Scientific, etc. 
sector increased. 

262020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting,
and mining

Information

Wholesale trade

Public administration

Construction

Finance and insurance, and real estate and
rental and leasing

Transportation and warehousing, and
utilities

Other services, except public administration

Manufacturing

Professional, scientific, and management,
and administrative and waste…

Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and
accommodation and food services

Retail trade

Educational services, health care, and social
assistance

Springfield MSA Percentage of Workers by Industry Source: 
ACS 5-Year Estimates

2019

2014

2009



Number of 
Jobs by MSA 

County

The data contained in the 
chart on this page was 
retrieved from the U.S. Census 
Bureau The Local 
Employment and Household 
Dynamics (LEHD) Quarterly 
Workforce Indicators. 

The data show job losses from 
2009 to 2010. Beginning in 
2011, jobs numbers start to 
rebound and climb every year 
through 2019.  The 
overwhelming number of jobs 
in the MSA are in Greene 
County.

Although jobs numbers have 
risen in every county in the 
MSA, the proportion of MSA 
jobs within Greene County 
from 2009 to 2019 has 
remained relatively constant.

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 27

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Webster County 6,152 5,977 6,081 6,157 6,255 6,425 6,564 6,788 7,052 7,458 7,620

Polk County 7,463 7,352 7,289 7,361 7,531 7,517 7,603 7,754 8,237 8,155 8,087

Greene County 152,280 149,385 151,886 155,335 157,061 160,399 164,083 166,866 169,739 173,330 175,215

Dallas County 2,465 2,287 2,276 2,264 2,306 2,361 2,341 2,308 2,366 2,450 2,474

Christian County 14,829 14,486 14,558 15,001 15,385 16,031 16,685 16,910 17,472 17,767 17,965

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000



Data Sources

The figures provided in this report are for informational purposes only.  The Ozarks 
Transportation Organization (OTO) offers no warranty, either expressed or implied, that 
the population and housing unit numbers published here are accurate and assumes no 
liability for any use to which the data may be put.

Building permit data were provided by the Springfield Department of Building 
Development Services, the Greene County Department of Building Regulations, the 
Christian County Planning and Development Department, and the cities of Battlefield, 
Republic, Nixa, Ozark, Strafford, and Willard.  

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and 
housing unit estimates, it is the Census Bureau's Population Estimates Program that 
produces and disseminates the official estimates of the population for the nation, states, 
counties, cities and towns.

Other data sources include:

U.S. Census Bureau, 2020. Quarterly Workforce Indicators. Washington, DC: U.S. Census 
Bureau, Longitudinal-Employer Household Dynamics Program, accessed on 1/19/2021
https://lehd.ces.census.gov/data/#qwi.

U.S. Census Bureau. 2020. LEHD Origin-Destination Employment Statistics (2002-2019) 
LEHD Origin-Destination Employment Statistics (2002-2019) at 
https://onthemap.ces.census.gov. LODES 7.4 [version] 

Missouri Census Data Center, 2020. http://mcdc.missouri.edu/decennial-census/1980-
1990.shtml

Missouri Census Data Center, 2020. http://mcdc.missouri.edu/decennial-census/2000.shtml

Missouri Census Data Center, 2020. http://mcdc.missouri.edu/decennial-census/2010.shtml

U.S. Census Bureau, 2019, 2014, 2009 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

282020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report

https://lehd.ces.census.gov/data/#qwi
https://onthemap.ces.census.gov/
http://mcdc.missouri.edu/decennial-census/1980-1990.shtml
http://mcdc.missouri.edu/decennial-census/2000.shtml
http://mcdc.missouri.edu/decennial-census/2010.shtml


Appendix A: OTO Area Permit Activity 2001 - 2020

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 29

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Battlefield 40 29 36 47 53 36 106 14 30

Nixa 260 267 281 536 547 539 268 36 88 89 99 72 128 119 103 126 215 289 298 212

Ozark 168 271 333 367 441 391 290 134 77 60 53 53 69 70 112 205 112 214 171 127

Republic 205 183 168 271 304 307 236 179 162 95 99 54 67 143 111 113 114 133 149 161

Springfield 535 943 823 980 1,254 1,386 1,285 341 127 100 200 481 245 504 854 136 570 731 122 537

Strafford 0 3 2 2 27 24 8 15 20

Willard 13 7 59 26 14 80 25 17 28

Christian - OTO 213 201 174 224 133 241 145 64 82 51 37 7 56 70 106 76 83 79 56 77

Greene - OTO 906 1,229 1,294 1,328 1,424 1,087 792 345 472 413 210 270 321 266 266 301 247 341 381 695

Total 2,287 3,094 3,073 3,706 4,103 3,951 3,016 1,099 1,008 808 698 990 925 1,269 1,627 1,051 1,481 1,926 1,223 1,887

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

Battlefield

Nixa

Ozark

Republic

Springfield

Strafford

Willard

Christian - OTO

Greene - OTO

Total

- - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - -



Appendix B: Year-over-Year Population Percent Change 
2000 - 2019

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 30

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Springfield MSA 1.34 1.31 1.54 1.86 1.95 2.60 2.24 1.53 1.10 1.33 0.81 0.96 0.91 0.79 0.91 0.54 0.75 0.99 0.71

Greene County 0.78 0.85 1.16 1.34 1.42 2.04 1.60 1.17 1.02 2.10 0.77 1.09 1.23 0.48 0.72 0.20 0.68 0.73 0.69

Christian County 3.60 3.40 3.50 4.26 4.54 5.35 4.76 3.22 2.39 0.50 1.03 1.29 1.56 1.14 1.52 1.32 1.41 1.92 1.78

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Springfield MSA

Greene County

Christian County



Appendix C: Year-over-Year Total Jobs Percent Change 
2000 – 2019 & Daily Vehicle Miles Travelled 

2020 OTO MPO Area Growth Trends Report 31

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Springfield MSA 0.77 -0.47 1.61 1.61 3.48 3.31 1.49 0.65 -4.55 -2.01 1.42 2.14 1.22 2.37 2.46 1.46 1.68 1.49 1.05

Greene County 0.79 -0.74 1.48 1.46 2.99 3.51 1.47 0.76 -4.03 -1.91 1.68 2.15 0.98 2.31 2.43 1.47 1.49 1.24 1.09

Christian County 2.5 0.5 1.1 3.4 7.2 4.1 3.9 0.7 -5.8 -2.1 -0.5 3.0 2.6 4.3 4.3 1.3 1.7 1.6 1.11

Daily VMT -1.17 0.5 2.5 -3.3 -0.33 0.82 2.14 3.49 3.26 2.37 -0.59 5.48

-8.0

-6.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

Springfield MSA

Greene County

Christian County

Daily VMT



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 6 

 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM II.D. 
 

Administrative Modification 8 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
There are 2 items included as part of Administrative Modification 8 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation 
Improvement Program.  
 
Basis for Administrative Modification - Minor Changes to funding sources between federal funding 
categories or between state and local sources. 

1. ADA Improvements on West US 60, Sunshine, and Kansas (EN1801-20AM8) 
Moving $313,000 from STBG to STAP. 
 

2. Route 14 Capacity Improvements from Fort to Ridgecrest (NX1701-20AM8) 
Moving $577,000 from NHPP to SAFETY (Open Container Funding). 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATION ONLY 



 

 

 

 
25 January 2021 
 
Ms. Britni O’Connor 
Transportation Planning  
Missouri Department of Transportation 
P. O. Box 270 
Jefferson City, Missouri  65102 
 
Dear Ms. O’Connor: 
 
I am writing to advise you that the Ozarks Transportation Organization approved Administrative 
Modification Number Eight to the OTO FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) on 
January 25, 2021.  The adoption included demonstration of fiscal constraint as required by federal 
regulations.  Please find enclosed the administrative modification, which is outlined on the following 
pages.   

Please let me know if you have any questions about this administrative modification or need any other 
information. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Natasha L. Longpine, AICP 
Principal Planner 
 
Enclosures 



E) Bicycle & Pedestrian Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Staff Approved Administrative Modification 8 1/25/2021E-1

TIP #  EN1801-20AM8
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

ADA IMPROVEMENTS ON WEST US 60, SUNSHINE, & KANSAS
Rte. 60
0.3 miles W. of Illinois
Rte. 174

Area Wide
FHWA
MoDOT
STBG
Taking Care of the System

Yes Yes
8P3129
0602106

Upgrade sidewalk to comply with the ADA Transition Plan at various locations along Rte. 60 from 0.3 mile
west of Illinois Street to Rte. 174 in Republic and at various locations on Sunshine Street between Scenic
Avenue and Kansas Expressway in Springfield.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues $150,000
$0
$1,348,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
FHWA (STBG) Federal ENG $10,400 $161,600 $0 $0 $172,000
MoDOT State ENG $2,600 $40,400 $0 $0 $43,000
FHWA (STBG) Federal ROW $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $1,600
MoDOT State ROW $400 $0 $0 $0 $400
FHWA (STAP) Federal CON $0 $577,000 $0 $0 $577,000
FHWA (STBG) Federal CON $0 $207,800 $0 $0 $207,800
MoDOT State CON $0 $196,200 $0 $0 $196,200
Totals $15,000 $1,183,000 $0 $0 $1,198,000

20
AM8



E) Bicycle & Pedestrian Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Staff Approved Administrative Modification 6 9/30/2020E-1

TIP #  EN1801-18
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

ADA IMPROVEMENTS ON WEST US 60, SUNSHINE, & KANSAS
Rte. 60
0.3 miles W. of Illinois
Rte. 174

Area Wide
FHWA
MoDOT
STBG
Taking Care of the System

Yes Yes
8P3129
0602106

Upgrade sidewalk to comply with the ADA Transition Plan at various locations along Rte. 60 from 0.3 mile
west of Illinois Street to Rte. 174 in Republic and at various locations on Sunshine Street between Scenic
Avenue and Kansas Expressway in Springfield.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues $150,000
$0
$1,348,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
FHWA (STBG) Federal ENG $10,400 $161,600 $0 $0 $172,000
MoDOT State ENG $2,600 $40,400 $0 $0 $43,000
FHWA (STBG) Federal ROW $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $1,600
MoDOT State ROW $400 $0 $0 $0 $400
FHWA (STAP) Federal CON $0 $264,000 $0 $0 $264,000
FHWA (STBG) Federal CON $0 $520,800 $0 $0 $520,800
MoDOT State CON $0 $196,200 $0 $0 $196,200
Totals $15,000 $1,183,000 $0 $0 $1,198,000

ORIG
IN

AL



F) Roadways Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Staff Approved Administrative Modification 8 1/25/2021F-1

TIP #  NX1701-20AM8
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

ROUTE 14 CAPACITY IMPROVEMENTS FROM FORT TO RIDGECREST
Rte. 14
Fort St.
Ridgecrest St.

City of Nixa
FHWA
MoDOT
NHPP(NHS)
Major Projects and Emerging Needs

Yes Yes
8P0588H
0141028

Add lanes, turn lanes, sidewalks, and drainage from Fort Street to 0.2 miles east of Tiffany Boulevard,
pavement improvements on Rice Street north of Route 14, and add fiber optic connection from Rte. 160 to
Ridgecrest Street in Nixa.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: $577,000 Open Container Funding

$1,979,000
$0
$9,715,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
FHWA (NHPP) Federal ENG $172,000 $410,400 $0 $0 $582,400
LOCAL Local ENG $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $10,000
MoDOT State ENG $38,000 $97,600 $0 $0 $135,600
FHWA (NHPP) Federal CON $0 $4,827,130 $0 $0 $4,827,130
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal CON $0 $577,000 $0 $0 $577,000
FHWA (STBG-U) Federal CON $0 $202,270 $0 $0 $202,270
LOCAL Local CON $0 $94,446 $0 $0 $94,446
MoDOT State CON $0 $1,307,154 $0 $0 $1,307,154
Totals $215,000 $7,521,000 $0 $0 $7,736,000

20
AM8



F) Roadways Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Staff Approved Administrative Modification 8 1/25/2021F-1

TIP #  NX1701-20A7
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

ROUTE 14 CAPACITY IMPROVEMENTS FROM FORT TO RIDGECREST
Rte. 14
Fort St.
Ridgecrest St.

City of Nixa
FHWA
MoDOT
NHPP(NHS)
Major Projects and Emerging Needs

Yes Yes
8P0588H
0141028

Add lanes, turn lanes, sidewalks, and drainage from Fort Street to 0.2 miles east of Tiffany Boulevard,
pavement improvements on Rice Street north of Route 14, and add fiber optic connection from Rte. 160 to
Ridgecrest Street in Nixa.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues $1,979,000
$0
$9,715,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
FHWA (NHPP) Federal ENG $172,000 $410,400 $0 $0 $582,400
LOCAL Local ENG $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $10,000
MoDOT State ENG $38,000 $97,600 $0 $0 $135,600
FHWA (NHPP) Federal CON $0 $5,404,130 $0 $0 $5,404,130
FHWA (STBG-U) Federal CON $0 $202,270 $0 $0 $202,270
LOCAL Local CON $0 $94,446 $0 $0 $94,446
MoDOT State CON $0 $1,307,154 $0 $0 $1,307,154
Totals $215,000 $7,521,000 $0 $0 $7,736,000

ORIG
IN

AL



YEARLY SUMMARY
Local

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (TAP) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STAP) FHWA (STBG) LOCAL MoDOT MoDOT-AC TOTAL

EN1513-19AM1 $488,494 $0 $0 $0 $0 $122,122 $0 $0 $610,616
EN1706 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $2,000 $0 $10,000
EN1801-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $3,000 $0 $15,000
EN1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $333,600 $0 $83,400 $0 $417,000
EN1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $400 $0 $2,000
EN1902-19A2 $0 $193,075 $0 $0 $0 $48,269 $0 $0 $241,344
EN1903-19A2 $0 $155,439 $0 $0 $0 $42,060 $0 $0 $197,499
EN1904-20AM6 $0 $28,000 $0 $0 $0 $7,000 $0 $0 $35,000
EN1911-19A3 $0 $72,708 $0 $0 $0 $18,177 $0 $0 $90,885
EN1912-19A3 $0 $85,911 $0 $0 $0 $21,478 $0 $0 $107,389
EN1913-19A3 $110,869 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,717 $0 $0 $138,586
EN1914-19AM2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,600 $0 $6,400 $0 $32,000
EN2002-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $60,000 $75,000
EN2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $400 $0 $2,000
EN2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $24,000 $30,000
EN2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $40,000 $50,000
EN2007-20 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $2,000
EN2011-20A3 $33,603 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,401 $0 $0 $42,004
EN2012-20A3 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $125,000
SP2001-19A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $125,978 $0 $0 $0 $125,978
SUBTOTAL $732,966 $535,133 $1,600 $0 $508,378 $320,224 $127,000 $124,000 $2,349,301

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Bicycle & Pedestrian

Federal State

2020

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-1 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY
Local

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (TAP) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STAP) FHWA (STBG) LOCAL MoDOT MoDOT-AC TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Bicycle & Pedestrian

Federal State

EN1706 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $2,000 $0 $10,000
EN1801-20AM8 $0 $0 $0 $577,000 $369,400 $0 $236,600 $0 $1,183,000
EN1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,639,200 $0 $409,800 $0 $2,049,000
EN1803-20A6 $2,560,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $640,000 $0 $0 $3,200,000
EN1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $244,000 $0 $61,000 $0 $305,000
EN1904-20AM6 $0 $244,000 $0 $0 $0 $61,000 $0 $0 $305,000
EN1905-20AM6 $324,014 $0 $0 $0 $0 $81,004 $0 $0 $405,018
EN1906-20AM6 $187,990 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,998 $0 $0 $234,988
EN1907-20AM6 $0 $139,621 $0 $0 $0 $34,906 $0 $0 $174,527
EN1908-20AM6 $0 $297,093 $0 $0 $0 $74,274 $0 $0 $371,367
EN1909-20AM6 $183,365 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,841 $0 $0 $229,206
EN1910-20AM6 $146,098 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,524 $0 $0 $182,622
EN1914-19AM2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $378,400 $0 $94,600 $0 $473,000
EN2002-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $4,000 $5,000
EN2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $10,000 $0 $50,000
EN2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,200 $88,800 $111,000
EN2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $67,000 $268,000 $335,000
EN2007-20 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $2,000
EN2008-20AM6 $870,949 $0 $0 $0 $0 $337,500 $0 $0 $1,208,449
EN2009-20A3 $217,461 $0 $0 $0 $0 $54,365 $0 $0 $271,826
EN2010-20AM6 $806,707 $59,392 $0 $0 $0 $216,525 $0 $0 $1,082,624
EN2011-20A3 $253,283 $0 $0 $0 $0 $63,321 $0 $0 $316,604
EN2103-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,690 $30,760 $38,450
SUBTOTAL $5,549,867 $740,106 $1,600 $577,000 $2,679,000 $1,692,258 $912,290 $391,560 $12,543,681

EN1901-19 $0 $0 $196,000 $315,000 $704,200 $0 $303,800 $0 $1,519,000
EN2002-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $4,000 $5,000
EN2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $152,800 $0 $38,200 $0 $191,000
EN2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $184,600 $738,400 $923,000
EN2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $290,600 $1,162,400 $1,453,000
EN2007-20 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $2,000
EN2103-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $49,382 $199,129 $248,511
SUBTOTAL $0 $0 $197,600 $315,000 $857,000 $0 $867,982 $2,103,929 $4,341,511

EN2002-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $8,000 $10,000
EN2003-20AM5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $326,000 $1,304,000 $1,630,000
EN2007-20 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $10,000
SUBTOTAL $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $330,000 $1,312,000 $1,650,000

GRAND TOTAL $6,282,833 $1,275,239 $208,800 $892,000 $4,044,378 $2,012,482 $2,237,272 $3,931,489 $20,884,493

2021

2022

2023

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-2 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



STBG-U TAP NHPP STBG STAP Local MoDOT-AC MoDOT TOTAL
PRIOR YEAR
Balance 853,353$          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 853,353$           
FY 2020
Funds Anticipated 732,966$          421,887$          1,600$              $508,378.00 $0.00 320,224$          124,000$          127,000$          2,236,055$        
Funds Programmed ($732,966) ($535,133) ($1,600) ($508,378) $0 ($320,224) ($124,000) ($127,000) ($2,349,301)
Running Balance $0.00 $740,107.38 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $740,107.38
FY 2021
Funds Anticipated 5,549,867$       $430,324.80 $1,600.00 $2,679,000.00 $577,000.00 $1,692,258.00 $391,560.00 $912,290.00 12,233,900$      
Funds Programmed ($5,549,867) ($740,106) ($1,600) ($2,679,000) ($577,000) ($1,692,258) ($391,560) ($912,290) ($12,543,681)
Running Balance $0.00 $430,326.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $430,326.18
FY 2022
Funds Anticipated -$                 $438,931.30 $197,600.00 $857,000.00 $315,000.00 $0.00 $2,103,929.00 $867,982.00 4,780,442$        
Funds Programmed $0 $0 ($197,600) ($857,000) ($315,000) $0 ($2,103,929) ($867,982) ($4,341,511)
Running Balance $0.00 $869,257.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $869,257.48
FY 2023
Funds Anticipated -$                 $447,709.92 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,312,000.00 $330,000.00 2,097,710$        
Funds Programmed $0 $0 ($8,000) $0 $0 $0 ($1,312,000) ($330,000) ($1,650,000)
Running Balance $0.00 $1,316,967.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,316,967.40

FINANCIAL CONSTRAINT

Bicycle & Pedestrian

Federal (FHWA)

* STBG-Urban funds are available for use on both Bicycle/Pedestrian Projects and Roadway projects.  Their distribution between these types of projects is not determined ahead 
of their programming by project.  To see the entire amount of funding available for STBG-Urban, please visit page H-viii, Table H.2 or page H-10.  STBG and STAP funding are 
statewide funding, with programming selected by MoDOT in consultation with OTO.

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-3 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

BA1801-19A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $413,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $103,400 $0 $0 $0 $517,000
CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
CC1803-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
GR1403-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR1501 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
GR1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,160 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,040 $0 $0 $0 $45,200
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $22,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
GR1804-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1901-20AM6 $970,140 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $242,535 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,212,675
GR1902-20AM6 $2,549,861 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $637,465 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,187,326
GR1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,400 $0 $0 $0 $37,000
GR1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $224,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,900 $0 $0 $0 $249,000
GR1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $76,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000
GR1907-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $4,000 $0 $5,000
GR1908-19 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1909-19 $0 $0 $27,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,800 $0 $0 $0 $34,000
GR1910-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $39,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,800 $0 $0 $0 $49,000
GR2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,400 $0 $513,600 $0 $642,000
GR2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $848,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $212,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,060,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
GR2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,800 $0 $35,200 $0 $44,000
GR2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $10,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,200 $0 $44,800 $0 $56,000
GR2009-20AM6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2011-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $20,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1720 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1803-18 $0 $182,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,300 $0 $0 $0 $203,000
MO1804-18 $332,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $83,000 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $416,000
MO1903-19 $0 $245,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,300 $0 $0 $0 $273,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000
MO2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,900 $0 $197,100 $0 $219,000
MO2002-20 $0 $775,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,200 $0 $0 $0 $862,000
MO2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $356,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $89,200 $0 $0 $0 $446,000
MO2004-20 $0 $7,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
MO2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $181,200 $0 $724,800 $0 $906,000
MO2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
MO2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,000 $0 $104,000 $0 $130,000
MO2008-20 $0 $900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
MO2010-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $100,000
MO2101-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $572,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $143,400 $0 $800 $0 $717,000
MO2103-19 $0 $181,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,200 $0 $0 $0 $202,000
NX1701-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $172,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $38,000 $0 $0 $0 $215,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX1803-18A2 $584,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $424,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $145,500 $0 $0 $106,500 $0 $0 $0 $1,260,000
NX1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $456,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $114,200 $0 $0 $0 $571,000
NX1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,800 $0 $0 $0 $89,000
NX2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $120,000 $0 $480,000 $0 $600,000
OK1401-18AM4 $1,512,439 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,372,151 $0 $0 $0 $378,111 $0 $0 $343,037 $0 $0 $0 $3,605,738
OK1701-20A2 $0 $835,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,533,170 $0 $0 $0 $374,950 $0 $0 $935,780 $0 $0 $0 $4,678,900
OK1802-19A3 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350,151 $0 $0 $0 $0 $740,993 $595,814 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123,499 $2,610,457
OK1803 $105,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,674,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,300 $0 $0 $668,700 $0 $0 $0 $3,475,000
OK1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $32,000
OT1901-19A5 $210,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $52,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $262,500
RG0901-18A1 $0 $748,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $83,200 $0 $0 $0 $832,000
RP1701 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
RP1703-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
RP1704-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
RP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,234,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $308,600 $0 $0 $0 $1,543,000
RP1803-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $171,200 $0 $684,800 $0 $856,000
RP1901-19A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,356,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $339,200 $0 $0 $0 $1,696,000
RP2001-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,400 $0 $0 $0 $16,400
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
FY 2020 continued on next page

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal State

2020

Local

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-4 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal StateLocal

SP1419-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1708 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
SP1709 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
SP1710 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $23,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,800 $0 $0 $0 $29,000
SP1801-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1805-18 $0 $0 $0 $1,467,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $163,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,630,000
SP1809-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,449,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $362,400 $0 $0 $0 $1,812,000
SP1811-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1812-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1815-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000
SP1816-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1817-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1904-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $18,000
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1907-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $477,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $119,400 $0 $0 $0 $597,000
SP1908-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1912-19A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $52,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2003-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $515,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,800 $0 $0 $0 $644,000
SP2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,221,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $305,400 $0 $0 $0 $1,527,000
SP2005-20A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $807,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $201,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,009,000
SP2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $10,000
SP2007-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $32,000 $0 $40,000
SP2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP2009-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
SP2010-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,373,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $593,400 $0 $0 $0 $2,967,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2015-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $420,600 $1,682,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,103,000
ST1901-19AM2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,400 $0 $53,600 $0 $67,000
SUBTOTAL $7,079,640 $3,069,200 $28,800 $1,700,100 $46,000 $350,151 $14,843,600 $5,131,081 $0 $10,000 $740,993 $2,966,775 $1,682,400 $0 $6,509,257 $16,000 $2,988,700 $123,499 $47,286,196

CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $252,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $63,200 $0 $0 $0 $316,000
CC1803-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $476,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $119,000 $0 $0 $0 $595,000
CC2101-20A5 $0 $16,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $18,000
CC2102-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $120,000 $0 $150,000
CC2103-20A7 $392,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $118,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $510,000
GR1403-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $565,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $141,400 $0 $0 $0 $707,000
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1804-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $551,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $137,800 $0 $0 $0 $689,000
GR1901-20AM6 $15,121,524 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,360,894 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,482,418
GR1902-20AM6 $385,935 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $96,484 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $482,419
GR1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,864,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $466,200 $0 $0 $0 $2,331,000
GR1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $3,842,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $426,900 $0 $0 $0 $4,269,000
GR1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,178,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $294,600 $0 $0 $0 $1,473,000
GR1907-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,600 $0 $18,400 $0 $23,000
GR1908-19 $0 $0 $237,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $59,400 $0 $0 $0 $297,000
GR1909-19 $0 $0 $1,144,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $286,200 $0 $0 $0 $1,431,000
GR1910-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $534,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $133,600 $0 $0 $0 $668,000
GR1912-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $250,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
GR2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $16,000
GR2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $139,800 $0 $559,200 $0 $699,000
GR2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $82,200 $0 $328,800 $0 $411,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $177,000 $0 $708,000 $0 $885,000
GR2009-20AM6 $440,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $110,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $550,000
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2011-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,500 $0 $0 $51,000
GR2101-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,000 $0 $0 $300,000
GR2102-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $39,600 $0 $158,400 $0 $198,000
GR2105-20A5 $480,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000
GR2106-20A5 $560,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $140,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $700,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1720 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000
MO2004-20 $0 $457,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,800 $0 $0 $0 $508,000
FY 2021 continued on next page

2021

2020 Continued

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-5 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal StateLocal

MO2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO2008-20 $0 $183,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,400 $0 $0 $0 $204,000
MO2010-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $100,000
MO2101-18 $332,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $83,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $415,000
MO2104-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
MO2105-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,500 $0 $202,500 $0 $225,000
MO2106-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $50,000
MO2107-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $6,400 $0 $8,000
MO2108-20A8 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $186,000 $0 $744,000 $0 $930,000
NX1701-20AM8 $202,270 $577,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,237,530 $0 $0 $0 $0 $99,446 $0 $0 $1,404,754 $0 $0 $0 $7,521,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX2102-20A5 $437,506 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $109,376 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $546,882
NX2201-20A8 $1,530,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $382,638 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,913,188
OK1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,637,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $409,400 $0 $0 $0 $2,047,000
OK2101-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $112,000 $0 $448,000 $0 $560,000
OT1901-19A5 $220,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $55,125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $275,625
RG0901-18A1 $0 $1,618,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $179,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,798,000
RP1701 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
RP1703-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
RP1704-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
RP2001-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $81,600 $0 $85,600
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1419-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1708 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
SP1709 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
SP1710 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $860,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,075,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1811-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1812-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1815-20A5 $46,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $74,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,500 $0 $0 $18,500 $0 $0 $0 $150,000
SP1816-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $111,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,800 $0 $0 $0 $139,000
SP1817-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
SP1818-20AM5 $1,160,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,883,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $573,200 $0 $0 $470,800 $0 $0 $0 $4,088,000
SP1902-20AM5 $1,120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $280,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,400,000
SP1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $636,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $159,200 $0 $0 $0 $796,000
SP1904-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,016,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $254,200 $0 $0 $0 $1,271,000
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1907-20A7 $0 $995,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,877,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,468,000 $0 $0 $0 $22,340,000
SP1908-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,800 $0 $0 $0 $379,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2003-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $337,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $84,400 $0 $0 $0 $422,000
SP2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $10,000
SP2007-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $130,000 $0 $520,000 $0 $650,000
SP2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,800 $0 $0 $0 $14,000
SP2009-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,400 $0 $0 $0 $7,000
SP2011-20AM6 $640,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $160,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800,000
SP2012-20A7 $2,392,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $598,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,990,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2014-20A7 $1,288,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $322,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,610,000
SP2015-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,278,422 $0 $0 $4,819,606 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,098,028
SP2016-20AM6 $760,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950,000
SP2101-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
SP2102-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $6,400 $0 $8,000
SP2103-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
SP2104-20A7 $240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300,000
SP2114-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500,000 $0 $0 $1,502,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,002,000
SUBTOTAL $27,749,085 $3,917,800 $1,382,400 $3,851,100 $440,000 $0 $33,170,930 $1,532,000 $19,278,422 $25,500 $0 $19,190,269 $0 $0 $12,553,454 $135,500 $4,047,700 $0 $127,274,160

CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,104,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $776,200 $0 $0 $0 $3,881,000
CC1803-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2101-20A5 $0 $238,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,500 $0 $0 $0 $265,000
CC2102-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $120,000 $0 $150,000
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1902-20AM6 $3,246,479 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,253,521 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500,000
GR1907-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $418,000 $0 $1,672,000 $0 $2,090,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
GR2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,307,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $326,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,634,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2011-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $562,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $562,000 $0 $0 $1,124,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $23,500 $0 $0 $0 $23,500
MO2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $569,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $142,400 $0 $0 $0 $712,000
MO2104-20A7 $340,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $541,600 $0 $0 $0 $85,000 $0 $0 $135,400 $0 $0 $0 $1,102,000
MO2106-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $203,600 $0 $814,400 $0 $1,018,000
MO2107-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,400 $0 $89,600 $0 $112,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX2101-20AM7 $1,873,146 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $468,286 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,341,432
OT1901-19A5 $231,525 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $57,881 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $289,406
RG0901-18A1 $0 $13,194,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,466,100 $0 $0 $0 $14,661,000
RP1703-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
RP1704-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,400 $0 $137,600 $0 $172,000
SP1708 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $748,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $187,000 $0 $0 $0 $935,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1811-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
FY 2022 continued on next page

2022

2021 Continued

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-6 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal StateLocal

SP1812-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1815-20A5 $999,803 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $723,397 $0 $0 $0 $0 $249,951 $0 $0 $180,849 $0 $0 $0 $2,154,000
SP1816-20A6 $61,828 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $147,772 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,457 $0 $0 $36,943 $0 $0 $0 $262,000
SP1817-20A6 $91,745 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $253,855 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,936 $0 $0 $63,464 $0 $0 $0 $432,000
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $3,200 $0 $4,000
SP1908-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,782,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $695,600 $0 $0 $0 $3,478,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2003-20A7 $0 $677,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,991,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,167,200 $0 $0 $0 $5,836,000
SP2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $297,800 $0 $1,191,200 $0 $1,489,000
SP2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,423,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $355,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,779,000
SP2009-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $780,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $195,000 $0 $0 $0 $975,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2101-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250,033 $0 $0 $0 $250,033
SP2102-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $55,262 $0 $221,050 $0 $276,312
SP2103-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $615,216 $0 $0 $0 $615,216
SP2104-20A7 $1,360,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $340,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,700,000
SP2201-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000
SP2202-20A5 $1,232,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $308,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,540,000
SUBTOTAL $9,436,526 $14,181,000 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $11,388,224 $5,152,600 $0 $562,000 $0 $2,802,032 $0 $0 $7,771,667 $762,000 $4,253,850 $0 $57,109,899

CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,268,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,067,200 $0 $0 $0 $10,336,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2102-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $120,000 $0 $150,000
GR1502 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1902-20AM6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,984,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $496,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,480,000
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000
MO2301-20A5 $344,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $430,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX2301-20A5 $206,064 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $51,516 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $257,580
OT1901-19A5 $243,101 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,775 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303,876
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $142,200 $0 $568,800 $0 $711,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1816-20A6 $1,030,915 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $768,172 $0 $0 $0 $0 $257,729 $0 $0 $192,043 $0 $0 $0 $2,248,859
SP1817-20A6 $1,146,113 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $858,403 $0 $0 $0 $0 $286,529 $0 $0 $214,601 $0 $0 $0 $2,505,646
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $265,400 $0 $1,061,600 $0 $1,327,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 $0 $0 $0 $3,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SUBTOTAL $2,970,193 $64,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,990,575 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,743,549 $0 $0 $3,482,244 $0 $1,753,600 $0 $26,052,961

GRAND TOTAL $47,235,444 $21,232,800 $1,411,200 $5,551,200 $1,286,000 $350,151 $71,393,329 $11,863,681 $19,278,422 $597,500 $740,993 $30,702,625 $1,682,400 $0 $30,316,622 $913,500 $13,043,850 $123,499 $257,723,216

2023

2022 Continued

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-7 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



STBG-U  Safety  Bridge I/M 130 BRO  NHPP  STBG  BUILD  CRISI  FEMA 
 TOTAL 

Federal Funds 

 Local 
Programmed 

Funds 

 MoDOT 
Programmed 

Funds  Other 

 State 
Operations 

and 
Maintenance TOTAL

2009
2020 Funds Programmed $7,079,640 $3,069,200 $28,800 $1,700,100 $46,000 $350,151 $14,843,600 $5,131,081 $0 $10,000 $740,993 $32,999,565 $4,649,175 $9,513,957 $123,499 $5,380,129 $52,666,325
2021 Funds Programmed $27,749,085 $3,917,800 $1,382,400 $3,851,100 $440,000 $0 $33,170,930 $1,532,000 $19,278,422 $25,500 $0 $91,347,237 $19,190,269 $16,736,654 $0 $5,476,971 $132,751,131
2022 Funds Programmed $9,436,526 $14,181,000 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $11,388,224 $5,152,600 $0 $562,000 $0 $41,520,350 $2,802,032 $12,787,517 $0 $5,575,557 $62,685,456
2023 Funds Programmed $2,970,193 $64,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,990,575 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,073,568 $5,743,549 $5,235,844 $0 $5,675,917 $31,728,878
Total $47,235,444 21,232,800$      1,411,200$     5,551,200$   1,286,000$        350,151$        71,393,329$ 11,863,681$   19,278,422$   597,500$        740,993$      180,940,720$ 32,385,025$       44,273,972$   123,499$       22,108,574$ $279,831,790

Prior Year FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 TOTAL
Available State and Federal Funding $10,127,993 $56,146,056 $34,011,183 $40,437,989 $26,209,000 $166,932,221
Federal Discretionary Funding $0 $20,995,822 $25,500 $562,000 $0 $21,583,322
Available Operations and Maintenance Funding $0 $5,380,129 $5,476,971 $5,575,557 $5,675,917 $22,108,574
Funds from Other Sources (inc. Local) $123,499 $4,649,175 $19,190,269 $2,802,032 $5,743,549 $32,508,524
Available Suballocated Funding $27,323,332 $7,026,406 $2,724,380 $6,190,047 $6,245,342 $49,509,507
TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING $37,574,824 $94,197,588 $61,428,303 $55,567,625 $43,873,808 $292,642,148
Prior Year Funding $37,574,824 $79,106,087 $7,783,259 $665,428 --
Programmed State and Federal Funding ($52,666,325) ($132,751,131) ($62,685,456) ($31,728,878) ($279,831,790)
TOTAL REMAINING $37,574,824 $79,106,087 $7,783,259 $665,428 $12,810,358 $12,810,358

Additional Funds from Other Sources include one-time FEMA and SEMA grant funding for the Riverside Bridge Replacement.

Available State and Federal Funding shown here does not include Funding Available shown on Bike/Ped Financial Constraint Page.

See Table H.9 for details on Local Share Financial Capacity.

FINANCIAL CONSTRAINT

Roadways

Federal Funding Source

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-8 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 7 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM II.E. 
 

Amendment Number Nine to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
There are 4 items requested by MoDOT included as part of Amendment Number Nine to the FY 2020-
2023 Transportation Improvement Program. 
 

1. *New* Route 14 Roadway Improvements 6th to W on South (OK2002-20A9) 
MoDOT is requesting to add a project for scoping roadway improvements from 6th Avenue to W 
along Route 14 for a total programmed amount of $293,000. 
 

2. *New* Route CC Capital Improvements (OK2102-20A9) 
MoDOT is requesting to add a project for scoping roadway improvements from Fremont Road to 
22nd Street along Route CC for a total programmed amount of $150,000. 
 

3. *Revised* Interchange Improvements at Route 60 and Route 125 (RG0901-20A9) 
MoDOT is requesting to update the programming for the Route 60 and 125 interchange with a 
new total programmed amount of $24,482,000. 
 

4. *Revised* Scoping for Route MM Railroad Crossing Improvements (RP1704-20A9) 
MoDOT is requesting to update the amounts for scoping the MM railroad crossing 
improvements, with a new total programmed amount of $2,104,000. 

 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
 
At its regularly scheduled meeting on February 17, 2021, the Technical Planning Committee 
recommended the Board of Directors approve Amendment 9 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation 
Improvement Program. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve Amendment 9 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve Amendment 9 to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program, with these 
changes…” 



J) Pending Amendment Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Proposed Amendment 9 2/5/2021J-1

TIP #  OK2002-20A9
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

ROUTE 14 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS 6TH TO W ON SOUTH
Route 14
6th Avenue
W

City of Ozark
FHWA
MoDOT
STBG
Flexible and Other

8P0583

Scoping for roadway improvements on South Street from 6th Avenue to W in Ozark.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated Advanced Construction (AC)
Conversion - STBG

$0
$6,705,000
$6,998,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
MoDOT State ENG $8,600 $20,000 $20,000 $10,000 $58,600
MoDOT-AC State ENG $34,400 $80,000 $80,000 $40,000 $234,400
Totals $43,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $293,000

PROPOSED



J) Pending Amendment Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Proposed Amendment 9 2/5/2021J-1

TIP #  OK2102-20A9
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

ROUTE CC CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
CC
Fremont Road
22nd Street

City of Ozark
FHWA
MoDOT
STBG
Flexible and Other

8S0736D

Scoping for capital improvements on Route CC from Fremont Road to 22nd Street in Ozark.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated Advanced Construction (AC)
Conversion - STBG

$0
$3,242,000
$3,392,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
MoDOT State ENG $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $30,000
MoDOT-AC State ENG $0 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $120,000
Totals $0 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $150,000

PROPOSED



J) Pending Amendment Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Proposed Amendment 9 2/5/2021J-1

TIP #  RG0901-20A9
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENTS AT ROUTE 60 & ROUTE 125
US 60 and Route 125
Farm Road 213 
Farm Road 247

City of Rogersville
FHWA
MoDOT
Safety
Flexible and Other

Yes
8P0683E
0602093

Add interchange at Route 125 in Rogersville. $3,094,000 Open Container funds. 50% funding from rural
Southwest District.

Federal Revenue Source: Open Container Funds
Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: $4,008,000 Open Container Funds; 50% funding from rural Southwest
District

$493,000
$0
$24,975,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal ENG $665,600 $420,000 $248,000 $901,600 $2,235,200
MoDOT State ENG $166,400 $105,000 $62,000 $225,400 $558,800
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal ROW $0 $0 $3,038,400 $0 $3,038,400
MoDOT State ROW $0 $0 $759,600 $0 $759,600
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal CON $0 $0 $0 $14,312,000 $14,312,000
MoDOT State CON $0 $0 $0 $3,578,000 $3,578,000
Totals $832,000 $525,000 $4,108,000 $19,017,000 $24,482,000

PROPOSED



F) Roadways Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Proposed Amendment 9 2/5/2021F-1

TIP #  RG0901-18A1
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENTS AT ROUTE 60 & ROUTE 125
US 60 and Route 125
Farm Road 213 
Farm Road 247

City of Rogersville
FHWA
MoDOT
NHPP(NHS)
Flexible and Other

Yes
8P0683E
0602093

Add interchange at Route 125 in Rogersville. $3,094,000 Open Container funds. 50% funding from rural
Southwest District.

Federal Revenue Source: Open Container Funds
Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: $3,094,000 Open Container Funds; 50% funding from rural Southwest
District

$493,000
$0
$17,784,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal ENG $748,800 $829,800 $1,170,000 $0 $2,748,600
MoDOT State ENG $83,200 $92,200 $130,000 $0 $305,400
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal ROW $0 $788,400 $0 $0 $788,400
MoDOT State ROW $0 $87,600 $0 $0 $87,600
FHWA (SAFETY) Federal CON $0 $0 $12,024,900 $0 $12,024,900
MoDOT State CON $0 $0 $1,336,100 $0 $1,336,100
Totals $832,000 $1,798,000 $14,661,000 $0 $17,291,000

ORIG
IN

AL



J) Pending Amendment Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Proposed Amendment 9 2/5/2021J-1

TIP #  RP1704-20A9
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

SCOPING FOR ROUTE MM RAILROAD CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS
MM
Morning Star Lane
Route ZZ

City of Republic
FHWA
MoDOT
Advance Construction
Major Projects and Emerging Needs

Yes
8S0836

Scoping for railroad crossing improvements on Brookline Avenue (Route MM) at BNSF railway in
Republic.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated Advanced Construction (AC)
Conversion - STBG

$443,000
$26,972,000
$29,519,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
MoDOT State ENG $400 $200,400 $200,000 $20,000 $420,800
MoDOT-AC State ENG $1,600 $801,600 $800,000 $80,000 $1,683,200
Totals $2,000 $1,002,000 $1,000,000 $100,000 $2,104,000

PROPOSED



F) Roadways Section

Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2020-2023 
Project Detail by Section and Project Number with Map

FY 2020-2023 TIP Proposed Amendment 9 2/5/2021F-1

TIP #  RP1704-17A3
Route
From
To
Location
Federal Agency
Project Sponsor
Federal Funding Category
MoDOT Funding Category
Bike/Ped Plan? EJ?
STIP #
Federal ID #

Project Description

Notes
Prior Cost
Future Cost
Total Cost

SCOPING FOR ROUTE MM RAILROAD CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS
MM
Morning Star Lane
Route ZZ

City of Republic
FHWA
MoDOT
Advance Construction
Major Projects and Emerging Needs

Yes
8S0836

Scoping for railroad crossing improvements on Brookline Avenue (Route MM) at BNSF railway in
Republic.

Non-Federal Funding Source: State Transportation Revenues

FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated Advanced Construction (AC)
Conversion - STBG

$443,000
$0
$449,000

Fund Code Source Phase FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total
MoDOT State ENG $400 $400 $400 $0 $1,200
MoDOT-AC State ENG $1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $0 $4,800
Totals $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 $6,000

ORIG
IN

AL



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

BA1801-19A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $413,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $103,400 $0 $0 $0 $517,000
CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
CC1803-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
GR1403-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR1501 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
GR1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $36,160 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,040 $0 $0 $0 $45,200
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $22,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
GR1804-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1901-20AM6 $970,140 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $242,535 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,212,675
GR1902-20AM6 $2,549,861 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $637,465 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,187,326
GR1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,400 $0 $0 $0 $37,000
GR1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $224,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,900 $0 $0 $0 $249,000
GR1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $76,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000
GR1907-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $4,000 $0 $5,000
GR1908-19 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1909-19 $0 $0 $27,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,800 $0 $0 $0 $34,000
GR1910-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $39,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,800 $0 $0 $0 $49,000
GR2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,400 $0 $513,600 $0 $642,000
GR2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $848,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $212,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,060,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
GR2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,800 $0 $35,200 $0 $44,000
GR2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $10,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,200 $0 $44,800 $0 $56,000
GR2009-20AM6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2011-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $20,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1720 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1803-18 $0 $182,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,300 $0 $0 $0 $203,000
MO1804-18 $332,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $83,000 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $416,000
MO1903-19 $0 $245,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,300 $0 $0 $0 $273,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000
MO2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,900 $0 $197,100 $0 $219,000
MO2002-20 $0 $775,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,200 $0 $0 $0 $862,000
MO2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $356,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $89,200 $0 $0 $0 $446,000
MO2004-20 $0 $7,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
MO2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $181,200 $0 $724,800 $0 $906,000
MO2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
MO2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,000 $0 $104,000 $0 $130,000
MO2008-20 $0 $900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
MO2010-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $100,000
MO2101-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $572,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $143,400 $0 $800 $0 $717,000
MO2103-19 $0 $181,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,200 $0 $0 $0 $202,000
NX1701-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $172,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $38,000 $0 $0 $0 $215,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX1803-18A2 $584,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $424,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $145,500 $0 $0 $106,500 $0 $0 $0 $1,260,000
NX1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $456,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $114,200 $0 $0 $0 $571,000
NX1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,800 $0 $0 $0 $89,000
NX2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $120,000 $0 $480,000 $0 $600,000
OK1401-18AM4 $1,512,439 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,372,151 $0 $0 $0 $378,111 $0 $0 $343,037 $0 $0 $0 $3,605,738
OK1701-20A2 $0 $835,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,533,170 $0 $0 $0 $374,950 $0 $0 $935,780 $0 $0 $0 $4,678,900
OK1802-19A3 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $350,151 $0 $0 $0 $0 $740,993 $595,814 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123,499 $2,610,457
OK1803 $105,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,674,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,300 $0 $0 $668,700 $0 $0 $0 $3,475,000
OK1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $32,000
OK2002-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,600 $0 $34,400 $0 $43,000
OT1901-19A5 $210,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $52,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $262,500
RG0901-20A9 $0 $665,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $166,400 $0 $0 $0 $832,000
RP1701 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
RP1703-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
RP1704-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
RP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,234,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $308,600 $0 $0 $0 $1,543,000
RP1803-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $171,200 $0 $684,800 $0 $856,000
RP1901-19A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,356,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $339,200 $0 $0 $0 $1,696,000
RP2001-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,400 $0 $0 $0 $16,400
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
FY 2020 continued on next page

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal State

2020

Local

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-1 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal StateLocal

SP1419-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1708 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
SP1709 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
SP1710 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $23,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,800 $0 $0 $0 $29,000
SP1801-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1805-18 $0 $0 $0 $1,467,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $163,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,630,000
SP1809-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,449,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $362,400 $0 $0 $0 $1,812,000
SP1811-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1812-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1815-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $35,000
SP1816-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1817-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1904-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,600 $0 $0 $0 $18,000
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1907-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $477,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $119,400 $0 $0 $0 $597,000
SP1908-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1912-19A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $52,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2003-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $515,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,800 $0 $0 $0 $644,000
SP2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,221,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $305,400 $0 $0 $0 $1,527,000
SP2005-20A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $807,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $201,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,009,000
SP2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $10,000
SP2007-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $32,000 $0 $40,000
SP2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP2009-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
SP2010-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,373,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $593,400 $0 $0 $0 $2,967,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2015-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $420,600 $1,682,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,103,000
ST1901-19AM2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $13,400 $0 $53,600 $0 $67,000
SUBTOTAL $7,079,640 $2,986,000 $28,800 $1,700,100 $46,000 $350,151 $14,843,600 $5,131,081 $0 $10,000 $740,993 $2,966,775 $1,682,400 $0 $6,601,057 $16,000 $3,023,100 $123,499 $47,329,196

CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $252,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $63,200 $0 $0 $0 $316,000
CC1803-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2001-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $476,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $119,000 $0 $0 $0 $595,000
CC2101-20A5 $0 $16,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $18,000
CC2102-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $120,000 $0 $150,000
CC2103-20A7 $392,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $118,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $510,000
GR1403-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR1703 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $565,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $141,400 $0 $0 $0 $707,000
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1804-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $551,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $137,800 $0 $0 $0 $689,000
GR1901-20AM6 $15,121,524 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,360,894 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,482,418
GR1902-20AM6 $385,935 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $96,484 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $482,419
GR1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,864,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $466,200 $0 $0 $0 $2,331,000
GR1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $3,842,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $426,900 $0 $0 $0 $4,269,000
GR1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,178,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $294,600 $0 $0 $0 $1,473,000
GR1907-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,600 $0 $18,400 $0 $23,000
GR1908-19 $0 $0 $237,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $59,400 $0 $0 $0 $297,000
GR1909-19 $0 $0 $1,144,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $286,200 $0 $0 $0 $1,431,000
GR1910-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $534,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $133,600 $0 $0 $0 $668,000
GR1912-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $250,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
GR2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $16,000
GR2005-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $139,800 $0 $559,200 $0 $699,000
GR2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $82,200 $0 $328,800 $0 $411,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $177,000 $0 $708,000 $0 $885,000
GR2009-20AM6 $440,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $110,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $550,000
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2011-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,500 $0 $0 $51,000
GR2101-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,000 $0 $0 $300,000
GR2102-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $39,600 $0 $158,400 $0 $198,000
GR2105-20A5 $480,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000
GR2106-20A5 $560,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $140,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $700,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1720 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000
MO2004-20 $0 $457,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,800 $0 $0 $0 $508,000
FY 2021 continued on next page

2021

2020 Continued

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-2 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal StateLocal

MO2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO2008-20 $0 $183,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,400 $0 $0 $0 $204,000
MO2010-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $100,000
MO2101-18 $332,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $83,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $415,000
MO2104-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
MO2105-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,500 $0 $202,500 $0 $225,000
MO2106-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $50,000
MO2107-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $6,400 $0 $8,000
MO2108-20A8 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $186,000 $0 $744,000 $0 $930,000
NX1701-20AM8 $202,270 $577,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,237,530 $0 $0 $0 $0 $99,446 $0 $0 $1,404,754 $0 $0 $0 $7,521,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX2102-20A5 $437,506 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $109,376 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $546,882
NX2201-20A8 $1,530,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $382,638 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,913,188
OK1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,637,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $409,400 $0 $0 $0 $2,047,000
OK2002-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $80,000 $0 $100,000
OK2101-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $112,000 $0 $448,000 $0 $560,000
OK2102-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $50,000
OT1901-19A5 $220,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $55,125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $275,625
RG0901-20A9 $0 $420,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $105,000 $0 $0 $0 $525,000
RP1701 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
RP1703-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
RP1704-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,400 $0 $801,600 $0 $1,002,000
RP2001-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $81,600 $0 $85,600
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1419-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
SP1708 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
SP1709 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
SP1710 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $860,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,075,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1811-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1812-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1815-20A5 $46,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $74,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,500 $0 $0 $18,500 $0 $0 $0 $150,000
SP1816-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $111,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,800 $0 $0 $0 $139,000
SP1817-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
SP1818-20AM5 $1,160,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,883,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $573,200 $0 $0 $470,800 $0 $0 $0 $4,088,000
SP1902-20AM5 $1,120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $280,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,400,000
SP1903-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $636,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $159,200 $0 $0 $0 $796,000
SP1904-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,016,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $254,200 $0 $0 $0 $1,271,000
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
SP1907-20A7 $0 $995,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,877,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,468,000 $0 $0 $0 $22,340,000
SP1908-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,800 $0 $0 $0 $379,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2003-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $337,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $84,400 $0 $0 $0 $422,000
SP2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $10,000
SP2007-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $130,000 $0 $520,000 $0 $650,000
SP2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,800 $0 $0 $0 $14,000
SP2009-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,400 $0 $0 $0 $7,000
SP2011-20AM6 $640,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $160,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800,000
SP2012-20A7 $2,392,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $598,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,990,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2014-20A7 $1,288,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $322,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,610,000
SP2015-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,278,422 $0 $0 $4,819,606 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,098,028
SP2016-20AM6 $760,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950,000
SP2101-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
SP2102-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $6,400 $0 $8,000
SP2103-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $8,000
SP2104-20A7 $240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300,000
SP2114-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500,000 $0 $0 $1,502,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,002,000
SUBTOTAL $27,749,085 $2,719,600 $1,382,400 $3,851,100 $440,000 $0 $33,170,930 $1,532,000 $19,278,422 $25,500 $0 $19,190,269 $0 $0 $12,708,654 $135,500 $4,967,700 $0 $127,151,160

CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,104,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $776,200 $0 $0 $0 $3,881,000
CC1803-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2101-20A5 $0 $238,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26,500 $0 $0 $0 $265,000
CC2102-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $120,000 $0 $150,000
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1902-20AM6 $3,246,479 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,253,521 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,500,000
GR1907-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $418,000 $0 $1,672,000 $0 $2,090,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $4,000
GR2004-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,307,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $326,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,634,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
GR2011-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $562,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $562,000 $0 $0 $1,124,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $23,500 $0 $0 $0 $23,500
MO2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $569,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $142,400 $0 $0 $0 $712,000
MO2104-20A7 $340,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $541,600 $0 $0 $0 $85,000 $0 $0 $135,400 $0 $0 $0 $1,102,000
MO2106-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $203,600 $0 $814,400 $0 $1,018,000
MO2107-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,400 $0 $89,600 $0 $112,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX2101-20AM7 $1,873,146 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $468,286 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,341,432
OK2002-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $80,000 $0 $100,000
OK2102-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $50,000
OT1901-19A5 $231,525 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $57,881 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $289,406
RG0901-18A1 $0 $3,286,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $821,600 $0 $0 $0 $4,108,000
RP1703-17A3 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
RP1704-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $800,000 $0 $1,000,000
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,400 $0 $137,600 $0 $172,000
SP1708 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $748,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $187,000 $0 $0 $0 $935,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1811-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
FY 2022 continued on next page

2022

2021 Continued

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-3 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



YEARLY SUMMARY

PROJECT FHWA (STBG-U) FHWA (SAFETY) FHWA (BRIDGE) FHWA (I/M) FHWA (130) FHWA (BRO) FHWA (NHPP) FHWA (STBG) FHWA(BUILD) FRA (CRISI) FEMA LOCAL LOCAL-AC OTHER MoDOT MoDOT-GCSA MoDOT-AC SEMA TOTAL

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Roadways

Federal StateLocal

SP1812-18 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1815-20A5 $999,803 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $723,397 $0 $0 $0 $0 $249,951 $0 $0 $180,849 $0 $0 $0 $2,154,000
SP1816-20A6 $61,828 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $147,772 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,457 $0 $0 $36,943 $0 $0 $0 $262,000
SP1817-20A6 $91,745 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $253,855 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,936 $0 $0 $63,464 $0 $0 $0 $432,000
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 $0 $3,200 $0 $4,000
SP1908-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,782,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $695,600 $0 $0 $0 $3,478,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2003-20A7 $0 $677,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,991,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,167,200 $0 $0 $0 $5,836,000
SP2006-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $297,800 $0 $1,191,200 $0 $1,489,000
SP2008-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,423,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $355,800 $0 $0 $0 $1,779,000
SP2009-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $780,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $195,000 $0 $0 $0 $975,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2101-20A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250,033 $0 $0 $0 $250,033
SP2102-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $55,262 $0 $221,050 $0 $276,312
SP2103-20A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $615,216 $0 $0 $0 $615,216
SP2104-20A7 $1,360,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $340,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,700,000
SP2201-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000
SP2202-20A5 $1,232,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $308,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,540,000
SUBTOTAL $9,436,526 $4,272,500 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $11,388,224 $5,152,600 $0 $562,000 $0 $2,802,032 $0 $0 $7,356,767 $762,000 $5,172,250 $0 $47,704,899

CC0901 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
CC1102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
CC1802 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,268,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,067,200 $0 $0 $0 $10,336,000
CC1901-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC1902-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $1,600 $0 $2,000
CC2102-20A7 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $120,000 $0 $150,000
GR1502 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000
GR1707-17A6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
GR1801-18 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
GR1902-20AM6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000
GR2003-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
GR2007-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,984,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $496,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,480,000
GR2010-20A1 $0 $9,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $10,000
MO1405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000
MO1719-18A5 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1721-18A5 $0 $54,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $60,000
MO1722 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1723 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000
MO1905-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000
MO2301-20A5 $344,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $430,000
NX1704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
NX2301-20A5 $206,064 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $51,516 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $257,580
OK2002-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $50,000
OK2102-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $50,000
OT1901-19A5 $243,101 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $60,775 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $303,876
RG0901-20A9 $0 $15,213,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,803,400 $0 $0 $0 $19,017,000
RP1704-20A9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $80,000 $0 $100,000
SP1405-18A1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1413-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $142,200 $0 $568,800 $0 $711,000
SP1802-18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1816-20A6 $1,030,915 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $768,172 $0 $0 $0 $0 $257,729 $0 $0 $192,043 $0 $0 $0 $2,248,859
SP1817-20A6 $1,146,113 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $858,403 $0 $0 $0 $0 $286,529 $0 $0 $214,601 $0 $0 $0 $2,505,646
SP1906-19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $265,400 $0 $1,061,600 $0 $1,327,000
SP1909-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1910-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP1911-19A2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SP2002-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 $0 $0 $0 $3,000
SP2013-20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
SUBTOTAL $2,970,193 $15,278,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,990,575 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,743,549 $0 $0 $7,325,644 $0 $1,913,600 $0 $45,269,961

GRAND TOTAL $47,235,444 $25,256,500 $1,411,200 $5,551,200 $1,286,000 $350,151 $71,393,329 $11,863,681 $19,278,422 $597,500 $740,993 $30,702,625 $1,682,400 $0 $33,992,122 $913,500 $15,076,650 $123,499 $267,455,216

2023

2022 Continued

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-4 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



STBG-U  Safety  Bridge I/M 130 BRO  NHPP  STBG  BUILD  CRISI  FEMA 
 TOTAL 

Federal Funds 

 Local 
Programmed 

Funds 

 MoDOT 
Programmed 

Funds  Other 

 State 
Operations 

and 
Maintenance TOTAL

2009
2020 Funds Programmed $7,079,640 $2,986,000 $28,800 $1,700,100 $46,000 $350,151 $14,843,600 $5,131,081 $0 $10,000 $740,993 $32,916,365 $4,649,175 $9,640,157 $123,499 $5,380,129 $52,709,325
2021 Funds Programmed $27,749,085 $2,719,600 $1,382,400 $3,851,100 $440,000 $0 $33,170,930 $1,532,000 $19,278,422 $25,500 $0 $90,149,037 $19,190,269 $17,811,854 $0 $5,476,971 $132,628,131
2022 Funds Programmed $9,436,526 $4,272,500 $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $11,388,224 $5,152,600 $0 $562,000 $0 $31,611,850 $2,802,032 $13,291,017 $0 $5,575,557 $53,280,456
2023 Funds Programmed $2,970,193 $15,278,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,990,575 $48,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,287,168 $5,743,549 $9,239,244 $0 $5,675,917 $50,945,878
Total $47,235,444 25,256,500$      1,411,200$      5,551,200$   1,286,000$        350,151$        71,393,329$ 11,863,681$   19,278,422$   597,500$        740,993$      184,964,420$  32,385,025$       49,982,272$   123,499$       22,108,574$ $289,563,790

Prior Year FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 TOTAL
Available State and Federal Funding $10,127,993 $56,146,056 $34,011,183 $40,437,989 $26,209,000 $166,932,221
Federal Discretionary Funding $0 $20,995,822 $25,500 $562,000 $0 $21,583,322
Available Operations and Maintenance Funding $0 $5,380,129 $5,476,971 $5,575,557 $5,675,917 $22,108,574
Funds from Other Sources (inc. Local) $123,499 $4,649,175 $19,190,269 $2,802,032 $5,743,549 $32,508,524
Available Suballocated Funding $27,323,332 $7,026,406 $2,724,380 $6,190,047 $6,245,342 $49,509,507
TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING $37,574,824 $94,197,588 $61,428,303 $55,567,625 $43,873,808 $292,642,148
Prior Year Funding $37,574,824 $79,063,087 $7,863,259 $10,150,428 --
Programmed State and Federal Funding ($52,709,325) ($132,628,131) ($53,280,456) ($50,945,878) ($289,563,790)
TOTAL REMAINING $37,574,824 $79,063,087 $7,863,259 $10,150,428 $3,078,358 $3,078,358

Additional Funds from Other Sources include one-time FEMA and SEMA grant funding for the Riverside Bridge Replacement.

Available State and Federal Funding shown here does not include Funding Available shown on Bike/Ped Financial Constraint Page.

See Table H.9 for details on Local Share Financial Capacity.

FINANCIAL CONSTRAINT

Roadways

Federal Funding Source

Ozarks Transportation Organization H-5 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 8 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 3/18/2021; ITEM II.F. 
 

Destination 2045 Update 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
OTO has wrapped up the public input phase of the next long range transportation plan, Destination 
2045.  Staff will provide an update on the survey results, as well as current activities in plan 
development.  As meetings are still virtual, staff has also been gathering feedback through online survey 
tools.   
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
NO ACTION REQUIRED – INFORMATION ONLY 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 9 

  



3/2/2021 After Stimulus, Biden to Tackle Another Politically Tricky Issue: Infrastructure - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/01/business/infrastructure-biden-stimulus.html?action=click&module=Top Stories&pgtype=Homepage 1/4

After Stimulus, Biden to Tackle Another Politically Tricky Issue: Infrastructure
Strengthening the countrys̓ highways, bridges and broadband networks has broad popular support, but Washington remains bitterly
divided on the details.

By Annie Karni and Jim Tankersley

March 1, 2021

WASHINGTON — President Biden’s two immediate predecessors had ambitious goals to rebuild the country’s infrastructure, but both left
office having made little progress in fixing the nation’s bridges, roads, pipes and broadband. President Donald J. Trump announced so
many meaningless infrastructure weeks that the term became a running joke of his administration.

As a candidate, Mr. Biden went further than either Mr. Trump or President Barack Obama by promising to pass a multitrillion-dollar
package intended to create jobs and help the United States compete with China. And if anything, his first month in office, in which a power
crisis in Texas left millions of people in need of water and electricity, has underscored the urgency of upgrading the nation’s aging
structural underpinnings.

But while the goal of addressing the United States’ infrastructure is bipartisan, the details are not. That includes how much to spend, what
programs count as “infrastructure” and, most important, whether to raise taxes to pay for it.

As a result, Mr. Biden could have an even tougher time gaining Republican support for an infrastructure bill than what he has faced in his
first big legislative push, a $1.9 trillion economic aid package that passed the House on Saturday with every Republican voting no and that
faces a similar fate in the Senate.

Unless the parties can agree on how to fund an infrastructure plan, Mr. Biden might have to try to push through another sprawling
spending package with only Democratic votes. The task could prove exceptionally difficult given the competing pressures the president
will face from centrists and progressives in his party — and the absence of a pandemic emergency to help fuse those factions in support of
the bill.

“There’s a tendency to treat infrastructure as if it’s not political,” said Kevin DeGood, the director of infrastructure policy at the Center for
American Progress, a liberal think tank. “But when we actually start talking about what we’re going to be building, there are specific
people and companies that benefit and people and companies that don’t.”

Infrastructure, Mr. DeGood said, “is just another way of expressing the same political and philosophical differences” that have made
bipartisan consensus so difficult to find in Washington in recent years.

Biden administration officials have not decided whether to push infrastructure as a stand-alone bill or as part of a broader package. But
any hopes of bringing Democrats and Republicans together on a program are almost sure to be undermined by the same disagreements
that have felled previous attempts.

Conservative lawmakers and powerful business groups in Washington are already making clear that no infrastructure program will draw
bipartisan support unless it is slimmer than what many progressives are proposing and includes no tax increases on corporations or the
rich.

Those demands could leave Mr. Biden no alternative but to mimic the approach for his stimulus package by trying to pass an
infrastructure bill through reconciliation, a parliamentary process that would shield it from a Senate filibuster and allow it to pass with
Democratic votes alone. Senator Bernie Sanders, independent of Vermont and the chairman of the Budget Committee, favors such an
approach.

“This is the best opportunity we’ve had in my lifetime,” Pete Buttigieg, the transportation secretary, said in an interview. “We’ve come to a
point as a country where it’s very clear these needs can’t keep being deferred. This crisis reflects that.”

Richard L. Trumka, the president of the A.F.L.-C.I.O., who joined other labor leaders in a meeting in February to discuss infrastructure
with Mr. Biden, said the president was uniquely positioned to understand the importance of the issue from the perspective of working
Americans. “He was born a blue-collar baby and he’s going to get buried a blue-collar baby,” Mr. Trumka said.

A big, bold infrastructure bill, he said, was “a racial justice bill, a Covid safety bill and the most important climate bill of all time, all in one.”

https://www.nytimes.com/
https://www.nytimes.com/by/annie-karni
https://www.nytimes.com/by/jim-tankersley
https://www.nytimes.com/by/annie-karni
https://www.nytimes.com/by/jim-tankersley
https://www.nytimes.com/2021/02/27/us/politics/stimulus-biden-senate-coronavirus.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2021/01/27/us/politics/budget-reconciliation-coronavirus-stimulus.html
https://www.axios.com/bernie-sanders-senate-infrastructure-bill-f4bfc3b8-530d-461b-9e23-416bee31e34a.html


3/2/2021 After Stimulus, Biden to Tackle Another Politically Tricky Issue: Infrastructure - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/01/business/infrastructure-biden-stimulus.html?action=click&module=Top Stories&pgtype=Homepage 2/4

Economists broadly agree that government investments in infrastructure can help the economy run more efficiently, leading to stronger
growth and faster wage gains for workers. That consensus has brought calls from a wide range of groups for lawmakers to pass a major
infrastructure bill.

The American Society of Civil Engineers has given the country’s overall infrastructure a grade of D+, estimating that a funding gap of
more than $2 trillion exists between needs and expected spending by all levels of government over the next decade. And the pandemic has
put a spotlight on the poor quality of digital infrastructure in many parts of the United States, as more people are forced to work and
attend school remotely.

Mr. Biden campaigned on a sprawling infrastructure agenda, with trillions of dollars invested in transportation, water and sewer lines, and
the scaffoldings of an energy sector that significantly reduces the United States’ carbon emissions, funded by tax increases on
multinational companies and high earners.

The components of the plan poll well — which was not enough for Mr. Biden’s predecessors.

Mr. Obama failed, in large part, for political reasons: Republicans did not want to give him another victory. His attempt at selling Congress
on a $50 billion plan to rebuild 150,000 miles of road, to lay and maintain 4,000 miles of rail track and to restore 150 miles of airport
runways suffered for following on the heels of his 2009 stimulus bill. Republicans dismissed it as “stimulus déjà vu.”

While Mr. Trump talked frequently about investing in infrastructure, he never seemed serious about tackling the issue and constantly
allowed other matters to distract him. For instance, in August 2017, the Trump administration organized an event at Trump Tower in
Manhattan that was intended to highlight how the administration was seeking to streamline permitting.

Instead, the news conference devolved into one of the grimmest and most defining moments of the Trump presidency: a fiery back-and-
forth with reporters in which Mr. Trump defended white supremacists who had recently marched in Charlottesville, Va., arguing that there
were “very fine people on both sides.”

When it came to selling a message about infrastructure, “we had some challenges in communication,” said D.J. Gribbin, an infrastructure
specialist who was in charge of the event while working for the National Economic Council.

Lobbyists say that Mr. Biden starts with a better chance of success than either of his predecessors.

Business groups and many Republicans have expressed a willingness to work with the administration to pass $1 trillion or more in
infrastructure spending. Areas of agreement with progressives include spending on highways, bridges, rural broadband networks, water
and sewer lines and even some cornerstones of fighting climate change, like electric-car charging stations.

“A bipartisan package is going to be bigger in scope than many on the right would initially prefer. It’s also going to be narrower in scope
than many on the left would prefer,” said Neil Bradley, an executive vice president and the chief policy officer at the U.S. Chamber of
Commerce, which led 300 groups across the political spectrum in February in calling on Congress to pass an infrastructure bill by the
Fourth of July. “You can really see in that a core that would attract broad bipartisan support.”

Pete Buttigieg, the transportation secretary, has said he is optimistic that President Biden
will deliver a robust infrastructure package this year. Alyssa Schukar for The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2010/09/07/us/politics/07obama.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2017/08/15/us/politics/trump-charlottesville-white-nationalists.html


3/2/2021 After Stimulus, Biden to Tackle Another Politically Tricky Issue: Infrastructure - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/01/business/infrastructure-biden-stimulus.html?action=click&module=Top Stories&pgtype=Homepage 3/4

But progressives warn that such an approach could yield a bill that does not go far enough in addressing the deep-rooted problems in the
economy that have exacerbated inequality, and that Mr. Biden has promised to tackle, by leaving out investments in America’s human
infrastructure. Some argue a more effective bill would also fund child care and paid leave to help working parents and make educational
investments to help students thrive and gain skills.

“I fear going small,” said William E. Spriggs, the chief economist at the A.F.L.-C.I.O., who has pushed the administration to spend
aggressively to promote racial equity across the economy. “If you only do bridges and highways, they don’t generate the same number of
residual jobs, and they don’t reach a broader set of workers and address fundamental inequalities.”

Other Democrats said a more cautious approach was right. “People who want infrastructure from the center-left should not sell it as
renewables and climate change, even though it is helpful in those matters,” said Henry G. Cisneros, a secretary of housing and urban
development under President Bill Clinton. “It’s not an argument that’s going to bring centrist business groups and conservatives on board.
The most prominent argument is the economy needs not just a temporary boost. Our long-term economy needs modernization.”

Mr. Buttigieg, a former mayor of South Bend, Ind., said it was just a matter of selling progressive policies the right way. “I specialize in
communicating ideas like this in places like where I grew up and spaces like Fox News,” he said. “There’s nothing about climate, rightly
understood, that should be off-putting to people in rural or conservative areas. We just have to talk about it the right way.”

But Republicans and business groups have made clear to the administration that some of Mr. Biden’s preferred policies — taxes, in
particular — could scuttle any chance of a consensus deal.

“I’m optimistic and hopeful that there will be a meaningful bipartisan agreement here because the needs are clear,” said Aric Newhouse,
the senior vice president for policy and government relations at the National Association of Manufacturers. If Mr. Biden tries to pay for the
plan by raising taxes on corporations and other businesses, Mr. Newhouse said, “that would obviously be a huge problem, and make this,
instead of a bipartisan effort, a partisan effort.”

Mr. Bradley suggested a range of alternate mechanisms to finance an infrastructure push, including tax incentives for private
corporations and an increase to the gasoline tax or other ways of taxing drivers. Mr. Newhouse suggested the package might not need to
be paid for entirely, or at all, echoing the chairman of the Ways and Means Committee, Representative Richard E. Neal, Democrat of
Massachusetts.

“Do you need a pay-for?” Mr. Newhouse said. “We make the argument: If you’re going to think about federal spending and the long-term
return, investing in infrastructure is a no-brainer.”

Administration officials say it is too early to talk about the shape of any infrastructure package, at least until the $1.9 trillion stimulus bill is
passed. “We’re 100 percent, all hands focused, on getting the rescue plan over the finish line,” said Brian Deese, the director of the National
Economic Council. “We’ll remain in that posture until it’s done.”

Construction along Interstate 70 in Columbus, Ohio. The American Society of Civil
Engineers has given the country’s overall infrastructure a grade of D+. Barbara J.

Perenic/The Columbus Dispatch, via Associated Press

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/01/23/business/biden-equity-racial-gender.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/12/03/business/brian-deese-national-economic-council.html


3/2/2021 After Stimulus, Biden to Tackle Another Politically Tricky Issue: Infrastructure - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/01/business/infrastructure-biden-stimulus.html?action=click&module=Top Stories&pgtype=Homepage 4/4

But Mr. Biden has started holding high-profile meetings to build a possible bipartisan package, including one meeting in February with
senators who lead the committees responsible for the core of infrastructure legislation on Capitol Hill. (Senator James M. Inhofe,
Republican of Oklahoma, noted to reporters after the meeting that he and Mr. Biden had been “working on transportation since 1987.”)

“We have a lot of common ground,” Senator Shelley Moore Capito, Republican of West Virginia, said afterward. “Certainly, members like
infrastructure because it’s job creating and every state benefits.”

“We need to put up a big victory for unity and working together,” she added.

Emily Cochrane contributed reporting.

Senator Shelley Moore Capito, Republican of West Virginia, met with Mr. Biden in
February to discuss infrastructure proposals. Alyssa Schukar for The New York Times



WASHINGTON (AP) — Looking

beyond the $1.9 trillion COVID relief

bill, President Joe Biden and lawmakers

are laying the groundwork for another

top legislative priority — a long-sought

boost to the nation’s roads, bridges and

other infrastructure that could run into

Republican resistance to a hefty price

tag.

Biden and his team have begun

discussions on the possible outlines of

ADVERTISEMENT

ADVERTISEMENT

RELATED
TOPICS

Joe Biden

Politics

Business

AP Top News

Coronavirus
pandemic

Prices

Bills

Texas

Click to copy

Biden team readies wider economic package after
virus relief
By KEVIN FREKING, HOPE YEN and JOSH BOAK yesterday

Trending on AP News

Democratic voting bill would make
biggest changes in decades

Dutch poet declines assignment to
translate Gorman’s works

Oath Keeper charged in Capitol riot
renounces militia group

Zenni SHOP NOW

Get More With Zenni

Ad

Biden team readies wider economic packa… Top Stories VideoTopics Listen

https://apnews.com/hub/coronavirus-pandemic
https://facebook.com/dialog/share?app_id=870613919693099&display=popup&href=https://apnews.com/article/biden-politics-coronavirus-relief-infrastructure-66f5f5a3de700941aa41f675157f8748
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https://apnews.com/article/biden-politics-coronavirus-relief-infrastructure-66f5f5a3de700941aa41f675157f8748
mailto:?subject=Biden%20team%20readies%20wider%20economic%20package%20after%20virus%20relief&body=https://apnews.com/article/biden-politics-coronavirus-relief-infrastructure-66f5f5a3de700941aa41f675157f8748
https://apnews.com/hub/joe-biden
https://apnews.com/hub/politics
https://apnews.com/hub/business
https://apnews.com/hub/ap-top-news
https://apnews.com/hub/coronavirus-pandemic
https://apnews.com/hub/prices
https://apnews.com/hub/bills
https://apnews.com/hub/texas
https://apnews.com/article/biden-politics-coronavirus-relief-infrastructure-66f5f5a3de700941aa41f675157f8748/gallery/6dc8a8f2c8b5444ba6000d60e971ca9b
https://apnews.com/article/joe-biden-voting-voting-rights-legislation-elections-8ff401dd96dbd75adbb3b217c7089afe
https://apnews.com/article/rijneveld-gorman-translation-uproar-e5b9d81cb2e50e7ce3906d1f850ed261
https://apnews.com/article/capitol-siege-politics-arrests-ohio-1c6efcfb1a163bcf6498dc106b222fa4
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=l&ai=CWM5dgBw9YNnrMO-Bggb704HQDcupq8lfgZbItKUMv-EeEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABycXnyQLIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBMwCT9DlXXFRUjZ18bOco9OrtNvBmvyLiTHghiqWcBVxDCnyIHuRrvfiXjMBi22RUTHGNc39oqV_Z4m0sfQGc3lrpNb2qsxjCnHtFxSErGtDbHMAYJNXbO0-JpovHljN55Cf4SY7fiJ7116qT_3mwolKz__DrjMKz6rYWxFnZ1t3pVrgKfjCRcomhpToqFK6TP2mhSCbAwCEJ7zRbPGmdSiZlJ1Isoe9Yeml0ndqpbFaPc6ja7EqlhpsLjG0zKK_fgjqOQSD5b_8PkAzL32sBQ79X6MKKqpgBSlNpf0Nw0yBSdcyGLuV1ElSBZyfmLtzYs54eJcHv-mcr1YKCgHh849f80kEOvUZw1OdtCN0oWn93iKQdtZqoHD0JddXqd9NtY5RsAXp5UE5zJt6lf45_G0skH6xLezN2jcd08tqWQ4u1Px60254mKkZOLTRH3bABMvFurWkA-AEAaAGAoAHn7qYtgGoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCc3oexbdFpFDgAoDmAsByAsBuAwB2BMM&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAAScORoDCA3SD0DTw0rZ2w2nSzxyUQUfIfx_PvKywhrTH0NGgcjaQC2S1-TB6phfU67E0tEhJyw0zgwLKkgFFJhxuCFk2T4oU-5OoVym15rD_MDwJc1-7nPpYZPNCzH4eO9R5qRzQ9Izb4cipVev5xGbxc&sig=AOD64_0uabwNKVb2__WRrGR9Wl-Uo7KDvw&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://zolucky.com/collections/top-100-au%3Fadp%3D6218429,6095235,5874531,6095238,6218428,5878606,6440361,5972162,7080533,6095255%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI2aux4ceP7wIV74DACh37aQDaEAEYASAAEgLoM_D_BwE
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CezY7gBw9YNvrMO-Bggb704HQDYu7hvRg1K_958YMg5GSp6gYEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABhrO7mAPIAQaoAwHIAwqqBOcBT9AnlZEpi09baLebvbx3R_mhMGcpdd63yEZogfj104lnd9aL_Nl85avd6KW6Y7g1b_8336tUTgCgXtSa_9BoLoOhfaTP02h4Z2xpgrT6ngyK9sHq8EZS2DURMizoM5m5hL3VuctvqwXr7ns6Wa_n39MMQo7thhMmngZOfa7Mi5ZNgGTIJp89EtYln1Dqf9oLpcKnjhTWs-fQcLSbjThY1hWcm9xg2pwgBVwET-klCZh2XheyzrAPZoPdilerL5pAAsVJPIyxBVKr9VoAEMv-0WGZkVSVHjcaoGenX-Wjz0XO8aIm4kQYwAT1g7KlqAPgBAOQBgGgBjeAB-LMxGeoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7NUbqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCV8xigc0pE3FgAoDmAsByAsBsBOVzO4K0BMA2BMMiBQF2BQB&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-sYCB7ta1lnDz_uhci8wT8chr4k3w251nxl4mEus1aR294eWw_JBsnsNew1iR8wB_kvHW8abmaAQ7Lm1RF-kzjcq0mwe50EpVWwWKkQcVM4R4jbIpPBCSh-mAb01T5NLLs5oEg9KYYmzZZXl4_4&sig=AOD64_1FljBsm110Gprg326-vtcfe1euVQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&dbm_c=AKAmf-BUH7lLk7BzbBin_jD6iR3bBZhm6Fqtg2XUXZ5X6nMWzPeHtdKoW5chb0EOMsfi32BkqpaXINn3ZrsItnBB_EAZ_4chQaHNXASWAcc9JDOX9MxcX5tD_ymYoL03niNKBXnl9vr53UM3lNJUzy2MtwvgCfb7cw&dbm_d=AKAmf-Ad3L9TX2p7DW21ee2TKhEchPrvRDWNx2B-rDZEQmwvzny2ZnK1aQD-w52zanCVSmCQcNt-QIgTEP0Q5HiF7peZ4dbqArdRh7_hK9TEDIAZ8SLsPu0_lBmN7bxJx10sGaBw-lIy1xqYExYev2nXTXQ_NzTjMCO3R2Qee4On4ajBcZ2Uwq_z7iF_WZMvVCOpPVvwrDxkuSl4ZLLLIVwH-fORpFW6xuO-3tdV-eCTuQwnISME4PmIseUzlP78-hc6sKJr5U_0yS1o4FW7fjf3QxvVZoru0-Tuil_s70eap9JG2kl_g_PaUuDspkswhq4_M_k777_zLdWpvZ1PeQynBjR0GqTCLaS2w8F_Sj4BVwZGisPnMospa8fHy8Gu3wD4REzyapSv0lliTR38mHEuFujPaPl0ow&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=19&adurl=https://www.zennioptical.com?utm_source=Native&utm_medium=display&utm_campaign=Prospecting
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CezY7gBw9YNvrMO-Bggb704HQDYu7hvRg1K_958YMg5GSp6gYEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABhrO7mAPIAQaoAwHIAwqqBOcBT9AnlZEpi09baLebvbx3R_mhMGcpdd63yEZogfj104lnd9aL_Nl85avd6KW6Y7g1b_8336tUTgCgXtSa_9BoLoOhfaTP02h4Z2xpgrT6ngyK9sHq8EZS2DURMizoM5m5hL3VuctvqwXr7ns6Wa_n39MMQo7thhMmngZOfa7Mi5ZNgGTIJp89EtYln1Dqf9oLpcKnjhTWs-fQcLSbjThY1hWcm9xg2pwgBVwET-klCZh2XheyzrAPZoPdilerL5pAAsVJPIyxBVKr9VoAEMv-0WGZkVSVHjcaoGenX-Wjz0XO8aIm4kQYwAT1g7KlqAPgBAOQBgGgBjeAB-LMxGeoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7NUbqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCV8xigc0pE3FgAoDmAsByAsBsBOVzO4K0BMA2BMMiBQF2BQB&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-sYCB7ta1lnDz_uhci8wT8chr4k3w251nxl4mEus1aR294eWw_JBsnsNew1iR8wB_kvHW8abmaAQ7Lm1RF-kzjcq0mwe50EpVWwWKkQcVM4R4jbIpPBCSh-mAb01T5NLLs5oEg9KYYmzZZXl4_4&sig=AOD64_1FljBsm110Gprg326-vtcfe1euVQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&dbm_c=AKAmf-BUH7lLk7BzbBin_jD6iR3bBZhm6Fqtg2XUXZ5X6nMWzPeHtdKoW5chb0EOMsfi32BkqpaXINn3ZrsItnBB_EAZ_4chQaHNXASWAcc9JDOX9MxcX5tD_ymYoL03niNKBXnl9vr53UM3lNJUzy2MtwvgCfb7cw&dbm_d=AKAmf-Ad3L9TX2p7DW21ee2TKhEchPrvRDWNx2B-rDZEQmwvzny2ZnK1aQD-w52zanCVSmCQcNt-QIgTEP0Q5HiF7peZ4dbqArdRh7_hK9TEDIAZ8SLsPu0_lBmN7bxJx10sGaBw-lIy1xqYExYev2nXTXQ_NzTjMCO3R2Qee4On4ajBcZ2Uwq_z7iF_WZMvVCOpPVvwrDxkuSl4ZLLLIVwH-fORpFW6xuO-3tdV-eCTuQwnISME4PmIseUzlP78-hc6sKJr5U_0yS1o4FW7fjf3QxvVZoru0-Tuil_s70eap9JG2kl_g_PaUuDspkswhq4_M_k777_zLdWpvZ1PeQynBjR0GqTCLaS2w8F_Sj4BVwZGisPnMospa8fHy8Gu3wD4REzyapSv0lliTR38mHEuFujPaPl0ow&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=1&adurl=https://www.zennioptical.com?utm_source=Native&utm_medium=display&utm_campaign=Prospecting
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CezY7gBw9YNvrMO-Bggb704HQDYu7hvRg1K_958YMg5GSp6gYEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABhrO7mAPIAQaoAwHIAwqqBOcBT9AnlZEpi09baLebvbx3R_mhMGcpdd63yEZogfj104lnd9aL_Nl85avd6KW6Y7g1b_8336tUTgCgXtSa_9BoLoOhfaTP02h4Z2xpgrT6ngyK9sHq8EZS2DURMizoM5m5hL3VuctvqwXr7ns6Wa_n39MMQo7thhMmngZOfa7Mi5ZNgGTIJp89EtYln1Dqf9oLpcKnjhTWs-fQcLSbjThY1hWcm9xg2pwgBVwET-klCZh2XheyzrAPZoPdilerL5pAAsVJPIyxBVKr9VoAEMv-0WGZkVSVHjcaoGenX-Wjz0XO8aIm4kQYwAT1g7KlqAPgBAOQBgGgBjeAB-LMxGeoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7NUbqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCV8xigc0pE3FgAoDmAsByAsBsBOVzO4K0BMA2BMMiBQF2BQB&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-sYCB7ta1lnDz_uhci8wT8chr4k3w251nxl4mEus1aR294eWw_JBsnsNew1iR8wB_kvHW8abmaAQ7Lm1RF-kzjcq0mwe50EpVWwWKkQcVM4R4jbIpPBCSh-mAb01T5NLLs5oEg9KYYmzZZXl4_4&sig=AOD64_1FljBsm110Gprg326-vtcfe1euVQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&dbm_c=AKAmf-BUH7lLk7BzbBin_jD6iR3bBZhm6Fqtg2XUXZ5X6nMWzPeHtdKoW5chb0EOMsfi32BkqpaXINn3ZrsItnBB_EAZ_4chQaHNXASWAcc9JDOX9MxcX5tD_ymYoL03niNKBXnl9vr53UM3lNJUzy2MtwvgCfb7cw&dbm_d=AKAmf-Ad3L9TX2p7DW21ee2TKhEchPrvRDWNx2B-rDZEQmwvzny2ZnK1aQD-w52zanCVSmCQcNt-QIgTEP0Q5HiF7peZ4dbqArdRh7_hK9TEDIAZ8SLsPu0_lBmN7bxJx10sGaBw-lIy1xqYExYev2nXTXQ_NzTjMCO3R2Qee4On4ajBcZ2Uwq_z7iF_WZMvVCOpPVvwrDxkuSl4ZLLLIVwH-fORpFW6xuO-3tdV-eCTuQwnISME4PmIseUzlP78-hc6sKJr5U_0yS1o4FW7fjf3QxvVZoru0-Tuil_s70eap9JG2kl_g_PaUuDspkswhq4_M_k777_zLdWpvZ1PeQynBjR0GqTCLaS2w8F_Sj4BVwZGisPnMospa8fHy8Gu3wD4REzyapSv0lliTR38mHEuFujPaPl0ow&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=8&adurl=https://www.zennioptical.com?utm_source=Native&utm_medium=display&utm_campaign=Prospecting
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CezY7gBw9YNvrMO-Bggb704HQDYu7hvRg1K_958YMg5GSp6gYEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABhrO7mAPIAQaoAwHIAwqqBOcBT9AnlZEpi09baLebvbx3R_mhMGcpdd63yEZogfj104lnd9aL_Nl85avd6KW6Y7g1b_8336tUTgCgXtSa_9BoLoOhfaTP02h4Z2xpgrT6ngyK9sHq8EZS2DURMizoM5m5hL3VuctvqwXr7ns6Wa_n39MMQo7thhMmngZOfa7Mi5ZNgGTIJp89EtYln1Dqf9oLpcKnjhTWs-fQcLSbjThY1hWcm9xg2pwgBVwET-klCZh2XheyzrAPZoPdilerL5pAAsVJPIyxBVKr9VoAEMv-0WGZkVSVHjcaoGenX-Wjz0XO8aIm4kQYwAT1g7KlqAPgBAOQBgGgBjeAB-LMxGeoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7NUbqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCV8xigc0pE3FgAoDmAsByAsBsBOVzO4K0BMA2BMMiBQF2BQB&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-sYCB7ta1lnDz_uhci8wT8chr4k3w251nxl4mEus1aR294eWw_JBsnsNew1iR8wB_kvHW8abmaAQ7Lm1RF-kzjcq0mwe50EpVWwWKkQcVM4R4jbIpPBCSh-mAb01T5NLLs5oEg9KYYmzZZXl4_4&sig=AOD64_1FljBsm110Gprg326-vtcfe1euVQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&dbm_c=AKAmf-BUH7lLk7BzbBin_jD6iR3bBZhm6Fqtg2XUXZ5X6nMWzPeHtdKoW5chb0EOMsfi32BkqpaXINn3ZrsItnBB_EAZ_4chQaHNXASWAcc9JDOX9MxcX5tD_ymYoL03niNKBXnl9vr53UM3lNJUzy2MtwvgCfb7cw&dbm_d=AKAmf-Ad3L9TX2p7DW21ee2TKhEchPrvRDWNx2B-rDZEQmwvzny2ZnK1aQD-w52zanCVSmCQcNt-QIgTEP0Q5HiF7peZ4dbqArdRh7_hK9TEDIAZ8SLsPu0_lBmN7bxJx10sGaBw-lIy1xqYExYev2nXTXQ_NzTjMCO3R2Qee4On4ajBcZ2Uwq_z7iF_WZMvVCOpPVvwrDxkuSl4ZLLLIVwH-fORpFW6xuO-3tdV-eCTuQwnISME4PmIseUzlP78-hc6sKJr5U_0yS1o4FW7fjf3QxvVZoru0-Tuil_s70eap9JG2kl_g_PaUuDspkswhq4_M_k777_zLdWpvZ1PeQynBjR0GqTCLaS2w8F_Sj4BVwZGisPnMospa8fHy8Gu3wD4REzyapSv0lliTR38mHEuFujPaPl0ow&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=0&adurl=https://www.zennioptical.com?utm_source=Native&utm_medium=display&utm_campaign=Prospecting
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CezY7gBw9YNvrMO-Bggb704HQDYu7hvRg1K_958YMg5GSp6gYEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABhrO7mAPIAQaoAwHIAwqqBOcBT9AnlZEpi09baLebvbx3R_mhMGcpdd63yEZogfj104lnd9aL_Nl85avd6KW6Y7g1b_8336tUTgCgXtSa_9BoLoOhfaTP02h4Z2xpgrT6ngyK9sHq8EZS2DURMizoM5m5hL3VuctvqwXr7ns6Wa_n39MMQo7thhMmngZOfa7Mi5ZNgGTIJp89EtYln1Dqf9oLpcKnjhTWs-fQcLSbjThY1hWcm9xg2pwgBVwET-klCZh2XheyzrAPZoPdilerL5pAAsVJPIyxBVKr9VoAEMv-0WGZkVSVHjcaoGenX-Wjz0XO8aIm4kQYwAT1g7KlqAPgBAOQBgGgBjeAB-LMxGeoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7NUbqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCV8xigc0pE3FgAoDmAsByAsBsBOVzO4K0BMA2BMMiBQF2BQB&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-sYCB7ta1lnDz_uhci8wT8chr4k3w251nxl4mEus1aR294eWw_JBsnsNew1iR8wB_kvHW8abmaAQ7Lm1RF-kzjcq0mwe50EpVWwWKkQcVM4R4jbIpPBCSh-mAb01T5NLLs5oEg9KYYmzZZXl4_4&sig=AOD64_1FljBsm110Gprg326-vtcfe1euVQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&dbm_c=AKAmf-BUH7lLk7BzbBin_jD6iR3bBZhm6Fqtg2XUXZ5X6nMWzPeHtdKoW5chb0EOMsfi32BkqpaXINn3ZrsItnBB_EAZ_4chQaHNXASWAcc9JDOX9MxcX5tD_ymYoL03niNKBXnl9vr53UM3lNJUzy2MtwvgCfb7cw&dbm_d=AKAmf-Ad3L9TX2p7DW21ee2TKhEchPrvRDWNx2B-rDZEQmwvzny2ZnK1aQD-w52zanCVSmCQcNt-QIgTEP0Q5HiF7peZ4dbqArdRh7_hK9TEDIAZ8SLsPu0_lBmN7bxJx10sGaBw-lIy1xqYExYev2nXTXQ_NzTjMCO3R2Qee4On4ajBcZ2Uwq_z7iF_WZMvVCOpPVvwrDxkuSl4ZLLLIVwH-fORpFW6xuO-3tdV-eCTuQwnISME4PmIseUzlP78-hc6sKJr5U_0yS1o4FW7fjf3QxvVZoru0-Tuil_s70eap9JG2kl_g_PaUuDspkswhq4_M_k777_zLdWpvZ1PeQynBjR0GqTCLaS2w8F_Sj4BVwZGisPnMospa8fHy8Gu3wD4REzyapSv0lliTR38mHEuFujPaPl0ow&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=9&adurl=https://www.zennioptical.com?utm_source=Native&utm_medium=display&utm_campaign=Prospecting
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=AB3afGEAAAUaW1tbW251bGwsWzIsOV0sbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsdHJ1ZV0sW251bGwsImh0dHBzOi8vZ29vZ2xlYWRzLmcuZG91YmxlY2xpY2submV0L3BhZ2VhZC9pbnRlcmFjdGlvbi8_-Vv7cYVlUtw9GyvqDMrVmBkqEiPmvgv0iMnvMlPhbyp6C6OP2j79JvfHXldY_tJaNafFsmR--3Hwhl0eeeQ3hhhA9tXUCydvWPf4SVmRK2p85UHNQizNFAp-mJd7fZBM0wjZuPH9UCjwOFq03swW5VjdKWm0m3OJSmxTTA7bSWVYrQBfA0CEDjC9PcfpT7iJz_CPwswoMLzbeF0IhqgsCYgUgYzBgjyn0fujjxSKbuzfDc-Wu6hMdZ-uccg05ELJQlngcJVTbVklJtStg7uuEcurDLqzJzwGOF7Y,pBPRpD4pNietyi4DSft1yw&source=display
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=AB3afGEAAAUaW1tbW251bGwsWzIsOV0sbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsdHJ1ZV0sW251bGwsImh0dHBzOi8vZ29vZ2xlYWRzLmcuZG91YmxlY2xpY2submV0L3BhZ2VhZC9pbnRlcmFjdGlvbi8_-Vv7cYVlUtw9GyvqDMrVmBkqEiPmvgv0iMnvMlPhbyp6C6OP2j79JvfHXldY_tJaNafFsmR--3Hwhl0eeeQ3hhhA9tXUCydvWPf4SVmRK2p85UHNQizNFAp-mJd7fZBM0wjZuPH9UCjwOFq03swW5VjdKWm0m3OJSmxTTA7bSWVYrQBfA0CEDjC9PcfpT7iJz_CPwswoMLzbeF0IhqgsCYgUgYzBgjyn0fujjxSKbuzfDc-Wu6hMdZ-uccg05ELJQlngcJVTbVklJtStg7uuEcurDLqzJzwGOF7Y,pBPRpD4pNietyi4DSft1yw&source=display
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/hub/videos


discussions on the possible outlines of

an infrastructure package with members

of Congress, particularly mindful that

Texas’ recent struggles with power

outages and water shortages after a

brutal winter storm present an

opportunity for agreement on sustained

spending on infrastructure.

ADVERTISEMENT

Republicans say if the White House

approach on the COVID relief bill —

which passed the House Saturday on a

near party-line vote and now heads to

the Senate — is a sign of things to come

for Biden’s plan on infrastructure and

other initiatives, it could be a difficult

road ahead in Congress.

A White House proposal could come out

in March.

“Now is the time to be aggressive,” said

Transportation Secretary Pete Buttigieg,

a former South Bend, Indiana, mayor

who knows potholes.

At a conference with state and local

highway officials Thursday, he referred

to the often-promised, never-achieved

mega-initiative on roads, bridges and

the like from the Trump administration.

“I know you are among those who are

working and waiting most patiently, or

maybe impatiently, for the moment

when Infrastructure Week will no longer

be a kind of Groundhog’s Day promise

— but actually be something that

delivers generational investments,” he

said.

Much of America’s infrastructure —

roads, bridges, public drinking and water

systems, dams, airports, mass transit

systems and more — is in need of major

restoration after years of underfunding,

according to the American Society of

Civil Engineers. In its 2017

Infrastructure Report Card, it gave the

national infrastructure an overall grade

by TaboolaBiden team readies wider economic packa… Top Stories VideoTopics Listen

https://apnews.com/article/joe-biden-houston-storms-coronavirus-pandemic-weather-a04ce03f0bd4f68a3793b4b4a9b0bf3f
https://apnews.com/article/houston-football-storms-coronavirus-pandemic-hurricanes-5fd491ed5bfd9aa0ae08426c6078539e
https://apnews.com/article/house-vote-virus-bill-minimum-wage-hike-7545455cccec525285a8ea3c35892c70
https://www.infrastructurereportcard.org/
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=associatedpress-apnews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=organic-thumbnails-rr:Right%20Rail%20Thumbnails:
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=l&ai=CbNdghhw9YLjeJM-lggai7ZHADKvm2cNh9p7N7LcLsJAfEAEg68jaC2DJnoiKmKSwE6AB7L_jogPIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBMYCT9Av4hbb6st1tS_u-luUAuJV7EOelJ4ETkLLZKYXnopw_HCqyK-hawOK4TcKsZ4SGKOrr3fhtFET4OxC_hWn9d758Y81skvHhsRaMi7vqZwtMqRWNcaL1Zi1K5nQ3pYAIXGzfDHE-XabAXxlp5cJnDAdxhLzZ8DHpjA5MdUROi0WuW_4k1mfN-6XPL7uP5zvGBK4GozLbYIkgKRXfZKOQHUr4qiRxaxBBLTdnS32VuN1-5oI9WjJpKDV0fNHga3aOOHkj40nkF7FwE4Y5LmXPBG9m_bxRk3oL7ZDQN4vrpJ9j6T-YPNSa20JdcjDtrffUgZt6EXnKFVb4JOYpPV9sEnkTxVC71pVCdOSoipezQvlj5ntLNGCPKdWaXGwfXTG3wvKSQrbbQNorHxV5s02Dy6XEdlo7vpLS5w6PcvI2UXMkZGSYbTABKSTjOyiAeAEAaAGAoAH_L-cXagH1ckbqAfw2RuoB_LZG6gHjs4bqAeT2BuoB7oGqAfulrECqAemvhuoB-zVG6gH89EbqAfs1RuoB5bYG9gHAdIICQiA4cBgEAEYHbEJ0RrFAsnEexyACgGYCwHICwG4DAHYEw0&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAAScORoPK5d-rSEduv-S5WkRDYCnGTEU75JvO2jFHZadbRL6HNApmN8-X0xZ4UNgjtgvlDrsONawg9IFaN6HUIbJsxkKSFWozEVjwFfavU3rVDN237FRJsPr0guAZaslpIh9W8NDQ0J2TphuG4niLmlxF0&sig=AOD64_2KneI30sTKEzB3Oi0H8qYaWLl6Ng&client=ca-pub-9888648487304734&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://raganandmassey.com/brand/rm43/%3Fgclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIuLmT5MeP7wIVz5LACh2idgTIEAEYASAAEgKLo_D_BwE
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/hub/videos


national infrastructure an overall grade

of D+.

ADVERTISEMENT

Both chambers of Congress will use as

starting points their unsuccessful efforts

to get infrastructure bills through the

last session.

Democrats passed a $1.5 trillion package

in the House last year, but it went

nowhere with the Trump administration

and the Republican-led Senate. A Senate

panel approved narrower bipartisan

legislation in 2019 focused on

reauthorizing federal transportation

programs. It, too, flamed out as the U.S.

turned its focus to elections and

COVID-19.

Biden has talked bigger numbers, and

some Democrats are now urging him to

bypass Republicans in the closely

divided Congress to address a broader

range of priorities urged by interest

groups.

During the presidential campaign, Biden

pledged to deploy $2 trillion on

infrastructure and clean energy, but the

White House has not ruled out an even

higher price tag.

Pointing to the storm in Texas as a

“wake-up call” for the need to improve

energy systems and other infrastructure,

Gina McCarthy, Biden’s national climate

adviser, told The Associated Press that

Biden’s plan will specifically aim at

green and other initiatives that promote

job creation. She cited as an example

federal investments to boost “workers

that have been left behind” by closed

coal mines or power plants, as well as

communities located near polluting

refineries and other hazards.

“He’s been a long fan of investing in

infrastructure — long outdated — long

overdue, I should say,” White House

press secretary Jen Psaki said Thursday

tall Solar For $0 Down
ble Homeowners: Get Solar Panels For No Cost At Install. Pow
erhome Solar.

Biden team readies wider economic packa… Top Stories VideoTopics Listen

https://apnews.com/article/7cdf40d9bd40c75861fc0053212d034a
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=l&ai=Cd3Mchhw9YLneJM-lggai7ZHADNf5tsVhvZjUjI4NsJAfEAEg68jaC2DJnoiKmKSwE6ABlq2TywHIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMwCT9DWBRjMU4XPftOzm_oEaJtvzAsl0wajz9UkE_9jfvYjjctI9rAMCiLQpKCHc77xAsRTeGnDDJ6hwjGSDbGILU4JHUPr1GSZhPURZIB_i5HjgVqHUQTELOBiOD5PvoQgK5aQHcoNM6ZSP6j9r0pAm6LSLkyCiI3Xk2tFx5Q9bFIgTCt_moTwwRGg4cDMDeQUrlZp1eWi6n2IMK-1xWZjwRmoN_mVY74OOkHZaZolTcdgE_soPrLvI54Ei-ByGI3uzpsCpX1rVgNmQM9bolcC5JkocVEF-zh3LBKuuXHt3-SZzCVM_HlqpSb1IXuT0twFltWagwULCiy7D0dxd5XaMF5J5s80i9ZvX--LzgSgdcBR0u2oGTeG2idRWcNNC5xjR4CoLPurM2EeIgLnUqgLs_DOjanghuHunek5eT-waMl-P4WOIL12vofpul_ABPOC4ZPCA-AEAaAGLoAH0tLstAKoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCd8QF_jxNnrMgAoBmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMM&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAAScORodWJtD0fwOSVNHItGtQEkH6VideF0Ust6l8t0iyl-rt3iLz9yqnxh35OZJ6XwhjxvQoq3QbvH6KSuzqIWztLn5hJm2il6ohaXuAeW8IDRnyyBSmhrUPPKFtACPYWD61dKt8kSbaZ0p8dM9_qngOU&sig=AOD64_20K1mC5nA_pU-LxtPUTK0cDsZN8A&client=ca-pub-9888648487304734&nb=0&adurl=https://solarpowerprograms.leadshook.io/survey/0PqHYxdq6S7T6Mp6cFgiaf6S1LZpHErVw1t6ZCt0%3FcomboId%3D83f6b27e-ebca-4279-872e-66f86ee981db%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIubmT5MeP7wIVz5LACh2idgTIEAEYASAAEgI-c_D_BwE
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=l&ai=Cd3Mchhw9YLneJM-lggai7ZHADNf5tsVhvZjUjI4NsJAfEAEg68jaC2DJnoiKmKSwE6ABlq2TywHIAQngAgCoAwHIAwqqBMwCT9DWBRjMU4XPftOzm_oEaJtvzAsl0wajz9UkE_9jfvYjjctI9rAMCiLQpKCHc77xAsRTeGnDDJ6hwjGSDbGILU4JHUPr1GSZhPURZIB_i5HjgVqHUQTELOBiOD5PvoQgK5aQHcoNM6ZSP6j9r0pAm6LSLkyCiI3Xk2tFx5Q9bFIgTCt_moTwwRGg4cDMDeQUrlZp1eWi6n2IMK-1xWZjwRmoN_mVY74OOkHZaZolTcdgE_soPrLvI54Ei-ByGI3uzpsCpX1rVgNmQM9bolcC5JkocVEF-zh3LBKuuXHt3-SZzCVM_HlqpSb1IXuT0twFltWagwULCiy7D0dxd5XaMF5J5s80i9ZvX--LzgSgdcBR0u2oGTeG2idRWcNNC5xjR4CoLPurM2EeIgLnUqgLs_DOjanghuHunek5eT-waMl-P4WOIL12vofpul_ABPOC4ZPCA-AEAaAGLoAH0tLstAKoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwDSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCd8QF_jxNnrMgAoBmAsByAsBgAwBuAwB2BMM&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAAScORodWJtD0fwOSVNHItGtQEkH6VideF0Ust6l8t0iyl-rt3iLz9yqnxh35OZJ6XwhjxvQoq3QbvH6KSuzqIWztLn5hJm2il6ohaXuAeW8IDRnyyBSmhrUPPKFtACPYWD61dKt8kSbaZ0p8dM9_qngOU&sig=AOD64_20K1mC5nA_pU-LxtPUTK0cDsZN8A&client=ca-pub-9888648487304734&nb=7&adurl=https://solarpowerprograms.leadshook.io/survey/0PqHYxdq6S7T6Mp6cFgiaf6S1LZpHErVw1t6ZCt0%3FcomboId%3D83f6b27e-ebca-4279-872e-66f86ee981db%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMIubmT5MeP7wIVz5LACh2idgTIEAEYASAAEgI-c_D_BwE
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/hub/videos


press secretary Jen Psaki said Thursday.

“But he also wants to do more on

caregiving, help our manufacturing

sector, do more to strengthen access to

affordable health care. So the size — the

package — the components of it, the

order, that has not yet been

determined.”

Sen. Bernie Sanders, I-Vt., chairman of

the Senate Budget Committee, recently

told the White House that he’s ready to

use the budget maneuver known as

reconciliation to pass a broad economic

recovery package with only Democratic

votes. That drew stern warnings from

Republicans, who have already closed

ranks against Democrats’ COVID-19

relief bill.

“They made a conscious decision not to

include us,” said Sen. Bill Cassidy, R-La.,

on Sunday, calling the White House’s

assertion that the views of Republicans

were taken into account with the

COVID bill a “joke.”

Cassidy, one of 10 centrist Republicans

who met with Biden in early February

about getting bipartisan support on that

bill, said Biden “so far has been about

rhetoric” when it comes to his pledge of

seeking unity and bipartisanship. He

called it worrisome for other legislative

initiatives.

“Republicans remain willing and are

working on issues that require

bipartisan cooperation,” he told CNN’s

“State of the Union.”

West Virginia Sen. Shelley Moore

Capito, a Republican who will be helping

to craft legislation on the Senate side,

said there’s bipartisan support for

ambitious steps on infrastructure. But

that “should not extend to a

multitrillion-dollar package that is

stocked full with other ideologically

driven, one-size-fits-all policies that tie

the hands of our states and our

communities,” said Capito, the ranking

member on the Senate Environment and

Public Works Committee.

Rep. Peter DeFazio, chairman of the

House Transportation and

ADVERTISEMENT

Biden team readies wider economic packa… Top Stories VideoTopics Listen

https://www.axios.com/bernie-sanders-senate-infrastructure-bill-f4bfc3b8-530d-461b-9e23-416bee31e34a.html
https://apnews.com/article/gop-rally-against-democrats-virus-relief-3b74b88930428254b5da3ae87be46004
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=l&ai=CchhYgBw9YNrrMO-Bggb704HQDcupq8lf0uSxqNEMv-EeEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABycXnyQLIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBM8CT9BfyuzLttly82HZZnM2Fua85CoYILQp9LQeEZ70-i4Us6c_E0UrvBGQ1z3ozga2lxfukiWItgndYXPFxt9FceLeL7kygDqzU67QqAKes8jV_PfEBmqtb0ZYTgh9B_pZmCOgaaKjcA5IBh-U6l74z8pXf9_A7Xe4wD3hqLeHo2HTVJVfQ9BlU5vxdUZF_dpZfscQSqpLCydeaJLhbc9rfka436opowJxcKb8DW3fobZ2QVzQQwYlijydf1qrhUAc4JWOgpOd8_HbmyAwhuF1YJG6zj1liH_tlCfXtez-7b99EKXHCP77lRQ6LWlgHTg0Fzrke72vrnvcGnSyNQLIPw8RqsnBCoJZ5Q8cf33XLMFYKAM5LNBGl8wzbTWCSKDEcK4BnynUpdzmnec3jUwR6tiwKiyvSNIGBSbu0L0xHUeSSXwqu1QIe6ZHUhuwlyzABMvFurWkA-AEAaAGAoAHn7qYtgGoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCdxEcefVJSNOgAoDmAsByAsBuAwB2BMM&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-1gJLS-i67lG-tjfOeqC7lWZh1BZD7Ji1QeyMGgYBQ9FvjGtA_d8GlmlqTqsG3Vz_OwUkKvP9VcBCLui9NS4PHu0tThcZURx_3D9NF3L17jG6QrP4wwYeQdnXLZx0dqMOx2mDgbsi6TIq22lKrc&sig=AOD64_2lOigzOmgmAUKeKwT5hPP8VvNnmQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://zolucky.com/collections/top-100%3Fadp%3D10946684,11367211,11126737,11287019,8831663,6005502,10558028,11126691,8787048,7856576,1025,0220-0705%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI2qux4ceP7wIV74DACh37aQDaEAEYASAAEgLJDPD_BwE
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=__lOuWy9ZQVJ6XPxWHrNQmq76rYK6PTvtevcTQJJvgvoZN1L1cv8IpCZ7BQn75nkc85s3Q6sCHbBnqslaoIz3oi-J-Lgzdy0swUNQi8-XmAlNxv5hXfqyM3zoQPHKDYQKg92r4SxblpIwLSu4wktrNcdbFy5HQZQaJyuPUObkM9WraTZyWRa66VVTHSrNyg3moRgVhOJGK1KagIY8Fvrl-ogLJgnxHFGnlFSs2Z_M_BJwVY9Rz7q3EvvO2jCZKrjO2fI-6GuX8_oMek-SJGiAItgKFRgF6WNzMxLa5H3mYo6aJSpGw2J7x7VSPeuPqvYoo3U,mx0jKEDYTmfCj0ZLNp1xSA&source=display
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=__lOuWy9ZQVJ6XPxWHrNQmq76rYK6PTvtevcTQJJvgvoZN1L1cv8IpCZ7BQn75nkc85s3Q6sCHbBnqslaoIz3oi-J-Lgzdy0swUNQi8-XmAlNxv5hXfqyM3zoQPHKDYQKg92r4SxblpIwLSu4wktrNcdbFy5HQZQaJyuPUObkM9WraTZyWRa66VVTHSrNyg3moRgVhOJGK1KagIY8Fvrl-ogLJgnxHFGnlFSs2Z_M_BJwVY9Rz7q3EvvO2jCZKrjO2fI-6GuX8_oMek-SJGiAItgKFRgF6WNzMxLa5H3mYo6aJSpGw2J7x7VSPeuPqvYoo3U,mx0jKEDYTmfCj0ZLNp1xSA&source=display
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/hub/videos


House Transportation and

Infrastructure Committee, told the AP

that he foresees a comprehensive House

package that will go beyond roads,

bridges and public transit. He also

expects it to have money for water

systems, broadband and the power grid

— addressing a weak infrastructure laid

bare after the crippling blackouts in

Texas.

He’s not ready to talk overall costs yet.

DeFazio, D-Ore., said it will be up to the

Biden administration and the House

Ways and Means Committee to figure

out how to pay for it.

DeFazio said General Motors’ recently

announced goal of going largely electric

by 2035 demonstrates the need for

massive spending on charging stations

across the country. Biden campaigned

on a plan to install 500,000 charging

stations by the end of 2030.

“I’m totally willing to work with

(Republicans) if they’re willing to

recognize climate change,” DeFazio said,

“or if they don’t want to recognize

climate change, they can just recognize

that electric semis and electric vehicles

are a flood on the horizon and we’ve got

to get ahead of it.”

Gov. Gretchen Whitmer, D-Mich.,

expressed a similar sentiment, urging

strong action on carbon emissions and

the vehicle charging stations to help

achieve a “full transition to electric.”

She also wants states to have more

federal grants for infrastructure repairs

after natural disasters and extreme

weather.

At the Senate hearing where she spoke,

Republican Gov. Larry Hogan of

Maryland said there’s bipartisan support

among governors for relieving

congestion, cutting red tape, leveraging

private sector investment and ensuring

projects can better withstand cyber

attacks and natural disasters.

Democratic Sen. Tom Carper of

Delaware, the new chairman of the

Senate Environment and Public Works

Biden team readies wider economic packa… Top Stories VideoTopics Listen

https://apnews.com/article/gm-electric-vehicles-auto-industry-9308f9f3fcfbc1cffd0f9d18864dbcca
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=l&ai=CchhYgBw9YNrrMO-Bggb704HQDcupq8lf0uSxqNEMv-EeEAEg19idImDJnoiKmKSwE6ABycXnyQLIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBM8CT9BfyuzLttly82HZZnM2Fua85CoYILQp9LQeEZ70-i4Us6c_E0UrvBGQ1z3ozga2lxfukiWItgndYXPFxt9FceLeL7kygDqzU67QqAKes8jV_PfEBmqtb0ZYTgh9B_pZmCOgaaKjcA5IBh-U6l74z8pXf9_A7Xe4wD3hqLeHo2HTVJVfQ9BlU5vxdUZF_dpZfscQSqpLCydeaJLhbc9rfka436opowJxcKb8DW3fobZ2QVzQQwYlijydf1qrhUAc4JWOgpOd8_HbmyAwhuF1YJG6zj1liH_tlCfXtez-7b99EKXHCP77lRQ6LWlgHTg0Fzrke72vrnvcGnSyNQLIPw8RqsnBCoJZ5Q8cf33XLMFYKAM5LNBGl8wzbTWCSKDEcK4BnynUpdzmnec3jUwR6tiwKiyvSNIGBSbu0L0xHUeSSXwqu1QIe6ZHUhuwlyzABMvFurWkA-AEAaAGAoAHn7qYtgGoB9XJG6gH8NkbqAfy2RuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAe6BqgH7paxAqgHpr4bqAfs1RuoB_PRG6gH7NUbqAeW2BvYBwHSCAkIgOHAYBABGB2xCdxEcefVJSNOgAoDmAsByAsBuAwB2BMM&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAAScORo-1gJLS-i67lG-tjfOeqC7lWZh1BZD7Ji1QeyMGgYBQ9FvjGtA_d8GlmlqTqsG3Vz_OwUkKvP9VcBCLui9NS4PHu0tThcZURx_3D9NF3L17jG6QrP4wwYeQdnXLZx0dqMOx2mDgbsi6TIq22lKrc&sig=AOD64_2lOigzOmgmAUKeKwT5hPP8VvNnmQ&client=ca-pub-8475685469544477&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://zolucky.com/collections/top-100%3Fadp%3D10946684,11367211,11126737,11287019,8831663,6005502,10558028,11126691,8787048,7856576,1025,0220-0705%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI2qux4ceP7wIV74DACh37aQDaEAEYASAAEgLJDPD_BwE
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/hub/videos


Senate Environment and Public Works

Committee, said his goal is for his

committee to pass an infrastructure bill

by Memorial Day.

In the House, Rep. Sam Graves, the top

Republican on the transportation panel,

said Republicans would be open to a

larger package as long as it didn’t greatly

add to the national debt.

But many lawmakers oppose an increase

in the federal gas tax, one way to help

pay for the spending, while groups such

as the Chamber of Commerce argue

against increasing taxes on companies

during a pandemic.

White House aide Cedric Richmond, a

former congressman from Louisiana,

told state transportation officials the

president intends for most of the

spending to be paid for, not added to the

debt. In part, this would be by reversing

some of the Trump administration tax

cuts.

Ed Mortimer, a vice president at the U.S.

Chamber of Commerce, said removing

items in last year’s infrastructure bill for

renovating schools and low-income

housing could lower the price tag,

because the COVID relief measure

passed by the House already has

hundreds of billions of dollars for those

purposes.

“Affordable housing, school

construction, very meritorious, but

we’re not sure that that’s a key focus

that’s going to get a bill signed into law,”

Mortimer said.

___

Yen reported from Austin, Texas. AP

writer Matthew Daly contributed to this

report.

Biden team readies wider economic packa… Top Stories VideoTopics Listen

https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/
https://apnews.com/hub/videos


2/26/2021 Buttigieg sets goals for electric, automated freight vehicles | TheHill

https://thehill.com/policy/transportation/539094-buttigieg-sets-goals-for-electric-automated-freight-vehicles?rl=1 1/3

Buttigieg sets goals for electric,
automated freight vehicles
BY ALEX GANGITANO - 02/17/21 06:00 AM EST

533 SHARES SHARE TWEET

Just In...

Lawmakers line up
behind potential cyber
breach noti�ication
legislation
CYBERSECURITY — 4M 24S AGO

Indigenous groups post
billboards urging
senators to con�irm Deb
Haaland
ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT
— 5M 42S AGO

New report reveals
members who decide
Golden Globes TV and
�ilm awards have zero
Black members
CHANGING AMERICA
— 11M 51S AGO

Media circles wagons
for conspiracy theorist
Neera Tanden
OPINION — 12M 41S AGO

Dutch parliament
passes motion calling
China's treatment of
Uighurs 'a genocide'
INTERNATIONAL — 15M 45S AGO

Cotton defends call for
Insurrection Act, assails
'child mob' at NYT
SENATE — 18M 22S AGO

Washington court
strikes down law that
made unintentional
possession of drugs a
crime
STATE WATCH — 24M 8S AGO

McCarthy: No
commitment from
Trump to not target
Republicans
HOUSE — 32M 5S AGO

VIEW ALL

Newly sworn-in Transportation Secretary  is planning to
embark on ambitious priorities for electric and automated freight �leet
vehicles as part of the Biden administration’s overall goals for combating
climate change. 

Buttigieg said at his recent con�irmation hearing that American workers
should be leading the way in producing autonomous vehicles, while
stressing the need for public infrastructure to power electric vehicles with
clean energy. In doing so, he fully embraced ’s goal to
have 500,000 electric charging stations across the country by 2030. 

Buttigieg’s plans for automated and electric commercial vehicles come on
the heels of a report from his predecessor, former Transportation
Secretary , who released a National Freight Strategic Plan in
September that included supporting the development and adoption of
automation and connectivity. 

“There are signi�icant technological and institutional barriers to the
widespread adoption of highly automated trucks,” the plan said.

But proponents say that the costs to overcoming those barriers are
outweighed by enhanced safety on the other end.

Freight shipments are expected to increase by 22.4 percent over the next
20 years, according to government estimates, and experts say the amount
of human error in long-haul freight with automation will eventually lead to
fewer injuries and deaths.  

Todd Benoff, co-founder of Alston & Bird’s connected and autonomous
vehicles team, noted that more than 37,000 people die on U.S. roads
every year and 94 percent of those accidents are caused by human error.

“While there is a lot of debate around how much safer automated vehicles
will be, there are some facts that suggest the improvement will be
dramatic. Speed is a major factor in fatal accidents,” he said. “Driver
distraction is another factor — one that becomes worse every year as
people �ind more and more reasons to pay attention to their phones
instead of the road.” 

00:43 / 01:29

More VideosMore Videos CloseClose

Pete Buttigieg

President Biden

Elaine Chao

https://thehill.com/author/alex-gangitano
https://thehill.com/
https://thehill.com/policy/cybersecurity/540727-lawmakers-line-up-behind-potential-cyber-breach-notification-legislation
https://thehill.com/policy/energy-environment/540729-indigenous-groups-pressure-senators-through-deb-haaland-billboards
https://thehill.com/changing-america/enrichment/arts-culture/540722-new-report-reveals-members-who-decide-golden-globes
https://thehill.com/opinion/white-house/540702-media-circles-wagons-for-conspiracy-theorist-neera-tanden
https://thehill.com/policy/international/540725-dutch-parliament-passes-motion-calling-chinas-treatment-of-uighurs-a
https://thehill.com/homenews/senate/540728-cotton-defends-call-for-insurrection-act-assails-child-mob-at-nyt
https://thehill.com/homenews/state-watch/540719-washington-supreme-court-strikes-down-law-declaring-unintentional
https://thehill.com/homenews/house/540724-mccarthy-no-commitment-from-trump-to-not-target-republicans
https://thehill.com/news
https://thehill.com/people/peter-pete-buttigieg
https://thehill.com/people/joe-biden
https://thehill.com/people/elaine-chao


2/26/2021 Buttigieg sets goals for electric, automated freight vehicles | TheHill

https://thehill.com/policy/transportation/539094-buttigieg-sets-goals-for-electric-automated-freight-vehicles?rl=1 2/3

 

The Biden administration’s agenda includes replacing the government’s
�leet with U.S.-made electric vehicles. 

“The federal government also owns an enormous �leet of vehicles, which
we’re going to replace with clean electric vehicles made right here in
America, by American workers,” Biden said late last month. 

Transportation policy experts are optimistic that Buttigieg, 39, can help
facilitate advancements in both electri�ication and automation. 

“The commitment of the administration towards electric vehicles, I think,
will be a big boost not only to electric vehicles but to advancing
autonomous vehicles. I think Secretary Buttigieg, being somewhat of a
younger generation ... I think he’s the right person at the department to
advance these ideas and this technology,” said Eric Tanenblatt, global
chair of public policy and regulation and leader of Autonomous Vehicles
practice at Dentons, an international law �irm. 

The goal of replacing the federal �leet with electric vehicles is doable,
experts said, while cautioning that the timeline is uncertain. 

“Replacing some federal �leet vehicles with electric vehicles can happen
immediately. Replacing all federal �leet vehicles with electric vehicles will
take time,” said Jeremy Michalek, a professor of engineering and public
policy at Carnegie Mellon University.

An eventual infrastructure package, which Biden wants with a $2 trillion
price tag, will be crucial to accomplishing many of the administration’s
goals. And while infrastructure is often a bipartisan issue, Democrats have
encountered GOP resistance in Congress in recent years for including
environmental policies in their proposals.

Tanenblatt said that getting to automation for commercial freight will be a
two-step process that depends in large part on electric vehicles.

“The precursor to autonomy is electri�ication. The administration’s
commitment to climate change and to electric vehicles — they’ve set
some lofty goals. And if we invest in seeing the electric vehicle industry
expand, I think that helps to push towards autonomous vehicles,” he said.

But accomplishing the �irst step carries with it signi�icant hurdles.  

“Picking some subset of the �leet to electrify now, the technology’s there.
It’s just a matter of doing it. However, when we talk about electrifying the
entire �leet ... that’s an enormously more di�icult challenge because while
some applications are ready to electrify now, there are many others that
have enormous hurdles to �igure out before they would reasonably
electrify,” Michalek said.

Experts also point out that while electric and automated vehicles could
carry higher upfront costs, maintenance costs are likely to go down as
availability increases. 

“Automated �leets have the potential to reduce cost, improve e�iciency
and increase �lexibility, but they may also displace jobs,” Michalek said.

TAGS  PETE BUTTIGIEG  ELAINE CHAO  JOE BIDEN  ROAD TO THE FUTURE  FREIGHT  
AUTONOMOUS VEHICLES  AVS

BY 
SPONSORED CONTENT

‘Mars here we come’:
HPE Spaceborne
Computer-2 Brings
Computing to the
Cosmos

HEWLETT PACKARD ENTERPRISE

Chasten Buttigieg jokes about his husband biking home from work

Exclusive: How Obama went to bat for Warren

https://thehill.com/person/pete-buttigieg
https://thehill.com/person/elaine-chao
https://thehill.com/person/joe-biden
https://thehill.com/social-tags/road-to-the-future
https://thehill.com/social-tags/freight
https://thehill.com/social-tags/autonomous-vehicles
https://thehill.com/social-tags/avs
https://thehill.com/sponsor-generated-content?prx_t=DYkGAkLpKAkeEMA&ntv_fr
https://thehill.com/sponsor-generated-content?prx_t=DYkGAkLpKAkeEMA&ntv_fr
https://thehill.com/sponsor-generated-content?prx_t=DYkGAkLpKAkeEMA&ntv_fr
https://thehill.com/sponsor-generated-content?prx_t=DYkGAkLpKAkeEMA&ntv_fr
https://thehill.com/blogs/in-the-know/in-the-know/540705-chasten-jokes-about-buttigieg-biking-home-from-work?utm_source=thehill&utm_medium=widgets&utm_campaign=es_recommended_content
https://thehill.com/homenews/campaign/540711-lucky-excerpt-obama-went-to-bat-for-warren?utm_source=thehill&utm_medium=widgets&utm_campaign=es_recommended_content


3/2/2021 Farther, Faster and No Sweat: Bike-Sharing and the E-Bike Boom - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/02/travel/ebikes-bike-sharing-us.html?action=click&module=News&pgtype=Homepage 1/4

Farther, Faster and No Sweat: Bike-Sharing and the E-Bike Boom
Social-distancing, sustainability and accessibility helped accelerate e-biking during the pandemic, and the trend is showing up in urban
bike-sharing programs.

By Elaine Glusac

March 2, 2021 Updated 10:56 a.m. ET

As with all bicycles during the pandemic, electric bikes, or those with battery-powered motors to handle propulsion, boomed. The market
research firm NPD Group said sales of e-bikes grew 145 percent in 2020 compared to 2019, outpacing sales of all bikes, which were up 65
percent.

“Bike categories that catered to families and recreational and newer riders grew better than more performance-oriented bikes,” said Dirk
Sorenson, a sports industry analyst at NPD, adding that e-bikes “overcome challenges like big hills or going on a longer ride than a typical
bike.”

But it’s not just consumer sales that have mainstreamed e-bikes. Municipal bike-sharing systems have increasingly adopted the
technology, with some cities, including Charlotte, N.C., going with an all-electric fleet during the pandemic.

Social distancing demands, the quest for safe and more accessible public transportation and sustainable travel measures have forged a
growing adoption of e-bikes among travelers as well as local residents.

“Covid sort of propelled electric bikes forward by years,” said Josh Squire, the founder and chief executive of Hopr, a bike-share service.

Cities, bike-sharing companies and even a peer-to-peer bike-sharing platform (in which bike owners rent their bikes directly to users) are
jumping into the e-bike ecosystem. Here’s how bike-sharing — sometimes called “micromobility” to include other small vehicles, such as
scooters — has shifted in the tourism lull.

Covid did not kill bike-sharing

In the early days of the pandemic, bike-share usage stalled as those working from home stopped commuting. For essential workers who
needed to travel, bike-sharing became an alternative to buses or trains, where they might be exposed to the virus by other passengers.
Lyft, which manages bike-share fleets in nine cities — including the largest systems in New York City and Chicago — gave about 30,000
essential workers free yearly passes.

“Covid was able to highlight micromobility as an essential transportation service, filling in where transit service stopped or where gaps
existed and helping essential workers get to work,” said Samantha Herr, the executive director of the North American Bikeshare
Association.

As people began to leave their houses in summer, biking rebounded. In Honolulu, nearly 80 percent of members of the bike-sharing system
Biki said riding was the safest form of public transportation during the pandemic. In Chicago, the Divvy bike-share system recorded its
busiest month on record in August.

In New York City, where Citi Bike added 3,700 new bikes in 2020, ridership exceeded 2019 levels in the last four months of 2020, according
to a monthly report filed with the New York City Department of Transportation. The company said 27 percent of rides were deemed
“casual,” or recreational, in 2020, versus 17 percent in 2019, with the most popular stations around hospitals and parks, reflecting the mix of
essential and casual uses.

Biking was clearly a remedy for cabin fever, and bike sharing is an affordable cure.

In Miami, where hand sanitizer dispensers were installed at Citi Bike Miami stations, casual users have taken about 40 percent of rides in
2021 as tourism has ticked up.

Colby Reese, the co-founder of DecoBike, which runs Citi Bike Miami, estimates about half a million visitors annually used the bike-share
system before the pandemic. Plans are in place to add about 200 e-bikes this summer to the existing 2,000-bike fleet. “Because of Covid,
outdoor things are more popular than they were before,” he said.

GET THE TRAVEL DISPATCH NEWSLETTER: Essential news on the
changing travel landscape, expert tips and inspiration for your
future trips.

Sign Up

https://www.nytimes.com/
https://charlottejoyrides.com/
https://gohopr.com/
https://www.lyft.com/bikes
https://nabsa.net/
https://gobiki.org/
https://www.divvybikes.com/
https://twitter.com/CitiBikeNYC/status/1341461378679394304/photo/1
http://citibikemiami.com/


3/2/2021 Farther, Faster and No Sweat: Bike-Sharing and the E-Bike Boom - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/02/travel/ebikes-bike-sharing-us.html?action=click&module=News&pgtype=Homepage 2/4

E-bikes for the people

The electrification of bike-share systems, accelerating now, has been underway for several years. In 2018, the Bikeshare Planning Guide
from the Transformative Urban Mobility Initiative, a global initiative on sustainable transportation, called them “ideal for bikeshare
because of their otherwise high upfront cost to users, and they can improve user comfort by reducing often-cited barriers to cycling such
as fatigue, sweating, and longer-distance or hilly trips.”

According to the North American Bikeshare Association, in 2019, the last year for which statistics are available, 28 percent of bike-sharing
systems had e-bikes. It found e-bikes were used more intensively than traditional bikes, at a rate 1.7 times higher.

In 2019, when the Madison BCycle fleet in Madison, Wis., went electric, usage more than doubled. Novelty was a driver, along with
affordability.

“To be able to try an e-bike for a very low rate for a day pass is what draws people initially to try it out,” said Helen Bradley, the general
manager of Madison BCycle, where a day pass costs $15. “Then they get hooked,” she added, on the range of the bikes, which can go 30 to
35 miles on a full charge with top speed of about 17 miles per hour.

Chicago plans to have 10,000 e-bikes in its Divvy system by 2022 — it added 3,500 e-bikes in 2020 — in a plan to provide accessibility to 100
percent of the city.

The Coronavirus Outbreak ›

Latest Updates ›
Updated 

With virus variants, even the names are a challenge.

Health care workers across the world faced violence as the pandemic raged.

Amid a slow E.U. rollout, Austria and Denmark seek to team up with Israel on vaccines.

Adopting e-bikes hasn’t come without growing pains. In New York City, Citi Bike introduced e-bikes in 2018, but removed them in 2019
after reports of brakes malfunctioning, causing rider injuries (similar problems forced Lyft, which manages Citi Bike, to temporarily
withdraw e-bikes from its systems in Washington, D.C. and San Francisco). Last winter, New York re-introduced Citi Bike e-bikes, which
reach maximum speeds of 18 m.p.h., below the limit of 20 m.p.h. later set by the city for the pedal-assisted e-bikes. There are now about
3,700 e-bikes in the 19,000-bike system; the average e-bike gets over nine rides a day, while the average for pedal bikes is 3.5.

“Putting a little bit of a motor on it makes cycling more attractive to a wider and aging audience,” said Aaron Ritz, who oversees the
Indego bike-share system for the City of Philadelphia. Over the next five years, the Indego system will more than double in size, making
half the fleet electric and focusing on historically underserved neighborhoods, which tend to be Black or Latin American.

“The more we shift from single-occupancy vehicles, the better, for reasons of air quality, traffic safety, environmental impact and
greenhouse gas emissions,” Mr. Ritz said.

Chicago plans to have 10,000 e-bikes in its Divvy system by 2022 — it added 3,500 e-bikes
in 2020 — in a plan to provide accessibility to 100 percent of the city. Lyft

42 minutes ago

https://www.transformative-mobility.org/assets/publications/The-Bikeshare-Planning-Guide-ITDP-Datei.pdf
https://nabsa.net/
https://nabsa.net/about/industry/
https://madison.bcycle.com/
https://www.nytimes.com/news-event/coronavirus?name=styln-coronavirus&region=MAIN_CONTENT_2&block=storyline_latest_updates_recirc&action=click&pgtype=Article&impression_id=&variant=1_Show&index=0
https://www.nytimes.com/live/2021/03/02/world/covid-19-coronavirus?name=styln-coronavirus&region=MAIN_CONTENT_2&block=storyline_latest_updates_recirc&action=click&pgtype=Article&impression_id=&variant=1_Show&index=1
https://www.nytimes.com/live/2021/03/02/world/covid-19-coronavirus?name=styln-coronavirus&region=MAIN_CONTENT_2&block=storyline_latest_updates_recirc&action=click&pgtype=Article&impression_id=&variant=1_Show&index=2#with-virus-variants-even-the-names-are-a-challenge
https://www.nytimes.com/live/2021/03/02/world/covid-19-coronavirus?name=styln-coronavirus&region=MAIN_CONTENT_2&block=storyline_latest_updates_recirc&action=click&pgtype=Article&impression_id=&variant=1_Show&index=2#health-care-workers-across-the-world-faced-violence-as-the-pandemic-raged
https://www.nytimes.com/live/2021/03/02/world/covid-19-coronavirus?name=styln-coronavirus&region=MAIN_CONTENT_2&block=storyline_latest_updates_recirc&action=click&pgtype=Article&impression_id=&variant=1_Show&index=2#amid-a-slow-eu-rollout-austria-and-denmark-seek-to-team-up-with-israel-on-vaccines
https://www.citibikenyc.com/how-it-works/electric
https://www.capitalbikeshare.com/blog/service-update-putting-riders-safety-first
https://www.sfchronicle.com/business/article/Lyft-s-Bay-Wheels-to-resume-e-bike-rentals-in-SF-14821170.php
https://www1.nyc.gov/html/dot/html/bicyclists/ebikes.shtml
https://www.rideindego.com/


3/2/2021 Farther, Faster and No Sweat: Bike-Sharing and the E-Bike Boom - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/02/travel/ebikes-bike-sharing-us.html?action=click&module=News&pgtype=Homepage 3/4

Gregory F. Maassen, 53, a resident of Washington, D.C., describes the district’s Capital Bikeshare e-bikes as “built like tanks to withstand a
lot of abuse.”

E-bike aficionados, like Mr. Maassen, who founded a social group called E-bike Lovers, prefer higher-end bikes, but credit bike-sharing as
a gateway for introducing them to a broader audience.

“Interest in bike-share systems has had a great impact on the acceptance of e-bikes,” he said. “It gives people a low-cost entry into this
new technology.” E-bikes can be purchased for a few hundred dollars, though most fans say quality bikes start around $1,500 and go much
higher.

But finding a fully charged bike is crucial, said Richard Strell, 68, a Bay Wheels bike-share rider in San Francisco.

“I started using e-bikes because of Covid and I don’t own a car in San Francisco,” he said, noting that e-bikes with only seven or eight miles
left on the battery were too weak to get him up hills. “I was excited, but it turned out to be disappointing.”

Going farther, faster and mainstream

Shared bike systems always aimed to go the “last mile” or fill the gap between public transit hubs and your destination. E-bikes make
them more serious contenders as transportation options by going farther with less effort.

“If I can get someplace farther or faster, that matters when you’re picking a mode of transportation,” said Bill Dossett, the executive
director of Nice Ride Minnesota, the nonprofit that started the shared mobility system in Minneapolis, now operated by Lyft, which plans
to add about 2,000 e-bikes this spring.

Lyft, the country’s largest bike-share service, has added transit information on its rideshare app in 17 cities to better coordinate with public
transportation systems, in addition to showing available drivers, bikes and scooters. In Denver, users can buy transit passes through the
app.

“We’re giving people a user-friendly way to piece together trips and allow them to explore a city that historically would have been much
harder,” said Caroline Samponaro, Lyft’s head of micromobility policy.

The success of electric bikes and scooters has encouraged Bolt Mobility, which is in about 21 cities and college campuses, to develop
electric mopeds, three-wheeled bikes and minicars, electric vehicles that offer more stability and protection.

“These devices aren’t supposed to be just for 20-year-old kids, they’re supposed to be for everyone,” said Ignacio Tzoumas, the chief
executive of Bolt Mobility.

Bolt, which was co-founded by the Olympic gold-medalist sprinter Usain Bolt, has plans to bring its e-bikes and scooters to Tokyo in time
for the Olympic Games this summer.

Private bike-share systems predicted

The success of e-bikes has encouraged Bolt Mobility to develop electric mo-peds, three-
wheeled bikes and minicars. Above, riding e-bikes on the University of Alabama campus
in Tuscaloosa, Ala. BoltBikes

https://www.capitalbikeshare.com/
https://ebikelovers.com/
https://www.lyft.com/bikes/bay-wheels
https://www.niceridemn.com/
https://www.lyft.com/blog/posts/denver-rtd-transit-tickets
https://www.micromobility.com/


3/2/2021 Farther, Faster and No Sweat: Bike-Sharing and the E-Bike Boom - The New York Times

https://www.nytimes.com/2021/03/02/travel/ebikes-bike-sharing-us.html?action=click&module=News&pgtype=Homepage 4/4

While most bike-share systems are affiliated with cities, entrepreneurs foresee a future in private bike shares for hotel guests, apartment
complex renters or company employees.

The peer-to-peer bike-sharing platform Spinlister is developing a private model that would station Rokit Ebikes at a hotel, for example,
which could offer access as an amenity, leaving the management and maintenance to Spinlister.

Before the pandemic, Hopr had plans to take its services, which include e-bikes, to hotels and create private bike-share systems, an effort
paused by the dearth of travel.

“We come from sharing and have the technology to unlock a bike from an app and rent it so it’s no hassle for the hotel,” Mr. Squire of Hopr
said.

Follow New York Times Travel on Instagram, Twitter and Facebook. And sign up for our weekly Travel Dispatch newsletter to receive expert
tips on traveling smarter and inspiration for your next vacation.

https://www.spinlister.com/
https://rokitebike.com/
https://www.instagram.com/nytimestravel/
https://twitter.com/nytimestravel
https://www.facebook.com/nytimestravel/
https://www.nytimes.com/newsletters/traveldispatch


 
 
 

 

Recessions tend to discourage new business formations as entrepreneurs face uncertainty and funding 
challenges. However, 2020 was different as business applications surged in the second half of the year. 
Entrepreneurs saw opportunities to respond to consumers spending more online — a trend fueled by COVID-
19’s impact on the economy and federal income-support programs.  

 

Relative to Missouri’s 10.6% increase in payroll business applications, the nationwide increase was 15.6%. In 
both cases, growth in this metric occurred as many existing firms struggled to survive or closed permanently. 
U.S. Census Bureau figures through September 2020 show that e-commerce retailers, trucking firms and food 
and drinking places had large application filing increases compared with April 2020. E-commerce and trucking 
activities have understandably accelerated during the COVID-19 pandemic. The increase in food and drinking 
place applications is less expected, however. It is likely related to businesses offering food delivery services. 

Reasons for Owning a Business 

The 2018 U.S. Census Annual Business Survey asked business owners why they operated their company. 
Participants answered this survey prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, but their responses can indicate why 
entrepreneurs start new ventures. 2020 was a hard year for many small businesses, especially minority-owned 
firms, but the quick rebound in business application filings showed that entrepreneurs felt optimistic in 2020 
about new growth opportunities.  

      Missouri Economy Indicators  
Business Applications and Ownership Motivators        VOL. 2, ISSUE 5, 1 MARCH 2021 

 

Payroll Business Applications Up In 2020 

Relative to 2019, Missouri had 10.6% more 
applications filed in 2020 to start new businesses 
that would likely hire paid employees, according 
to the U.S. Census Bureau. The 2020 new business 
application filing rate bested the 2017-to-2019 
average, despite COVID-19 negatively affecting 
filings early in 2020. By early August — week 31 
— total business applications had surpassed the 
prior three-year average (see chart). 

The U.S. Census Bureau tracks weekly new 
business application filings. It separately reports 
data for applicants likely to have payroll, such as 
corporations or firms indicating they are hiring 
workers, and all other applicants. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Weekly Missouri Business Applications 
Filed by Likely Employers in 2020 vs. 3-Year Average 

Source: U.S. Census. Cumulative Total of High-Propensity 
Businesses for Employment Applications. 

20,493 

22,790 

 -
 2,000
 4,000
 6,000
 8,000

 10,000
 12,000
 14,000
 16,000
 18,000
 20,000
 22,000
 24,000

1 4 7 10 13 16 19 22 25 28 31 34 37 40 43 46 49 52

2017-2019 Average 2020

     
         

Week

https://www.census.gov/econ/bfs/projects.html
https://www.uschamber.com/report/august-2020-special-report-race-and-inequality-main-street
https://www.uschamber.com/report/august-2020-special-report-race-and-inequality-main-street


 
Most Missouri and U.S. business owners operate their firm to make more money on their own terms. Topping 
the list of reasons to own a business, greater income and being my own boss were very important for six out of 
10 U.S. and Missouri entrepreneurs. U.S. data for nonminority and minority business owners show these groups 
had similar rankings, but minority entrepreneurs were more likely to indicate greater income and being my own 
boss as very important business ownership reasons. Helping my community was very important for 35% of 
minority entrepreneurs — 13% percentage points higher than responses from nonminority business owners. 
This response had the largest difference between minority and nonminority business owners. No Missouri data 
were available to compare responses from minority and nonminority business owners. 
 
The survey data show couldn’t find a job ranked last 
in terms of it being a very important reason to own a 
business. Entrepreneurs typically have higher 
education credentials — 55% of Missouri business 
owners have an associate degree or more education 
compared with 38% of the total population — so 
finding employment was not a major concern when 
business owners responded to this survey in 2018. 
However, job loss in 2020 may have contributed to a 
surge of new businesses starting out of necessity. 
Kansas City Federal Reserve research, however, 
found the spike in business applications from May to 
October 2020 did not appear to be related to state 
unemployment rates. Although the 2020 story of 
business disruptions is still unfolding, the surge in 
new business applications appears largely driven by 
entrepreneurs seeking new income opportunities 
rather than needing to replace lost jobs.  
 

For example, the COVID-19 pandemic has encouraged new e-commerce retail ventures as consumers buy more 
items online. Moving goods and food has also spurred entrepreneurs to capitalize on growing demand for 
transportation services.  
 

Additional Resources 
• U.S. Census Annual Business Survey summarizes characteristics, such as education level and age, of business owners at 

census.gov/data/tables/2019/econ/abs/2019-abs-characteristics-of-owners.html 
• Minority-owned business COVID-19 impacts information at clevelandfed.org/newsroom-and-events/publications/community-

development-briefs/db-20201008-misera-report.aspx and uschamber.com/report/august-2020-special-report-race-and-
inequality-main-street 

 

All Missouri Economy Indicators briefs in this series are available at tinyurl.com/ExceedEconomyIndicators 

Author: Alan Spell, Assistant Extension Professor, University of Missouri 
 
 The Missouri SBDC is funded in part through a Cooperative Agreement with the U.S. Small 

Business Administration and is a University of Missouri Extension partner. All opinions, 
conclusions, and/or recommendations expressed herein are those of the author(s) and do not 
necessarily reflect the views of the SBA. 

Very Important Reasons to Own Business 
Percent of respondents indicating reason is “very important” 

Reason to Own Business Missouri U.S.
U.S.

Nonminority
U.S. 

Minority

Greater income 60% 62% 61% 65%
Wanted to be my own boss 58% 62% 62% 64%
Balance work and family 53% 56% 55% 62%
Best avenue for ideas 51% 54% 53% 58%
Flexible hours 49% 53% 52% 59%
Start my own business 41% 45% 43% 55%
Work for self 30% 32% 32% 33%
Friend or family role model 28% 28% 27% 33%
Help my community 22% 24% 22% 35%
Carry on family business 18% 18% 18% 21%
Other 8% 9% 9% 12%
Couldn't find a job 6% 8% 6% 12%

Source: U.S. Census Annual Business Survey, Owner Characteristics 

https://www.kansascityfed.org/en/publications/research/eb/articles/2020/us-business-applications-surge-face-of-covid
https://www.census.gov/data/tables/2019/econ/abs/2019-abs-characteristics-of-owners.html
https://www.clevelandfed.org/newsroom-and-events/publications/community-development-briefs/db-20201008-misera-report.aspx
https://www.clevelandfed.org/newsroom-and-events/publications/community-development-briefs/db-20201008-misera-report.aspx
https://www.uschamber.com/report/august-2020-special-report-race-and-inequality-main-street
https://www.uschamber.com/report/august-2020-special-report-race-and-inequality-main-street
https://tinyurl.com/ExceedEconomyIndicators


3/2/2021 News Release

https://www.aep.com/news/releases/read/6036/AEP%2C-Five-Others-Plan-to-Add-EV-Fast-Chargers-Creating-Electric-Highway-Coalition 1/2

N EWS R ELEASE

March 02, 2021

COLUMBUS, Ohio, March 2, 2021 - Six major utilities today announced a plan to

ensure that electric vehicle (EV) drivers have access to a seamless network of

charging stations connecting major highway systems from the Atlantic Coast,

through the Midwest and South, and into the Gulf and Central Plains regions.

The Electric Highway Coalition – made up of American Electric Power, Dominion

Energy, Duke Energy, Entergy Corporation, Southern Co., and the Tennessee

Valley Authority – announced a plan to enable EV drivers seamless travel across

major regions of the country through a network of DC fast chargers for EVs. The

companies are each taking steps to provide EV charging solutions within their

service territories. This represents an unprecedented effort to offer convenient EV

charging options across different company territories and allow EV travel without

interruption.

The Edison Electric Institute estimates 18 million EVs will be on U.S. roads by 2030. While many drivers recognize the bene�ts of driving an EV, such as the

ease of low-cost home charging, some are concerned with the availability of charging stations during long road trips. With efforts like the Electric Highway

Coalition, electric companies are demonstrating to customers that EVs are a smart choice for driving around town, as well as traveling long distances.

This effort will provide drivers with effective, ef�cient, and convenient charging options that enable long-distance EV travel. Sites along major highway

routes with easy highway access and amenities for travelers are being considered as coalition members work to determine �nal charging station locations.

Charging stations will provide DC fast chargers that are capable of getting drivers back on the road in approximately 20-30 minutes.

“Throughout the ages, travelers have had to �gure out how to get from point A to B. From feeding and watering horses, to �lling gas tanks, and now

recharging batteries, ensuring that there are convenient places to accomplish these tasks is critical,” said Nicholas K. Akins, AEP’s chairman, president and

chief executive of�cer. “With this effort, we are working to help drivers see that EVs �t their lifestyle and their travel plans, wherever the road might take

them.”

AEP has committed to replacing its 2,300 cars and light-duty trucks with EV models by 2030. Additional medium- and heavy-duty vehicles will transition to

hybrid or electric alternatives as models become available. The charging network announced today also will enable AEP employees to use EVs to travel

throughout the company’s 11-state service territory. AEP also is working with select customers across its service territory to help them understand the

bene�ts of electrifying their own vehicle �eets or business processes.

Across its service territory, AEP is working with regulators to create programs that bene�t all customers and support EV adoption, such as off-peak

charging programs, incentives for charging station installations, energy ef�ciency rebates, and consultative services to encourage electri�cation.

In 2018, AEP Ohio launched a $10 million program to deploy 375 charging stations in partnership with local governments, workplaces and multi-family

dwellings to increase publicly available charging sites and demonstrate the bene�t of public-private partnerships as part of the Smart Columbus initiative.

The program included a requirement to locate 10% of the charging stations in low-income areas, a benchmark that was exceeded.

In 2020, Indiana Michigan Power began offering its IM Plugged In program to address residential, multi-family dwelling, �eet and workplace charging, as

well as corridor fast charging. The program offers customers rebate programs that reduce EV charging infrastructure costs and EV-speci�c off-peak rates.

Appalachian Power offers a residential off-peak charging program for Virginia customers. Customers also receive credits for EV charging that takes place

during off-peak periods, such as overnight.

Additionally, residential customers of Public Service Company of Oklahoma and Southwestern Electric Power Company in Louisiana and Texas are eligible

for energy ef�ciency rebates on quali�ed EV chargers.

The Electric Highway Coalition welcomes interested utilities to join as it seeks to extend the reach of network. Additionally, it supports, and looks forward to

working with, other regional utility transportation corridor electri�cation initiatives. 

 

AEP, FIVE OTHERS PLAN TO ADD EV FAST CHARGERS
CREATING ELECTRIC HIGHWAY COALITION

SHARE:

http://indianamichiganpower.com/impluggedin
http://appalachianpower.com/chargeathome
https://www.facebook.com/sharer.php?u=http://aep.com/news/stories/read/6036
http://www.twitter.com/share?text=AEP%2C%20Five%20Others%20Plan%20to%20Add%20EV%20Fast%20Chargers%20Creating%20Electric%20Highway%20Coalition&url=http://aep.com/news/stories/read/6036
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://aep.com/news/stories/read/6036
mailto:%C2%A0?subject=AEP%2C%20Five%20Others%20Plan%20to%20Add%20EV%20Fast%20Chargers%20Creating%20Electric%20Highway%20Coalition&body=http://aep.com/news/stories/read/6036


3/2/2021 News Release

https://www.aep.com/news/releases/read/6036/AEP%2C-Five-Others-Plan-to-Add-EV-Fast-Chargers-Creating-Electric-Highway-Coalition 2/2

American Electric Power, based in Columbus, Ohio, is focused on building a smarter energy infrastructure and delivering new technologies and custom

energy solutions to our customers. AEP’s approximately 16,800 employees operate and maintain the nation’s largest electricity transmission system and

more than 223,000 miles of distribution lines to ef�ciently deliver safe, reliable power to nearly 5.5 million regulated customers in 11 states. AEP also is

one of the nation’s largest electricity producers with approximately 30,000 megawatts of diverse generating capacity, including more than 5,300 megawatts

of renewable energy. AEP’s family of companies includes utilities AEP Ohio, AEP Texas, Appalachian Power (in Virginia and West Virginia), AEP Appalachian

Power (in Tennessee), Indiana Michigan Power, Kentucky Power, Public Service Company of Oklahoma, and Southwestern Electric Power Company (in

Arkansas, Louisiana, east Texas and the Texas Panhandle). AEP also owns AEP Energy, AEP Energy Partners, AEP OnSite Partners, and AEP Renewables,

which provide innovative competitive energy solutions nationwide. For more information, visit aep.com.

B2B & SUPPLIERS

RECREATION

ENVIRONMENT

SAFETY & HEALTH

Use of this site constitutes acceptance of the AEP Terms and Conditions. © 1996-2021 American Electric Power Company, Inc.

All Rights Reserved.

REQUIRED INTERNET POSTINGS |  SITEMAP |  DO NOT SELL MY PERSONAL INFO |  PRIVACY POLICY

https://www.aep.com/b2b/
https://www.aep.com/recreation/
https://www.aep.com/environment/
https://www.aep.com/safety/
https://www.aep.com/terms/
https://www.aep.com/requiredpostings/
https://www.aep.com/search/sitemap
https://www.aep.com/privacy/donotsell
https://www.aep.com/privacy
https://www.twitter.com/AEPnews
https://www.facebook.com/AmericanElectricPower
https://www.linkedin.com/company/american-electric-power
http://www.youtube.com/AEPtv


1/28/2021 ‘Best And Worst’ States Rated After Deadlier Than Expected Year On Nation’s Roads - AMPO

https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/ 1/4

‘Best And Worst’ States Rated After Deadlier Than Expected Year
On Nation’s Roads

GENERAL

Tra�c overall has dropped across the country during the Covid-19 pandemic, but there has been a

substantial rise in the fatality crash rate, thought to be the result of spikes in excessive speeding, impaired

and distracted driving, and lower seat belt use.

A new report, which identi�ed best and worst states based on the passage of 16 essential tra�c safety laws,

aims to help lawmakers reverse “a shocking and deadly trend….to turn the page on a year when emptier

roads turned into risky racetracks.”

The report, “2021 Roadmap of State Highway Safety Laws,” was released at a virtual press conference in

Washington earlier this month by Advocates for Highway and Auto Safety, an alliance of consumer, medical,

public health, law enforcement, and safety organizations as well as insurance companies and agents.

Best States: New York, Rhode Island, District of Columbia, Washington, Delaware, Maine, Oregon, California

and Louisiana.

Worst States: Missouri, Wyoming, Montana, Arizona, Florida, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, Ohio,

South Dakota, Vermont and Virginia.

NEWS



 MY AMPO

ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN
PLANNING ORGANIZATIONS

POLICY WORKING GROUPS EVENTS NEWS & CAREERS RESOURCES ABOUT US JOIN AMPO MY AMPO  



https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/
https://ampo.org/category/general/
https://saferoads.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/2021-Roadmap-of-State-Highway-Safety-Laws-Hyperlinked-1.pdf
https://saferoads.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Advocates-for-Highway-and-Auto-Safety-Best-and-Worst-States-List-2021-1.pdf
https://saferoads.org/2021-roadmap-webcast/
http://www.saferoads.org/
https://ampo.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Screen-Shot-2021-01-25-at-11.37.02-AM.png
https://ampo.org/
https://myampo.org/
https://ampo.org/policy/reauthorization/
https://ampo.org/working-groups/
https://ampo.org/news
https://ampo.org/resources-publications/publications
https://ampo.org/about-us/about-ampo/
https://ampo.org/join-ampo/
https://myampo.org/
https://www.facebook.com/pages/category/Nonprofit-Organization/Association-of-Metropolitan-Planning-Organizations-1902753239982512/
https://www.instagram.com/assoc_mpos/
https://twitter.com/Assoc_MPOs


1/28/2021 ‘Best And Worst’ States Rated After Deadlier Than Expected Year On Nation’s Roads - AMPO

https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/ 2/4

“As our Nation continues to cope with the devastating, wide-ranging rami�cations of the COVID-19 pandemic,”

Cathy Chase, president of Advocates for Highway and Auto Safety, said in a statement, the goal of the new

report is “to spur action to implement proven solutions to keep motorists and road users safe – and out of the

over-extended emergency rooms.”

Chase said that since the safety group began publishing the annual report, which is in its 18th year, nearly

600,000 people have been killed on the nation’s roads and more than 40 million more have been injured.

The report was created to provide a roadmap of countermeasures to help state representatives during the

2021 legislative sessions pass laws known to be e�ective in: occupant protection, child passenger safety,

graduated driver licensing (GDL), impaired driving, and distracted driving. Each of the 50 states and the

District of Columbia received a rating — Green (Good), Yellow (Caution) or Red (Danger) — based on the

number of optimal tra�c safety laws enacted. “Dangerous gaps” in legislation, like weak or nonexistent laws,

were also identi�ed.

States are rated — Green (Good), Yellow (Caution) or Red (Danger) –based on the number of optimal … [+]

Green (or Best) States must have 11 to 16 laws including both primary enforcement seat belt laws, or nine or

more laws including both primary enforcement seat belt laws and an all-rider helmet law. A state without a

primary enforcement seat belt law covering passengers in all seating positions (front and rear) or that has

repealed an existing all-rider motorcycle helmet law within the previous ten years was not eligible for a green

rating, regardless of the number of other highway safety laws it has enacted.

This year, New York was upgraded to green following the enactment of an all-occupant seat belt requirement

in 2020.

Yellow States, which this year includes 30 states, are those that are not the worst, but need improvement.

ADVOCATES FOR HIGHWAY AND AUTO SAFETY



 MY AMPO

ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN
PLANNING ORGANIZATIONS

POLICY WORKING GROUPS EVENTS NEWS & CAREERS RESOURCES ABOUT US JOIN AMPO MY AMPO  



https://ampo.org/
https://myampo.org/
https://ampo.org/policy/reauthorization/
https://ampo.org/working-groups/
https://ampo.org/news
https://ampo.org/resources-publications/publications
https://ampo.org/about-us/about-ampo/
https://ampo.org/join-ampo/
https://myampo.org/
https://www.facebook.com/pages/category/Nonprofit-Organization/Association-of-Metropolitan-Planning-Organizations-1902753239982512/
https://www.instagram.com/assoc_mpos/
https://twitter.com/Assoc_MPOs


1/28/2021 ‘Best And Worst’ States Rated After Deadlier Than Expected Year On Nation’s Roads - AMPO

https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/ 3/4

  Facebook   Twitter   Tumblr   Pinterest   Google+   LinkedIn   E-Mail

Red (or Worst) States have fewer than seven laws, without both primary enforcement front and rear seat

belt laws. A red rating is given to states “for lagging dangerously behind” in the adoption of Advocates for

Highway and Auto Safety’s recommendations.

South Dakota remains on the red list, but was recognized as the “most improved” for enacting four optimal

laws including an all-driver texting ban and signi�cant upgrades to its GDL program, “elevating South Dakota

from its previous spot as the state with the fewest laws,” the safety group noted, adding: “Unfortunately,

Missouri becomes one of just two states with only three optimal laws on the books, after the repeal in 2020 of

its 52-year-old all-rider motorcycle helmet requirement.”

The report indicated the following improvements were needed:

16 states need an optimal primary enforcement seat belt law for front seat passengers;

 30 states need an optimal primary enforcement seat belt law for rear seat passengers;

32 states need an optimal all-rider motorcycle helmet law;

35 states need a rear facing through age 2 law;

34 states and DC need an optimal booster seat law;

190 GDL laws need to be adopted to ensure the safety of novice drivers, no state meets all the criteria

recommended in this report;

29 critical impaired driving laws are needed in 27 states;

4 states need an optimal all-driver text messaging restriction; and,

19 states need a GDL cell phone restriction.

Chase said that in addition to strengthening state laws, it is critical that the new Congress and the incoming

Administration prioritize the implementation of important safety technologies that are known to help prevent

and mitigate crashes. Features like automatic emergency braking, lane departure warning and blind spot

detection should become mandatory, she said, in all new vehicles. “This public health toll is signi�cant,

staggering, and deserving of swift action and serious attention.”

To view the safety group’s best and worst states, click here. To learn more about speci�c states, click here. 

For more information and the full report, click here and here.

 

Tanya Mohn

Contributor Travel

I cover road safety and consumer travel.

To search type and hit enter



 MY AMPO

ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN
PLANNING ORGANIZATIONS

POLICY WORKING GROUPS EVENTS NEWS & CAREERS RESOURCES ABOUT US JOIN AMPO MY AMPO  



http://www.facebook.com/sharer.php?u=https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/&t=%E2%80%98Best%20And%20Worst%E2%80%99%20States%20Rated%20After%20Deadlier%20Than%20Expected%20Year%20On%20Nation%E2%80%99s%20Roads
http://twitter.com/home?status=%E2%80%98Best%20And%20Worst%E2%80%99%20States%20Rated%20After%20Deadlier%20Than%20Expected%20Year%20On%20Nation%E2%80%99s%20Roads%20https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/
http://www.reddit.com/submit?url=https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/&title=%E2%80%98Best+And+Worst%E2%80%99+States+Rated+After+Deadlier+Than+Expected+Year+On+Nation%E2%80%99s+Roads
http://pinterest.com/pin/create/button/?url=https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/&media=https://ampo.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Screen-Shot-2021-01-25-at-11.37.02-AM.png&
https://plus.google.com/share?url=https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/
http://linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/&title=%E2%80%98Best%20And%20Worst%E2%80%99%20States%20Rated%20After%20Deadlier%20Than%20Expected%20Year%20On%20Nation%E2%80%99s%20Roads
mailto:?subject=%E2%80%98Best%20And%20Worst%E2%80%99%20States%20Rated%20After%20Deadlier%20Than%20Expected%20Year%20On%20Nation%E2%80%99s%20Roads&body=https://ampo.org/best-and-worst-states-rated-after-deadlier-than-expected-year-on-nations-roads/
https://saferoads.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Advocates-for-Highway-and-Auto-Safety-Best-and-Worst-States-List-2021-1.pdf
https://saferoads.org/state/
http://www.saferoads.org/
https://saferoads.org/roadmap-reports/
https://www.forbes.com/sites/tanyamohn/
https://www.forbes.com/sites/tanyamohn/
https://www.forbes.com/travel
https://ampo.org/
https://myampo.org/
https://ampo.org/policy/reauthorization/
https://ampo.org/working-groups/
https://ampo.org/news
https://ampo.org/resources-publications/publications
https://ampo.org/about-us/about-ampo/
https://ampo.org/join-ampo/
https://myampo.org/
https://www.facebook.com/pages/category/Nonprofit-Organization/Association-of-Metropolitan-Planning-Organizations-1902753239982512/
https://www.instagram.com/assoc_mpos/
https://twitter.com/Assoc_MPOs


12/17/2020 Highways England trials inflatable safety barrier for workzones | Traffic Technology Today

https://www.traffictechnologytoday.com/news/safety/highways-england-trials-inflatable-safety-barrier-for-workzones.html 1/2

SAFETY

 0
BY TOM
STONE ON
OCTOBER 1,
2020

Highways England trials inflatable safety barrier for workzones

An inflatable safety barrier, that can be put up in a matter of minutes, is being trialled on workzones in the

Midlands, England, to help protect road workers.

The new airbag aims to reduce the number of motorists that mistakenly drive into workzones putting the drivers

and road workers at risk. Large, bright and very visible, the Vehicle Incursion Airbag sends a clear message to

drivers but can also be put in place very quickly – it is inflated in under 10 minutes.

“On average, our road workers report approximately 240 incidents of vehicle incursions each month. It is a far

too frequent hazard for our workforce going about their daily job – and the consequences could be fatal,”

says Highways England’s Midlands innovation manager, Lisa Maric. “We are committed to keeping our workforce

safe and doing all we can to ensure no-one is harmed when travelling or working on our network. We are also

committed to investing in new innovations to help improve safety for road workers and users.

https://webdisplay.markallengroup.com/www/delivery/ck.php?oaparams=2__bannerid=175__zoneid=123__cb=8c719ca734__oadest=https%3A%2F%2Fshaping-mobility.com%2F%3Futm_source%3Dtraffictechnologytoday.com%26utm_medium%3Dreferral%26utm_campaign%3Dgroup_shaping-mobility_2020%26utm_content%3Den-banner-gif-a
https://www.traffictechnologytoday.com/news/safety
https://www.traffictechnologytoday.com/news/safety/highways-england-trials-inflatable-safety-barrier-for-workzones.html#respond
https://www.traffictechnologytoday.com/author/tomstone
https://www.traffictechnologytoday.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/inflatable3.jpg


12/17/2020 Highways England trials inflatable safety barrier for workzones | Traffic Technology Today

https://www.traffictechnologytoday.com/news/safety/highways-england-trials-inflatable-safety-barrier-for-workzones.html 2/2

In the initial trial it will be installed as part of a weekend junction and slip road closure, but it is anticipated that the

airbag will be tested within various types of temporary traffic management scenarios over the coming months.

The inflatable barrier is in addition to cones and signs, adding another layer to the traditional traffic management

to influence drivers’ behaviour and prevent vehicle incursions.

The £95,700 cost of the airbags trial was met through the Designated Funds programme. Highways England

had a £150 million ring-fenced fund allocated to support innovation as support of the Road Investment Strategy

for 2015-2020.



2/11/2021 Latest Missouri gas tax plan includes rebates for drivers

https://themissouritimes.com/latest-missouri-gas-tax-plan-includes-refunds-for-drivers/ 1/12

Latest Missouri gas tax plan includes rebates for drivers
BY KAITLYN SCHALLHORN ON FEBRUARY 5, 2021

 

 

JEFFERSON CITY, Mo. — Individuals who drive through or in Missouri could receive a refund
for the increased gas taxes paid under a new plan put forth by Rep. Becky Ruth, chair of the
House Transportation Committee. 

Under Ruth’s plan, the gas tax would rise by two cents per gallon on Jan. 1, 2022, and will
then increase by an additional two cents per gallon annually for �ve years. But those who



February 11, 2021

https://missouritimes.wpengine.com/calendar
https://themissouritimes.com/category/policy/infrastructure-and-public-services/transportation/
https://themissouritimes.com/category/legislature/house/
https://themissouritimes.com/category/policy/taxes/
https://themissouritimes.com/


2/11/2021 Latest Missouri gas tax plan includes rebates for drivers

https://themissouritimes.com/latest-missouri-gas-tax-plan-includes-refunds-for-drivers/ 2/12

pay any portion of the increase — including non-Missourians who purchased gas in the state
— would be eligible to receive a refund for the increased amount paid. 

“We are in desperate need of funding for our roads and bridges, but we also know a
signi�cant portion of Missourians don’t support an increase to our fuel tax,” Ruth said. “By
giving taxpayers the option to obtain a rebate, we can strike a balance that generates the
funding we need while also protecting taxpayers who don’t want to see their tax bill go up.” 

As the legislation stands now, an individual can claim refunds for up to two vehicles per
calendar year. However, a vehicle can be claimed by only one person each calendar year. 

Individuals wishing to take advantage of the rebate would be able to apply once a year by
April 15 with a written statement describing the total amount of motor fuel purchased with
the increased tax as well as an original receipt, invoice or other documentation. The
purchase date, name and address of purchaser, name and address of seller, number of
gallons purchased, and more information would need to be provided. 

The Department of Revenue would then have 30 days to issue the rebate from the roads
fund.

“This proposal is a little unique because it is more of a voluntary gas tax rather than
mandatory,” Ruth told The Missouri Times. “If you decide that you want your money back,
and it’s only on the amount of the new tax, then you can save your documentation and get
your money back. It’s a little unique and novel.” 

Ruth noted Missouri already has rebates for non motorized fuel that could serve as a basis
for how this proposal would be implemented. Calling it a “crisis level,” Ruth also said
Missouri has between $8 million and $10 billion in unfunded needs to �x its transportation
system. 

Sen. Dave Schatz, who is championing a gas tax proposal in the upper chamber, said HB
1044 is a “very creative idea.” He said he’s been working with Ruth on her bill and expects to
see a similar measure in the Senate. 

Ruth mirrored HB 1044 with a similar law in South Carolina — albeit with some tweaks to be
cognizant of the Hancock Amendment when drafting the legislation. In the Palmetto State,
South Carolinians are eligible for an income tax credit; Ruth’s plan is open to all individuals,
and the rebate would come from the roads fund. 

https://house.mo.gov/Bill.aspx?bill=HB1044&year=2021&code=R
https://themissouritimes.com/missouri-legislature-to-consider-fuel-tax-increase-next-session/


2/11/2021 Latest Missouri gas tax plan includes rebates for drivers

https://themissouritimes.com/latest-missouri-gas-tax-plan-includes-refunds-for-drivers/ 3/12

The Hancock Amendment limits the amount of taxes the Missouri Legislature can impose in
a �scal year. 

After years of approving road improvement legislation while attempting to increase its own
gas tax, South Carolina lawmakers ultimately passed a law in 2017 raising the tax by 12
cents over six years with a rebate option — overriding a veto from Gov. Henry McMaster to
do so. 

Ruth said she attended a Southern Legislative Conference a little over a year ago where she
met with South Carolina state Sen. Larry Grooms, the Republican architect of the increase in
his state. She said she’s communicated with him about how to implement a similar proposal
in her state. 

“It’s an idea I’ve had for a little while, but it was a matter of seeing how we could �t this into
Missouri,” Ruth said. “I’m very serious about it this year and believe this is the year we can
get this done. It’s an innovative approach so I brought it to the table for consideration.” 

South Carolina’s Department of Revenue said as of Nov. 30, more than 79,000
individuals claimed the credit for the 2020 �ling season. The available credit cap for 2020 is
$85 million; the claims �led up to that point only totaled $3.4 million. 

HB 1044 does not include a cap. 

An additional portion of HB 1044 increases transparency and accountability with the
Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT), Ruth said. It requires MoDOT to put in
plain site on its website information about how much money is coming into the fund and
where it’s going. 

The bill was second read in the House Thursday.

Kaitlyn Schallhorn

Kaitlyn Schallhorn is the editor of The Missouri Times. She joined the newspaper in
early 2019 after working as a reporter for Fox News in New York City.

Throughout her career, Kaitlyn has covered political campaigns across the U.S.,
including the 2016 presidential election, and humanitarian aid efforts in Africa and the
Middle East.

She is a native of Missouri who studied journalism at Winthrop University in South
Carolina. She is also an alumna of the National Journalism Center in Washington, D.C.

Contact Kaitlyn at kaitlyn@themissouritimes.com.

https://www.wltx.com/article/news/politics/sc-gas-tax-increase-becomes-law-after-senate-overrides-veto/101-438531355
https://dor.sc.gov/communications/gather-your-receipts-for-the-state%E2%80%99s-motor-fuel-income-tax-credit
https://themissouritimes.com/author/kaitlyn-schallhorn/
https://themissouritimes.com/author/kaitlyn-schallhorn/
mailto:kaitlyn@themissouritimes.com


1/28/2021 Peachtree Corners first to install surface solar panels on city street - AMPO

https://ampo.org/peachtree-corners-first-to-install-surface-solar-panels-on-city-street/ 1/3

Peachtree Corners �rst to install surface solar panels on city
street

MPO NEWS

Peachtree Corners recently unveiled the city’s new solar roadway system which produces energy for a solar-

powered electronic vehicle charging station at City Hall, 310 Technology Parkway. According to the city, the

project marks the �rst time that road surface solar panels have been installed and activated on an American

city street.

The French-engineered road surface solar panels are located in a section of Technology Parkway’s

autonomous vehicle test lane and provided through a partnership with The Ray, a nonpro�t living laboratory

and proving ground located along I-85 between LaGrange and the Georgia/Alabama state line.

The new system will produce more than 1,300 kilowatt-hours of electricity annually for a Level 2 EV charger at

city hall at no cost to electronic vehicle motorists. The charger is also equipped with an energy storage system

for nighttime charging. In the future, the system could power streetlights or other city infrastructure, including

backup for grid outages.

By Karen Huppertz for the AJC

NEWS

 



 MY AMPO

POLICY WORKING GROUPS EVENTS NEWS & CAREERS RESOURCES ABOUT US JOIN AMPO MY AMPO  



https://ampo.org/peachtree-corners-first-to-install-surface-solar-panels-on-city-street/
https://ampo.org/category/latest-news/
https://ampo.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Screen-Shot-2020-12-14-at-11.56.03-AM.png
https://ampo.org/
https://myampo.org/
https://ampo.org/policy/reauthorization/
https://ampo.org/working-groups/
https://ampo.org/news
https://ampo.org/resources-publications/publications
https://ampo.org/about-us/about-ampo/
https://ampo.org/join-ampo/
https://myampo.org/
https://www.facebook.com/pages/category/Nonprofit-Organization/Association-of-Metropolitan-Planning-Organizations-1902753239982512/
https://www.instagram.com/assoc_mpos/
https://twitter.com/Assoc_MPOs


��������� ����	
�����������������	������������������
	�������
�����	�����	���������	����� ��!����
"�
�
	����
�	����

�����#�����$����
	��$�
%�	
������
���	
��&��&���&�����&	����	���&'�������&�������
	���&����
&�����	�����&	��&�������	�� ���(

)*+,,*-  .*/+,

0121345678.79:;11<=>?7@3?1<A16B5C12D1@782?43?12E61B4.B@B?3?B78238<F7?18?B3CGHIJKLMN OMMPQRSTUVTHWXYZX[X\N]̂_̂ àbcdefdghî ĵklmdn m̀̂jôcpbq̂_r̂nde_màm̂_sĉpafpnpm̀mpde_̀ejtdm̂emp̀qN
GVIQuTIMvwMxJKLMyzHTUyJIzMKxUQLQ{W|}~�}�����������}�������



��������� ����	
�����������������	������������������
	�������
�����	�����	���������	����� ��!����
"�
�
	����
�	����

�����#�����$����
	��$�
%�	
������
���	
��&��&���&�����&	����	���&'�������&�������
	���&����
&�����	�����&	��&�������	�� ���(

)*+,-./012-34511678/019+3-:;7+/3/,7-<1:13+=0>73+?@:ABBCADEFFGHBIJ/01KLABMHGNOOPFLAGHQFRFMFALSTULOILAE+1413:1?VWOXYZPFF[\CGOEAGF[]FTHSDFM̂WZ\]M_HBUC̀DHSKLABMPOLGAGHOBabc-7J,-=7-d*-=/,7-5,/0e7f,4,/g1h3-?7/01+:J3*/07+1?/01+1;7+/3:;3+/783i*4/,jg13+1887+/aklmn:3+13/+3-:,//1=0-747.g/03/3,i:/77;1+3/1:i344f*:1:5,/07*/?+,o1+:3/+143/,o14g475:;11?:a901.734,:/703o13Z\pWFQFDqMrMGFE/03/=3-7;1+3/135,?1+3-.178/+3-:,/:1+o,=1:5,/07*/3?+,o1+as-f73+?=3;3=,/g,:/g;,=344g4,i,/1?/7f1/511-:,t7+/514o1+,?1+:a901V475:;11?b?1:,.-3/,7-i13-:41::/03-hui;0,-3f,?/7?,881+1-/,3/1f1/511-:g:/1i:?1:,.-1?/7+*-7-/010,.053gav-7/1w38/1+?1=3?1:781i;03:,:7-V+3;,?/+3-:,/b3-?V0,.0j:;11?+3,4b,/,::7i1503/d3++,-./7:113/+3-:,/7;/,7-;+7i7/1?3:V475:;11?bx901+1;7+/,:3*:18*47o1+o,153-?.*,?187+3.1-=,1:7+=,/,1:/03/3+1=7-:,?1+,-.?1;47g,-.3klmn;,47/ay/+1o,15:47=343-?81?1+34+*41:v7850,=0/01+13+1815x3-?:7i178/014,i,/3/,7-:7-501+13-?075/01o10,=41:=3-7;1+3/1v7850,=0/01+13+1i3-gxa901+1;7+/34:7+1o,15:?7z1-:78;,47/3-??1i7-:/+3/,7-;+7d1=/:501+1/01+1:13+=0/13i/3461?/7;*f4,=3-?;+,o3/1:1=/7+:/361074?1+:3f7*//01=03441-.1:3-?:*==1::1:a{1+13+13815/0,-.:/03/y413+-1?8+7if1,-.,-o74o1?5,/0/0,:+1:13+=0a|,+:/J;*f4,=3.1-=,1:=3-3-??7;3+/-1+5,/0;+,o3/1j:1=/7+;+7o,?1+:/77;1+3/13*/7i3/1?o10,=41:1+o,=1J1o,?1-//0+7*.0/01?7z1-:78=7i;41/1?3-?7-.7,-.;,47/:ak7=343-?81?1+34+1.*43/,7-:?7-7/3;;13+/7f1:,.-,2=3-/f3++,1+:/7:*=0;3+/-1+:0,;:am.1-=,1:03o1/01=3;3=,/g/7;+7=*+1/0,:6,-?78:1+o,=13-?03o1;7/1-/,34*:1:87+,/a}0,41:7i1f3++,1+:i,.0/f1=7i1i7+1:,.-,2=3-/7-=13;,47/i7o1:/7+1.*43+:1+o,=1J;*f4,=3-?;+,o3/1:1=/7+:/361074?1+:03o1413+-1?/0+7*.07*//01;+7=1::3-?5,44f1i7+13?1;/3/7o1+=7i,-./01i,-/018*/*+1a>*/?*+,-.7*+?,:=*::,7-:,/f1=3i1=413+/03//01/1=0-747.g,::/,44o1+gi*=0,-?1o147;i1-/as8/01?7z1-:78;,47/:51+1o,151?J-7-17;1+3/1?5,/07*/3V:381/g3//1-?3-/ab}0,41/01:381/g3//1-?3-/?,?:1+o13:3/1=0-747.g3if3::3?7+/73-:51+~*1:/,7-:3f7*//01/1=0J/01g34403?3+741,-014;,-./01o10,=41:-3o,.3/1/+,=6g:,/*3/,7-:a|7+1t3i;41J/01;,47/klmn:?,?-7/7;1+3/1,-3?o1+:1513/01+J,-=4*?,-.:-753-?:7i1/,i1:+3,-J3-?+3+14g7;1+3/1?,-i,t1?/+3�=a|*+/01+Jklmn?1o147;1+:3+1i36,-.i3-g78/01i,:/361:78;3:/?1o147;1+:5,/0+1:;1=//7?,:3f,4,/g3==1::a�7/7-178/01o10,=41:7+;,47/:/03/51+1o,151?,-=4*?1?/01-1=1::3+g+3i;:7+7/01+813/*+1:/03/3+1+1~*,+1?5,/0,-/01mi1+,=3-:5,/0),:3f,4,/gm=/vm)mxal,-=1/01:151+1;,47/:Jm)m+1~*,+1i1-/:?,?-7/3;;4g,-/01:3i153g/03/3;1+i3-1-/?1;47gi1-/57*4?a}0,41:7i1klmn



��������� ����	
�����������������	������������������
	�������
�����	�����	���������	����� ��!����
"�
�
	����
�	����

�����#�����$����
	��$�
%�	
������
���	
��&��&���&�����&	����	���&'�������&�������
	���&����
&�����	�����&	��&�������	�� (��)

*+,+-./+0120+3.45+67337368.2**89+1+:+28;0+1<89+:2=88928>?>@0+A;70+*02B/123*.89+0:+28;0+120+232:8+089.;698712576/0.5-+B:.0+A;78C23*B76982**2**787.32-=.18123*=.B/-+D787+18.:;8;0+*+/-.CB+381EF9+/7-.814+0+1;==+11:;-735..1873626+3=7+1G7B26+21H733.,287,+I23**+B.31802873689281;=9/2083+0197/1=2392//+3<5;889+C020+-CB++889+*+B23*1.:0+6;-201+0,7=+EJ.0+D2B/-+<80231781+0,+1/+./-+49.3++*788.6+88.4.0K<,7178:07+3*1<23*802,+-8..89+0*+1873287.310+620*-+11.:89+4+289+0.0.89+0;3+D/+=8+*0.2*42C=.3*787.31EL7,+38928212:+8C288+3*2384213++*+*73+2=9,+97=-+<89+=.18.:89+1+0,7=+4213.8B;=9*7::+0+38892320+6;-205;1EM84218+--7368928B23C.:89+/7-.810+,7+4+*7389+0+/.084+0+3.8=.3873;+*2:8+089+70737872-8+0BEF9+/0.1/+=8.:2;8.B287365;1N++8192126+3=7+1,+0C738+0+18+*7389+8+=93.-.6CEO;87:26+3=7+120+6.7368.B.,+5+C.3*/7-.81<PQ>R13++*8.5+0+2*C8.B++889+*+B23*1.:0+6;-201+0,7=+<732--178;287.3123*:.02--/./;-287.31<4789.04789.;8212:+8C288+3*238ESTUVW
Q+20=9XFYZ[\]̂_[̀ab]\̀Zca]b\bdàe[[fgh Q+20=9g\b[ZbdZZi[Zjklmnooplqrstkul


	Agenda
	Tab 1 - Minutes
	Tab 2 - Public Comment
	Tab 3 - 2nd Quarter Financial Statements
	Tab 4 - UPWP Administrative Modificatin One
	Tab 5 - OTO Growth Trends
	Tab 6 - TIP Administrative Modification Number 8
	Tab 7 - TIP Amendment Number Nine
	Tab 8 - Destination 2045 Update
	Tab 9 - Articles



